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Key figures for the KRON ES Group 2005 2009

Sales

Sales revenues inm 1865

Germany inm 191

Outside Germany inm 1674

Export share in% 90

Earnings

Earnings before taxes inm 39
Net income inm 34

Earnings per share irr 1.13

Assets and capital structure

Non-current assets

of which property plant and

equipment intangible assets

and non-current financial assets

inm 543

inm 496

Current assets inm 1248

of which cash and equivalents inm 136

Equity inm 696

Total debt inm 1094

Non-current liabilities inm 125

Current liabilities inm 970

Total assets inm 1790

Cash flow/capital expenditure

2381

300

2081

87

156

107

3.39

534

482

1291

108

790

1035

144

891

1825

158

112

51

2156

347

1809

84

154

102

3.25

475

422

1209

54

708

976

155

821

1684

149

98

48

1911

289

1622

85

110

78

2.45

430

374

1042

58

629

843

147

696

1472

127

78

50

229

1466

81

91

2.00

40

35

88

57

71

15

551

1281

hi

7l

2009 2008j 2007 2006 2005

Dividend

DMdend per ordinary share 0.0O060 0.700.53 04

Gross cash flow 5Cm 25

Capital expenditure

Depreciation amortisation

inm 88

and write-downs inm 60

Net cash position

cash and cash equivalents less debt in Cm 136

Profitability ratios

108

6.6

20.8

19.1

10333

8286

2047

53

7.1

23.0

20.2

9588

7857

1731

57

5.7

18.3

16.1

9165

7531

1634

16

14

902

740

1621

EBT margin in% 2.1

Return on equity before taxes in% 5.3

ROCE 15% 3.5

Employees at 31 December 10238

Germany 8165

Outside Germany 2073

Mjusted for share split As per proposal for the use of
unappropriated profit



KRONES responded quickly to the new challenges

on the markets launching raft of measures that

we call Conversion As result KRONES fared

better than many other machinery manufacturers

in the crisis year 2009

To ensure that remains the case KRONES continues

to work to become even better in every area of our

business We have never been content to sit back

on our laurels True to our motto We do more
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Foreword by the Executive Board

Dear shareholders and friends of KRONE5

After nine consecutive record-breaking years of successful business development

KRONES was hit by the global economic crisis in 2009 Sales contracted 21.7% from

the previous years level to 1864.gm We are posting net loss of 34.5m for the

year The Conversion programme we launched back in the fourth quarter of 2008 in

response to the market slump prevented worse from happening We are not pleased

with the results of the last year However unlike many other companies KRONES

survival has not been jeopardised in the wake of the economic crisis We had done

our homework and were well positioned when we entered this difficult phase The

fact that KRONES stands on solid financial footing and has no bank debt has been

particularly beneficial now On the whole KRONES weathered the crisis better than

many of our competitors and gained market share Moreover we do not have to deal

with structural crisis as many other industries do Our drop in sales is due entirely

to the economic situation The long-term prospects for the bottling and packaging

industry remain good Nevertheless we cannot sit back and wait for better days to

come We will have to work hard to ensure that 2009 remains statistical outlier and

that we get back on track for success The challenges remain great Although the

economy is picking up again now is not time for exuberance It is dangerous to

look only at economic growth rates since after the sharp plunge the recovery is

starting from very low level

KRONE5 is prepared for long slow period That is why we are doing everything

we can to further strengthen the company That includes cost-cutting measures as

part of our Conversion programme But frugality alone will not move our company

forward We traditionally pursue long-term goals rather than looking to maximise

profits in the short term Despite the difficult economic situation KRONES will stay

focused on important tasks that are crucial to the companys long-term growth One

central task is to enable our customers in the beverage industry to make even more

efficient use of their production capacities Our product range meets this need pro

viding intelligent logistics solutions and customised information technology along

side our high-performance machines and lines We will continue to expand our

unique portfolio by investing even more in internal logistics and process engineer

ing thereby setting ourselves even further apart from our competitors

Volker Kronseder

Chairman of the Executive Baard

Customers want to make even

more efficient use of their beverage

plants and KRONES
offers

technolo

gies that do just that

CRONEs has weathered the

economic crisis better than many

other companies and gained

market share in 200g

FOREWORD RYTHE EXECUTIVE ROARO



Our enviro products KRONES machines and lines that use resources more eco- Sustainability has been our

nomically will remain key focus in 2010 We are proud to have earned TUV SÜD practice at KRONES for decades

and is undiminished by the

certification for our enviro programme our integrated management system and
difficult economic times

our 2008 sustainability report in 2009 We plan to seek external certification of our

2009 sustainability report as well Incidentally we are still the only company in

our industry to have this report independently certified Sustainability has been

our practice at KRONES for decades and it has not lost any of its importance in the

economic downturn The fact that we intend to hold onto our core workforce

despite the temporary decline in business is but one example of this

By far the most gratifying event in fiscal 2009 was the drinktec trade fair the indus

trys biggest fair worldwide see page 12 We invested considerable time and energy

in preparing for the fair and had placed great hope in its outcome The fair itself

which took place in September exceeded our expectations Many high-level decision

makers visited us there to learn more about our range of products and services We

also finalised many contracts at the drinktec KRONES showcased its capabilities as

solutions provider that can increase efficiency along the customers entire value

chain True to our motto We do more

On behalf of the entire Executive Board Iwould like to thank all of our employees

for pulling together and staying motivated in what was difficult fiscal year 2009

The skills and knowledge of our employees are KRONES backbone Only as team

can we overcome the slump and replicate our past successes am confident that

we will do this sooner than other companies

Volker Kronseder

Chairman of the Executive Board

FOREWORD BY THE EXECUTIVE BOARD



Report of the Supervisory Board

Ladies and Gentlemen

In 2009 the Supervisory Board of KR0NE5 AG continuously oversaw the companys

management as prescribed by the law and the articles of association The Board

regularly obtained information from the Executive Board about the progress of

business and the financial situation of the company as well as on the companys risk

management and strategy in the form of written and oral reports both in and out

side the regular Supervisory Board meetings

One focus of the Supervisory Boards activities in 2009 was on the effects of the

global economic crisis on ICRONE5 and possible actions and strategies by which the

company can respond to the decline in demand

Four regular meetings of the Supervisory Board were held in 2009 At the first

which was held on i8 March the Board renewed the mandate of Executive Board

member Rainulf Diepold which was set to expire at the end of 2009 until 31 Decem

ber 2014 The Executive Board then presented the preliminary consolidated financial

statements for 2008 and provided explanations for the key figures After that the

Executive Board then commented on the current business situation The Executive

Board also explained the measures it was taking to respond to the difficult market

situation The Supervisory Board and the Executive Board agreed that the company

should maintain its core workforce despite the downturn The Executive Board

concluded its comprehensive presentation on the business situation by offering

an outlook for the first half of 2009

The second meeting of the Supervisory Board was held on 24 April Representatives

from the companys auditing firm were present for portion of the meeting The

auditors explained the annual financial statements and the consolidated financial

statements for 2008 and fielded questions from the Supervisory Board Following

the auditors detailed remarks the Supervisory Board ratified the 2008 annual

financial statements and the consolidated financial statements and management

report for fiscal 2008 The Supervisory Board and the Executive Board also discussed

the agenda for the annual shareholders meeting which would be held on 17 June

2009 and the use of unappropriated profit Due to the difficult economic situation

both Boards agreed to propose to the annual shareholders meeting that the divi

dend per share be reduced by 0.10 from the previous year to 0.60

The Supervisory Board held its constitutive meeting on 17 June following the

annual shareholders meeting Herbert Gerstner and long-time Supervisory Board

Chairman Dr Lorenz Raith left the Board as of the conclusion of the annual share

holders meeting Philipp Oraf von und zu Lerchenfeld and employee representative

Johann Robold were elected as new members of the Supervisory Board The Super

visory Board unanimously elected Ernst Baumann as its chairman

Ernst Baumann

Chairman of the Supervisory Board

REPORT RYTHE SUPERVISORY ROARD



At the meeting on 22 September the Executive Board informed the supervisory

Board about the current business situation and provided an outlook for the results of

the first nine months of 2009 The Supervisory Board also discussed Germanys new

law on the appropriateness of executive remuneration

The final meeting of the Supervisory Board in 2009 was held on 25 November The

Executive Board presented the financial statements for the third quarter of 2009

and its outlook for the year as whole The Executive Board then presented the 2010

planning in detail to the Supervisory Board The Supervisory Board unanimously

approved the capital expenditure planning for fiscal 2010 as put forward by the

Executive Board

Supervisory Board ratifies the annual and consolidated financial

statements for 2009

The annual financial statements of KRONES AG the consolidated financial state

ments the management report for KRONaS AG and the consolidated management

report prepared by the Executive Board for the period ended 31 December 2009 were

examined by the auditors elected by the annual shareholders meeting KPMG Bayer

ische Treuhandgesellschaft Aktiengesellschaft WirtschaftsprUfungsgesellschaft

Steuerberatungsgesellschaft and each received an unqualified audit report The au

dited annual financial statements and consolidated financial statements the man

agement report for KRONES AG and the consolidated management report prepared

for the period ended 31 December 2009 were submitted to all members of the Super

visory Board in good time for the members own review The audited financial state

ments and management reports were the subject of the Supervisory Board meeting

held to ratify the financial statements on 26 April2010 Representatives of the audit

ing firm also participated in the meeting and reported to the Supervisory Board on

the results of their review and the areas on which their review focused

The Supervisory Board noted and approved the audit result The Supervisory Boards

review did not result in any objections The Supervisory Board approved the annual

financial statements for KRONES AG and the consolidated financial statements as

well as the Executive Boards proposal for the use of the net accumulated loss The

annual financial statements for KEONES AG are thereby ratified and the consolidated

financial statements are thereby approved

The members of the Supervisory Board would like to thank the Executive Board

and all employees for their outstanding work in 2009 which was year of great

challenges for all

Neutraubling April 2010

The Supervisory Board

Ernst Baumann

Chairman of the Supervisory Board

REPORT BY THE EUPRRVIEORY BOARD
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KRONLS plans develops mai ulactures installs machinery and complete

systems for bottling and pac aging and beverage production iutoairs customcrs

include breweries beverage producers and companies from the food chemical

pharmaceutical and cosniet industries

KRONIs offers all of the prod lets and services they need fiom sn gle source

from constructing new heve age plants to betting the finished product out the door

Our worldwide service network is crud ii component of our unique portfolio

Innovation rapid flexible development ci products and services and continuous

improvement of our interna process flows are the cornerstones of our success



Strategy

Were fighting for KRONES success with intelligence and creativity

The year 2009 was dominated by the global economic crisis For KRONES it was

arguably the most difficult year in the companys 59-year history We went into 2009

well prepared for the crisis At the end of 2008 we had already begun to adapt the

entire company to cope with the shrinking markets One response to the new chal

lenges was and still is our Conversionu programme AConversion implies changing

our thinking as well as our organisation In fiscal 2009 the comprehensive mea

sures implemented under Conversion enabled us to cut our costs by more than

l4om

KRONE5 is rising to the challenges

Although the worst may be behind us for now we expect the road to recovery to be

long and bumpy How the global economic situation will develop is still anybodys

guess Current predictions range from optimistic to critical No reliable trends have

emerged that show clear direction

The global web of interdependencies is extremely complex with all of the following
Hans-Järgen Thaus

Deputy Chairman of the Executive

at play
Board

Global economic growth

China India usA Russia Europe South America

Monetary policy

Exchange rate policy

New protectionism

Financial markets

Raw materials procurement markets energy the environment

Labour markets

The overall economic circumstances have changed and the linear planning that

was practiced in the past no longer works Strategic planning and corporate gover

nance must now assume that trends will change rapidly and must therefore enhance

the companys ability to react and adapt quickly for instance by using scenario

planning Companies need to be extremely flexible in order to react better and more

quickly to rapid changes in external circumstances In addition we must be able to

master increasingly complex internal processes This requires systematic restructur

ing

conversion Restructuring by rethinking and reorganising

We are rising to these challenges resolutely expanding the flONE5 Conversion

programme which consists of the following elements

Further comprehensive restructuring of our operations

Strategic realignment

Development of new strategic growth opportunities

We are working hard to implement concept that can stand the test of time and

change to ensure that KRONE5 remains successful in the future even when the

global circumstances change

We must assume that trends

will change rapidly and we must

became mare flexible.u

STRATEGY



KR0NE5 has strong position

Nine straight years of record results from 2000 to 2008 have unequivocally demon

strated our companys strength and competitiveness During this successful run

KRONES was never content to rest on its laurels We constantly worked to improve our

products and services sales and after-sales service and internal workfiows Thanks to

these efforts KRONE5 now has an outstanding competitive position We are confident

that we can still mobilise enormous potential in the short and medium terms

flONES will continue to pursue this aim for the long term with aConversionu

Good long-term prospects for growth

KRONES long-term outlook for growth is still good because the megatrends will bene

fit our industry The worlds population is still growing Wealth and consumption are

increasing in many countries Food and drink are basic human needs In addition our

customers have to offer an ever-increasing variety of products in order to survive in

the markets some of which are already saturated KRONES benefits from this situation

because our comprehensive portfolio has suitable solution for every customer

Development of the packaging machinery market worldwide in bn our forecast

26.9 261
27.7

24.7 24.4

6% 20.3
15

22.6 6%

20 25% 6%

lilifi
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Sources Freedonia Euromonitor VDMA Roland Berger the press CRONES

Holistic strategic position

To be successful in the long term company must be able to deliver top-quality

whole-factory solutions that is the entire logistics chain and the right IT solutions

in addition to the machines and lines from single source KRONE5 is doing that

already As we continue to expand our internal logistics and process engineering port

folios we will further distance ourselves from our competitors In addition KRONES

intends to offer our customers even more advantages by handling projects even faster

and with more flexibility and by expanding our after-sales services

Clear goals

We are seizing the crisis as an opportunity and pursuing clear goals Were fighting

for KRONES future success with dedication intelligence and creativity

Hans-JOrgen Thaus

Deputy Chairman of the Executive Board

The global market for packaging

machinery lost around one-quarter

of its volume in 2009 KRONE5 ex

pects the market to grow again in

the future But it probably wont

return to 2008 levels until the

medium term

STRATEGY



10 The Executive Board

Christoph Kienk

1963

Member of the

Executive Board

since 2003

Research Develop

ment Engineering

and Product Divisions

Werner Frischholz

1951

Member of the

Executive Board

since 2003

Materials Manage

ment Assembly

Manufacturing Af

ter-Sales Service and

Quality Assurance

Rainuif Diepold

1955

Member of the

Executive Board since

1996

Sales and Marketing

Hans-Jürgeri Thaus

1949

Member and Deputy

Chairman of the

Executive Board since

1997

Finance and Account

ing Controlling Infor

mation Management

and Process Manage

ment

Volker Kronseder

1953

Member of the

Executive Board since

1989 and Chairman

since 1996

Personnel Manage

ment and Social

Affairs Corporate

Communications

THE ExEcUTIVE BOARD
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New orders 414.Srn

Sales 8482.3m

EBT 44dm

Q2

New orde is 4595m

Sales 442 Tm

ren-l 8m

03

New orders 540.4m

Sales 4439.6rn

Br lllm

04

New orders 501 6m

Sales 4500dm

ELIT 412.3m

Share at 32 March 2009 2398 Share at tO lone 200982 1.13 Share at 30 Sep 2009 36.32 Share at 31 Dec 2009 3S.S0

he econome crisis kept our

customs rs capital spending low

in the frrt quciter New orders

were down 31.7/ year onyear to

414Sm At 482 3m sales were

down 19.0% CRONES posted

loss for the first quarter

In January the company opened

ecs Centre for the Russia sales re

gion in Iver ahout 150 kilometres

northeast of Moscow

The financial crisis and poo ceo

nomic data sent share
prices

into

tailspin at the start of 2009 By

early rrch c2ermanys O/SX index

had lost quarter of its value The

stock markets then began to

cover At the end of the quarter th

DAX was down by around IS/

Apart from the general rrialaise

on the stock markets poor results

from the machinery sector

weighed heavily on CRONES share

price At the end of March the

share was trading at 23.98 dowr

22 8S from the start of the year

At the anr uS shareholders

meetings 1/June iii Neutraub

ling flerniany the shareholders

adopted ll of the resolution son

the agenc with large nrsajority

Because the difficult economic

situation verall CRONES paid

smaller dvidend for 2008 0.60

per share 0.20 lessthan in 2009

Business emaincd unsatisfactory

in the sec md quarter From April

toJurie we generated loss before

taxes of 11 Sm Sales iii the flirt

half of th year were down 23.3%

to 924.4 sr Second quarter orders

intake pri vrded the first rays of

hope wit an 11% improvement

over the fist quarter

At the st rt of June the 1000

Contiforri stretch blow moulder

left our ant in Neutraubling

CRONEs announcement back in

19q/ that the company was get

ting into Sastics technology crc

ated bit of stir in the beverage

industry since then the Contiforrn

has grow into true success stciry

From 14 19 September the inter

atrorial beverage and packaging

industry came together for the

dninktec trade fair in Munich The

fair was huge success for CRONES

We presented our competence as

total system supplier under the

motto We do more See page

12

cdv suo awarded CRONES three

prestigious certifications at the

drrrrktec KRONES Executive Board

members Volker Kronsedei Chris

toph Kienk and Werner Frischholz

accepted the certificates for our

integrated management system

iMs our sustainability report

and our enviro sustarnability

progranrmefiom iOv sun ceo

Dr Axel Stepken

New orders continued to pick up

in the third quarter From
July

to

September new orders rose J76%

compared to the second quarter to

45404m Earnings remained tight

Ihird qcrarter earnings before

taxes were negative at 411.1m

In October some 700 employees

moved into the second tower of

CRONEs new technology centre

the building houses employees

from various specialties such as

Litecycle Service IF solutions and

internal logistics The close proxim

ity of the departments and state

of-the art office design makes for

improved process flows and facrlr

tates our employees work

On November the government

of the state of Bavaria iwarded

CRON5S the Occupational Health

and Risk Managernient System

oHRrs Certificate for its commit

ment to occupational safety OHMS

takes into account national and

international standards for occupa

tronal safety and health

The fourth quarter was the best of

2009 After posting loss for three

consecutive quarters CRONES al

nrost brolce even in terms of oper

atrng earnings in Ore period from

October to Deeenrber New ordcrs

were up sharply year-over year
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Seldom have we awaited an cvi nt as anxiously as we did the 2009 drinktec trade

lair which took place from 14 19 September 2009 in Munich The entire beverage

and packaging industry had he ped the mndustiys premi trade lair worldwide

would breathe less life into thi industiy And for KRON this wish was moie than

fulfilled fhe 2009 drinktec the best drmktec of all time the lab lived up to its

eputatmon as dri mini force for the beverage sector and as global economic sum

mit for the packag ng and beverage industry There was not trace of crisis or capital

spending restrnnt at the KROhLS stand ustomeis WE enthusiastic about our

portfolio And alth ugh the drirsktee is primarily an informational fair rather than

sales fair we nev rtheless fin slised several interesting deals there

hus thc months of preparation that nronrs hardwork ng employees had put in

ahead of the show aid off It is thanks to the tireless efforts of the entire KRONLS

team that we were exceptional well prepared for the fair KRONFS was the only cx

hibstor to book an entire hall Ic itself In it we showcased several highlights from

our product range such as the rgoBfoc the Variohne packaging lose and the roe

automated order pie king syste is rue to our motto sW do more KRONFS pre

sented not only chines and ines but also complete solutions We had several sep

am ate areas set up is whirls we informed visitors about segments like Lmfecycle Ser

vice internal logis ics arid If hutmons Although we had fewer exhibit pieces than

usual the smart st md concept enabled visitors from around the world to see for

themselves KRONFS capabilities as full service supph or those who wished to

learn more shout i0NF5 systems that macme not on display we omganmsed bus tours

to oui production facilities in Neutmauliling Raubling and Freising here they

could see selected xodui ts irs the asse mhly hall and get first hand look at what

KRONI can do

We were especially pleased to hive large number of high ranking decision-makers

visit the nnors st md Soon af ci the clrsnktec opened we had the pleasure of

welcoming Indra Nooyi haimr ian and ceo of PepsiCo to our booth Other beverage

pioducers also had top management visit us at the fair

the KiioNI$ beer tcnt was apes ial treat at the fair It gave our customers an

opportunity to exj encore in informal setting that xmsoms is global leader with

Bavarian roots the great atino phere we eiijoyed every day in the hcem tent this year

is hut one of many reasons why we are aIm eady looking forward to the next dninktec

in September 20i3
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Indra Nooyi in the hrst photo tar nght

CEO of PepsiCo was among the first visi

toisto the CRONES booth People from

around the world took the opportunity to

speak with CRONES reprsentatives and

execu byes
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KRONE5 share gains 14.3%

KR0NES share price took roller coaster ride in 2009 At the start of the year the

share price plummeted amid the general malaise on the stock markets Bad news

from the machinery sector put additional pressure on the share On 20 March 2009

the share hit its low for the year 22.00 The share was not only selling for around

30% less than it had been at the start of the year It was also trading below the carry

ing value of its equity The share price recovered from that very
low level but was not

able to bounce back entirely One reason for this is that investors showed more inter

est in speculative shares and shares in more highly leveraged companies It took

until mid-August for the KRONES share price to recover to the level at which it had

started the year But then the price moved sharply upward The fact that KRONES

business was recovering also helped give the share boost The share price reached

its high for the year 38.83 on 12 OctobeL But it was not quite able to maintain this

level and closed 2009 at 35.50 for total gain of 143% for the year The KRONES

share didnt keep pace with the MDAX in 2009 which picked up 34.0% over the

course of the year and is driven largely by highly cyclical stocks

At 35.50 KRONES share price was

up goad 14% far the year at the

end of 2009

Key figures for the KRONE5 share

At 31 December 2009 2008 2007

Numberof shares million 31.59 31.59 31.59

Cash flow per share 1.24 4.98 4.73

Equity per share 22.65 25.00 22.36

Earnings per share 1.13 3.39 3.25

High 38.83 59.79 64.09

Low 22.00 27.52 37.40

Years closing price 35.50 31.07 54.99

Price/earnings ratio P/B 17

Dividend per ordinary share 0.00 0.60 0.70

Figures as per proposal
for use of

unappropriated profit

Based on the weighted average of shares in circulation sO.esw shares

THE KBONE5 SHARE
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Portrait of the KRONES share

KR0NES shares are no par value ordinary bearer shares Each share carries one vote

The total number of shares is 31593072 The stock has been listed and available for

trading on all German stock exchanges since 29 October1984 In fiscal 2009 daily

trading volume on the Frankfurt stock exchange and in XETRA trading averaged just

less than 80000 shares In 2008 the average daily trading volume was around

112000 shares KRONES is included in the MDAX share index which lists mid-sized

companies from traditional sectors

Key data for the KRONES share

Ordinary shares

German securities identification number

ISIN

Ticker symbol

31593072

WKN 633500

DE 0006335003

KRN

Shareholder structure

The Kronseder family holds majority stake in the company 54.04% The company

holds 4.51% in treasury shares The free float is 41.45% The largest free float share

holders known to the company as of March 2010 were the us private investment

company Tweedy Browne with 5.19% and Schadeberg GbR with 3.28%

Shareholder structure as of March 2010

No dividend planned for 2009

The Executive Board and the Supervisory Board of KRONES AG will propose to the

shareholders meeting on 16 June 2010 that no dividend be paid out for 2009 previ

ous year 0.60 Because we are posting net loss we believe it makes sense not to

pay dividend KRONES AGS long-term dividend policy aim is to pay out 20% to 25%

of profits in dividends Our shareholders have benefited greatly from this policy in

the past very successful years

oekom research awards KRONES prime status

Sustainable investing is steadily gaining importance in the international financial

sector Worldwide around ooobn are being invested exclusively in shares of com

panies that meet very high standards with respect to how they treat employees and

the environment and what they give back to society KRONES is proud to have been

Free float 41.45%

THE KRONES SHARE



awarded prime status by the independent rating agency oekom research in 2009

To obtain prime status companies must be deemed to be among the leaders in their

industry according to oekoms Corporate Rating and meet industry-specific mini

mum requirements Earning prime status has expanded KRONES pooi of potential

investors considerably

KRONES Group earnings per
share in

3.25
TI

245

200

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

Active communication with investors and analysts

Over the past several
years

KRONES investors and analysts had become accustomed KRONE5 takes the interests of all of

to the company posting record earnings that they merely had to update That is why
ourshareholders very seriously and

has an open information pa/ky

they needed even more information from KRONES in the less-than-successful year

2009 KRONES has actively addressed this need The Executive Board and representa

tives of the Investor Relations department have conducted many one-on-one talks

with investors and analysts and held presentations for investing professionals at

numerous road shows in international financial centres

special highlight was Capital Market Day which KRONES hosted at the drinktec

trade fair Around 30 analysts attended and learned about the companys new prod

ucts and strategy first hand The analysts listened intently to presentations by our

Deputy Chairman and CFO Hans-JUrgen Thaus and Chief RD Officer Christoph

Klenk After the presentation the two executives gave the analysts guided tour

of the KRONES booth showing them KRONES products in action

Share buyback programme completed

KRONES held its annual shareholders meeting on 17 June 2008 All of the resolutions

proposed were adopted by large majority of the shareholders Because the share

holders meeting gave the Executive Board authority to implement another share

buyback programme KRONES ended the ongoing buyback Between 21 January and

17 June 2009 the company bought back total of 1425421 shares which corresponds

to around 4.5% of the share capital The average
consideration paid per share was

25.93

THE KEONES SHARE
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One-stop shop



KR NES is more than machmery

builder With our process engineer

inqfllli ig
and packaging technol

ogy internal logistics
and ir busi

ness units we are able to offer our

ustomers complete solutions from

single source KRQNRS has mas

edall of the processes involved in

everoge production and handling



26

Economic environment

Global recession in 2009

German GOP drops 5.0%

Machinery sector in deep crisis

Global economy shrinks 0.8%

Last year was one of the most difficult years for the global economy since World Economic stimulus progrommes

War II At the end of 2008 the real economy crashed in the wake of the banking and running into the billions of euros

overted more severe globol

financial market crisis The downward trend continued at the start of 2009 Fears of
recession in 2009

more bad news from the global financial system crippled the economy Companies

ran down their inventories and sharply curtailed capital spending As result

demand collapsed worldwide

Massive economic stimulus programmes running into the billions worldwide

slowed the collapse Expansionary monetary policy around the globe also had

positive impact Thanks to these measures the recession was not as severe as had

been feared The global economy contracted 0.8% in 2009 compared to 2008

In the USA the government and the Federal Reserve used all means at their disposal

to stave off recession The hard hit real estate market received considerable support

and other sectors also benefited from massive federal stimulus package In addi

tion the Fed flooded the markets with liquidity Thanks to these measures the year-

over-year drop in GDP was just 2.4%

The European economy was hit much harder Countries that depend heavily on

exports like Germany and Italy were especially hard hit by the sharp decline in

international trade The crisis pulled the rug right out from under the economies

of Eastern Europe Spain and Ireland saw their building sectors collapse one of

the most important economic sectors for both countries All told GDP in the euro

zone shrank by around 4% year-over-year in 2009

China was able to sustain its economic growth in 2009 thanks in large part to

massive economic stimulus programme adopted by the Chinese government Never

theless at 8.7% the rate of GOP growth was far slower in 2009 than it had been in

previous years With GDP growth of .6% India was among the few economies that

prospered last year Russias economy on the other hand suffered major setback

Problems in the energy and financial sectors as well as the collapse of foreign invest

ment resulted in g.o% drop in GOP Japans economy did not fare much better Al

though the countrys government also launched comprehensive economic stimulus

programmes GOP nevertheless declined by 5.3% year-over-year

CONSOLIDATED MANAGEMENT EEPOET ECONOMIC ENVIRONMENT
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Change in
gross

domestic product in Euro area vs Germany

Euroarea Germany

17

262

13

108

i0

14

Source Eurostat 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

Germanys economic output declines by 5.0%

Because of its heavy reliance on exports Germanys economy was hit very hard

by the global economic malaise in 2009 Like exports capital spending on machin

ery and industrial equipment also collapsed The countrys economic stimulus

programme benefited public-sector construction and portions of the consumer

economy The most famous federal measure was Germanys ecash for clunkerse

programme which gave passenger car sales an enormous boost Nevertheless

the country still suffered its worst economic slump since the end of World War II

Germanys GDP contracted .o% in 2009

Machinery sector in deep trough

It was already clear at the start of the year that Germanys machinery sector would

slump in 2009 after having enjoyed five-year growth phase But the extent of the

crisis far exceeded early expectations At l5lbn output in 2009 was down 25% from

2008 New orders fell 38% And the number of people employed in the industry

dropped by 34000 to 920000 in 2009

CON5OLIDATEO MANAGEMENT REPORT ECONOMIC ENVIRONMENT
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The market for packaging machinery

KRONES serves the global market for packaging machinery particularly for bever

ages The market lost around one quarter of its 2008 volume shrinking to around

2Obn in the wake of the global economic slump Since demand for packaging

machinery benefits from trends such as steady population growth and increasing

prosperity we expect the market to recover from this slump and once again grow

steadily in the future The highest demand for packaging machinery comes from the

food industry which accounts for around 40% of all the machines delivered The

beverage industry accounts for around 20% The pharmaceutical cosmetics per

sonal care and household chemical industries combined account for another 20%

The remaining 20% of packaging machines
go to other industries such as tobacco

and building materials

For KRONES the beverage industry is the most important market We generated

around 85% of our revenues through business with breweries soft drink producers

and mineral springs in 2009 The other 15% of our revenues came from the sale of

lines and services to companies in the food chemical pharmaceutical and cosmet

ics industries

The global market for packaging

machinery benefits from popula

tion growth in the long term

The
global

market for packaging machinery by application

Pharmaceuticals cosmetics
Other 20%

personal care and household chemicals 20/

Packaged foods 40%

2009 20.3bn Euromonitor own estimates

In 2009 the market volume for

packaging machinery worldwide

shrank by around 25% compared

with 2008 to around 2Obn

CONSOLIDATED MANAGEMENT REPORT ECONOMIC ENVIRONMENT
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Beverage consumption is increasing steadily

Food and drink are basic human needs regardless of economics Despite the eco

nomic crisis estimates are that global consumption of industriallypackaged bever

ages increased 1.9% year-over-year in 2009 to around 905 billion litres This trend is

expected to continue in the years ahead We expect consumption to grow by 2.8% on

average each year from 2009 to 2012

Global consumption of packaged beverages in billions of litres in 2009
Global consumption of industrially

packaged beverages is growing at

almost 3% each year
Carbonated soft drinks csos

202.2 22.4%

hoicveraesI7

6447

2009 904.5bn litres Average annual growth of beverage types

Euromonitor own estimates in upto 2012

Beer beer mixed drinks wine sparkling wine spirits Energy drinks sports drinks tea and coffee

Last year people around the world drank more than 212 billion litres of bottled water

That corresponds to 23.5% of total beverage consumption Water is also one of the

fastest-growing beverage markets Water consumption is likely to increase by 3.9%

on average each year through 2012 This growth will be supported by the trend to

ward flavoured water and functional water

Carbonated soft drinks csDs were the second most popular thirst quencher in 2009

Around 202 billion litres of CSD5 were consumed worldwide which corresponds to

22.4% of total beverage consumption However demand for CSD5 is largely saturated

and consumption will likely grow only slightly in the future

Nearly i8 billion litres of beer were consumed last year so that beer accounts for

one-fifth of total beverage consumption Since beer is becoming increasingly popu

lar especially in China the market is expected to grow by 2.8% on average each year

through 2012 With average growth rates of 2.4% the market for milk and dairy

drinks will maintain its position as the fourth-largest beverage segment for the fore

seeable future Last year the worlds population consumed around 126 billion litres

of packaged milk giving milk 14.0% share of total packaged beverage consump

tion Milk-based drinks are also becoming increasingly popular

cON5OLIDATFO MANAOSMENT REPOeT ecoNoMic ENvIe0NMeNT
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Beverage consumption by region

Packaged beverages 2009 2012

Share of global consumption bn litres bn litres tL
North America/Central America 187.6 20.8 185.8 18.9 0.3

South America 146.1 16.2 163.2 16.6 3.8

Western Europe 132.4 14.6 135.2 13.8 0.7

Asia/Pacific md Japan 130.4 14.4 145.6 14.8 3.7

China 118.8 13.1 149.3 15.2 7.9

Africa/Middle east 56.5 6.3 68.5 7.0 6.6

Central Europe 52.6 5.8 52.9 5.4 0.2

Russia/os 42.7 4.7 42.3 4.3 0.3

Eastern Europe 37.4 4.1 39.2 4.0 1.6

Worldwide 904.5 100.0 982.0 100.0 2.8

Sources Euromonitor own estimates

The Americas make up the largest market for industrially packaged beverages Last

year more than 330 billion litres were consumed there accounting for almost 37% of

consumption worldwide Although demand is picking up sharply in South America

the North American market is already saturated Beverage consumption in the

Americas is expected to grow by i.% on average each year through 2012 just half as

fast as the beverage market as whole The situation is similar in Europe The region

is the second-largest market for industrially packaged beverages with share of

around one-quarter of the total market The fastest-growing region is China Nearly

120 billion litres of industrially packaged beverages were consumed there in 2009

That makes for share of around 13% of total consumption worldwide By 2012 this

figure will likely climb above i%with annual growth rates of almost 8% The Africa

Middle East region is experiencing similarlyrapid growth

PET packaging material with future

Beverages are primarily packaged in plastic glass metal or cartons For long

time glass bottles were the leading packaging material by fat But because glass is

heavy and breakable it is increasingly giving way to plastic especially polyethylene

terephthalate PET

The trend toward PET is driven primarily by cost considerations The amount of

plastic granulate needed to produce PET bottles is steadily decreasing Since packag

ing accounts for the largest share of the costs involved in beverage production it is

becoming increasingly worthwhile for the beverage industry to switch to PET The

lightweight bottles also reduce transport costs

The Americas make up the largest
Annual

market far industrially packaged
growth in

beverages Consumption is growing

the fastest in China

coNsouoAlED MANAGEMENT REPORT ECONOMIC ENVIRONMENT



PS containers can ic made in any shape or siae which gives beverage produc ers Containers made of PET are

wide range
of ossibiiities los distinguishing themsehcs from the Lompetition

lightumght unbreakable and

inexpensive to produce They

Consumers beneht from the tact that s5i bottles are lightweight and not breakable
aie a/SO completely recyclable

also does well orn an envi onmental perspective since PFT bottles are lOO

recyclable KRONFS PT recychi system transforms used plastic bottles into food

grade material thai cars be mad into new bottles

ast year almost 40% of the total volume of beverages ackaged worldwide went

into containers made of Pun ter and cSDs especially re commonly bottled in

plastic Thc fact tht consumpt on of packaged water is Ising sharply will benefit

cs The volume of beverages sckaged in PiT is likely to grow by 3.8% on average

each year from 2009 to Oi2 Ihe corresponding growth rate for glass which is

currently the sc coi ci most popular packaging material with one quarter of the

beverage packagin market xpectc he 1.6% per yea over the same period

Metal cans took th rd place in 2009 with share of 12 6% of the total volume of

indu stri lily pac ka1 cd heveragc followed by car tons with 10 2%While tile volume

of beverages packaced in cans is likely to grow by good 4% cach year through 2012

due to the rapid increase in heci consumption in China he expccted growth rate

los cartons is just 8%

KRONES machines an put bevc rages into plastic and glass containers and metal

cans lhe largest sl are of our Ics revenues comes from machines and lines for

producing and filling Pun bottles

Worldwide the largest share

of beverages is bottled/n PET

Otter 9% containers

Cans 120%

Car uris 10 2% am
383

2.8%

Glass 24.9%

16/a

38.4

Sour Euromonitor own estimates Average annual giowth at packaging types

in aupto 2012
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Eastern Europe

Eastern Europeans also love beer With share of almost 30% of total beverage

consumption in $009 beer was far more popular in tile region than bottled water

23.5% But beer consumption is not likely to grow considerably in the years to come

Consumption of bottled water on tile other hand is expected to increase by almost

4% annually This will further consolidate pevs lead among packaging materials in

Eastern Europe East year PET containers accounted for 43.3% of all industrially pack

aged beverages Since beer is primarily bottled in glass glass bottles have share of

almost 30% of tha beverage packaging market in Eastern Europe
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If you want to produce beverages

of impeccable quality you need

dependable st aff and reliable pro

duction equipment at every stage

of your value chain KRONES delivers

the highest quality products and

services



KRONES in figures

Recession squ ezns sales lj70t to 18649m

iasoNrs posts to of 343m

KR0Nt5 has very sohd financial base

Sates drop 2L7% to 18649m

In 2009 the ditlicult economic mv ironment took toll on KRONSS business The The globol economic crisis took

wak economy prompted comp isles in the internationa ood and beverage sector
toll on KRONSS business in 2009

to cut back sharply on capitil sp nding As the market as whole contracted price

quality detes iorated Banks relu Aance to lend made it more difficult for companies

lo fsninc mayor capital invectm mis All told sales were down 217% year on year

to 1864 9111

The market volume clevant to nnors shiank by arounc i5% in oog We were

able to gain market hare in voop because more companies chose to work with solid

reli ible providers dc sing the economic downturn KRON1S sales were gratifyingly

high in Africa and China By con cast business was weak in 2009 in the USA and

regions that bad suf ered sharf economic slump such as Western and Eastern

Furopc

cccNcs ou
2181

2156

1911 1868

165

2008 2006 2001 2008 2009

Sates by segment

In our laigesl segmen nMachines and lines for product filling and decorationis So/es were down in oil three

sales declined 227% to i5118m ii 2009 The segment contributed 8i 1% of consoli of CRONES segments

dated sales Sales in the smachines and lines for beverage production/process
tech

nologys segment dropped ii6h tc 274.im and accounted for 147% of consolidated

sales aMa hines and sues for the low output ranges 1108Mb is our smallest seg

inent contributing of overal sales in 2009 It saw sales fall 110% in aoog to

/9om



Mach nes and hos

for product Hhn

nd corat

81 1% %-i

MacRoes and lees

boversge oduction/

pocess techrology

14.7/u 214 tm

Mach ics and anes

IOF the low

output ringe Kosws
4.2% 190 11

Sales in 2009 864 9m

MachF res and hoes

for pnduct fill ng

and decoi iton

83.33/ 1982 Mi

Machines and hoes

for bcverage production

process fr rhnology

13 43 tO Ow

Mach ncs and hnes

for the low

output ange Kosme
31 688 8w

Salco 2008 2381.4w

Further it formation can be/bund in the section eReports from the segmentse which

begins on page 48 and under esegment reportingn in the notes to the consolidated

financial statements on page g8

Sales by region

Sales in termany were down 362o lii 2009 compared with last 9ear trans 6299.9m

to 191 The sharp economic slump in Germany took its toll on our business

Invoice timing also conti ibuted to the steep drop in sales here S3les ci Germany

accounted toe 10 2% of total consolidated sales in 2009 previous year 12 6%

In the rest ot Europe sales shrank 40.6% year over year tot 964 gin in 2009

previous year 9506in Ihe biggest drop came in regions that suffered massive

economo slump in 2009 particularly the counti ies ot Eastern Europe Our business

cont ractcd sharply in 2009 in Russia too where KRONI sales had growis rapidly

in the yrs prc-eding the economic crisis Sales in Europe excluding Germany

accounted for 30.3% of total sales in 2009 previous year 39.9%

CINF our sLyrcn

Germany
132

Rest ot the wo Id 59 5/o

Cernan126%

turope

cxci Germany

399

Rest of the world 47 5%

KRONLS ratio of exports to tnt0

sates wac 89.8% i2009

Furope

cxci Germany
30

Sales 02039 8649w Sues 2008 38t 4m



Sales developed far better outside Luiopc Although KRONIS had landed many
laree scale projects outside LUrODe during the hnorn yeirs Y009 ate were only

do vu from 2008 high total 01 Ti io 9m to t11o8.7rn The reason for this is

that business went very well in Atrica the Middle last and China By contr ist sales

in North and South Anicrica were much slowei than last ycai All told KRONLS gen

er stecl gy ol onsolidated sales outsidc urope in 2009 previous year 17.500

Sates by industry

Sal to producc rs of soft di inks bottled water and juices dropped 26.i% from

1169 in 2008 to 864 jm in 2009 Due to the glot ii economic crisis the high

demand from the hot tIed iter industry did not continue in 2009 as it had in the

preceding years Sale to companies in he nonalcoholic beverage scctor accounted

for 46 ol consolidatcd sales in 2oc9 win is is down from 4950 in 2008

Sales companies in the salcoholic beveragese sector declined 1190 to 720.7m

previous year 817 401 Were it not for several larger orders from producers and

bottlers of beer in tirica the drop in sales 1112009 would have bcen even steeper

ylcoholic bcvcrages share of consohdated sales grew from to 4.2 to 38

In the ncnheac
rage sectois Lad .hamic1s plsarmaccticals and cusissetics

KRONFS includes sales to the growing dairy industry under efood In 2009 the

non hew rage sector were not able to escape the eltects ol the economic crisis

Kisoni sales in this area detei iorated 29 ioo to 280 mi pres ious year 394 9m
and accountcd for

i5 io of onsolidated sales previous ycar 16 6c

.c et by outy

CR05513 gcn rated 8500 of its sales

with ompcsnses in tte beverage

ndu
try

in 2009

Sic at bevejagcs 39

food cbs ss its

phsr aceuflcs

cc is eta 15

Non alcoholsc beverages

Alcoholic beve ages 34/a

load chemsc ds

pha rm aceutsca Is

cosmetics L7/

Non aldohoid bveraggs

39/

Sales i2009 1864 Ore Sc OS fl 20082 30 4rn



New orders and orders on hand 41

New orders down 17.6%
year-over-year

Because of the poor economic outlook many companies put off capital investments

or cut them entirely For this reason new orders at KRONES were down sharply in

the first six months of 2009 compared with the year-earlier period Demand for our

products and services started to pick up in the third quarter This was due in part to

our excellent showing at the drinktec trade fair the most important fair for the bev

erage industry worldwide In the fourth quarter of 2009 the total volume of new

orders received exceeded the total for the same period of the previous year by 10.0%

In particular we had surge of orders from China in the period from October to

December On the whole new orders were down 17.6% in 2009 to 1916.Om

By region orders intake was good in China and Africa Moreover capital investment

among our customers in Central and Western Europe and South America began to

pick up over the course of the year Demand in the us and Eastern Europe remained

weak all year

KRONES Group new orders in

2300 2326

1967

Orders on hand total 888.5m at the end of 2009

At 31 December 2009 KRONES had an orders backlog of 888.5m Thus orders

on hand were up 6.1% from the previous year The orders backlog grew by around

Ioom in the second half of 2009

KRONES Group orders on hand in

1000
891

837 889

691

11111
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

After very weak orders intake

in the
first

six months new orders

picked up over the remainder of

2009

2000

1500

1000

500

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

CONSOLIDATED MANAGEMENT REPORT KRONES IN FIGURES



42 KRONES Group earnings

Volume and prices dropped especially sharply in the first half of 2009 Although

comprehensive set of measures enabled us to save more than 140m KEONES is

nevertheless posting net loss for fiscal 2009

The companys total operating revenue shrank 22.7% in 2009 to 1857.5m This

was steeper than the drop in sales 21.7% from 2008 because of slight decrease in

inventories of finished goods and works in progress

Expenses for goods and services purchased including external personnel declined

20.6% from 1255.4m to 996.2m in 2009 This figure dropped 30.7% to 171.9m in

2009 because we eliminated most of our temporary employment positions which

once numbered around 900 during the reporting period The ratio of
expenses

for

goods and services purchased to total operating revenue was 53.6% in 2009 previ

ous year 52.2%

KRONES maintained its core workforce despite the temporary slump in sales For

this reason personnel expenses declined only 7.0% compared to 2008 to 615 3m
The ratio of personnel expenses to total operating revenue rose from 27.5% in 2008

to 33.1% in 2009 but improved markedly from mid-year onward We introduced

short-time working schemes in which the government partly compensates employ

ees for the reduced working hours in many departments in the second half of the

2009 This and the fact that employees went without performance-based elements

of their pay resulted in savings

Other operating expenses declined by 35.8m to 348.2m largely as result of our

Conversion programme

KRONES reacted quickly to the

economic slump and launched

Conversiorn which saved the

company some 140m in 2009

inm 2009 2008 Change

Sales revenues 1864.9 2381.4 21.7%

Changes in inventories of finished goods and work in progress 7.4 22.6

Total operating revenue 1857.5 2404.0 22.7%

Goods and services purchased 996.2 1255.4 20.6%

Personell expenses 615.3 661.4 7.0%

Other operating income expenses and own work capitalised 216.0 278.6 22.5%

EBITDA 300 208.6 85.6%

Depreciation amortisation and write downs

on non-current assets 59.6 51.0 16.9%

EBIT 29.6 157.6

Financial income expense 9.6 1.5

EBT 39.2 156.1

Income tax 4.7 49.6

Net income loss 34.5 106.5

CONSOLIDATED MANAGEMENT REPORT KRONES IN FIGURES
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KRONES Group EBITDA and EBIT

Earnings before interest taxes depreciation and amortisation EBITDA shrank

from 208.6m in 2008 to 30.om in 2009 The EBITDA margin the ratio of EBITDA

to consolidated sales worsened from 8.8% to 1.6% The figure for depreciation and

amortisation of intangible assets and property plant and equipment reflects the fact

that KRONES invested heavily in capital assets over the past several years At 59.6m

depreciation and amortisation of intangible assets and property plant and equip

ment for 2009 was up 16.9% on the previous years figure of 51.om As result

earnings before interest and taxes EBIT were negative at 29.6m previous year

157.6m

KRONES Group EBITDA in

208.6

197.8

200

157.8

KRONES Group EBT

An impairment on non-current financial assets cut into financial income in 2009 Earnings before taxes fell

This one-time effect with no impact on liquidity resulted in net financial expense
from 156.lm to 39.2m

of 9.6m although interest income was positive Earnings before taxes EBT fell

from 156.lm in 2008 to 39.2m in 2009

KRONES Group EBT in

153.6 156.1---

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

CRONES Group EBIT in

136

iiiI

151.1

150.2

150

108.0

29.6

30.0 50

II1IIIIi
----------- --------

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
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EBT was sharply negative in each of the first three quarters of 2009 Adjusted for the

one-time writedown on non-current financial assets fourth-quarter EBT was slightly

positive o.9m

KRONES Group net income loss

Because earnings were negative the company recognised tax income of 4.7m in Due to the global economic crisis

2009 That is why the consolidated net loss at 34.5m is slightly better than EBT KRONES generated loss of 34.5m

In 2008 the group had achieved net income of 1o6.5m
for2009

CRONES Group net income in

106.5

101.8

1Lu 775

iI 1j5

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

Earnings per
share

KRONES capital stock is divided among 31593072 shares Because the company

bought back 1425421 shares now treasury shares in 2009 the weighted average of

shares in circulation is 30678043 Thus the loss per share for fiscal 2009 amounts

to 1.13 In 2008 the company achieved earnings per share of 3.39

CRONES Group earnings per share in

3.2S

2.45

2.00

ii

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
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Consolidated cash flow

inm 2009 2008 Change

EBT 39.2 156.1 195.3

Cash flow from operating activities 169.7 183.8 14.1

Cash flow from investing activities 87.2 105.4 18.2

Free cash flow 82.5 78.4 4.1

Cash flowfrom financing activities 58.0 23.9 34.1

Net change in cash and cash equivalents 24.5 54.5 30.0

Other changes in cash and cash equivalents 2.6 0.1 2.5

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the fiscal year 108.4 53.8 54.6

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the fiscal year 135.5 108427.1

Although KRONES earnings before taxes deteriorated from 156.lm in 2008 to KR0NES has improved its working

39.2m in 2009 cash flow from operating activities was 169.7m previous year
capitol management considerably

183.8m Our working capital management contributed significantly here reducing
in recent years

the balance of inventories receivables and other assets by ul.2m in 2009 previous

year increase of 46.om 145.6m increase in advance payments received from

customers for several large orders also contributed to the companys good cash flow

from operations

KRONES Group cash flowfrom operating activities in

183.8

169.7

104.3

869

624

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

KRONES invested 88.2m in intangible assets and in property plant and equipment

PPE in 2009 which was 23.7m less than the previous year Considerable funds

were still going into the expansion of our technology centre in Neutraubling in 2008

This work was completed in 2009 KRONES increased its shareholding in the subsid

iary KOSME from 70% to 100% in March 2009

KR0NES capital expenditure for PPE and
intangible assets in

111.9

97.5

88.2

783 777

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
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Despite the tense earnings situation free cash flow that is cash flow from operat- Despite posting net loss ICRONES

ing activities less total capital expenditure improved from 78.4m the previous
generated S2.5m in free cash flow

in 200g

year to 82.5m in 2009

In June 2009 KRONES paid out total dividend of i8.im to its shareholders for fiscal

2008 previous year 22.lm In addition the company repurchased around i.mof

its own shares for total of 37.lm on the stock market during the reporting period

KRONES Group dividend payout in

22.1

20 16.9
18.1

13.7
14.7

2_0

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

Taking into account changes due to exchange rates KRONES cash and cash equi

valents were up from 1o8.4m at the end of 2008 to 135.5m at the end of 2009

KRONES Group cash and cash equivalents in

250 135.5

108.4

icc

56.5 57.7
53.8

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
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Assets and capital structure

inm 2009 2008 2007 2005

Non-currentassets 542 534 475
430j

403

of which property plant and equipment

intangible assets and non-current financial

assets 496 482 422 374 357

Current assets 1248 1291 1209 1042 880

of which cash and equivalents 136 108 54 58 57

Equity 696 790 708 629 572

Total debt 1094 1035 976 843 711

Non-current liabilities 125 144 155 147 155

Current liabilities 969 891 821 696 556

Total assets 1790 1825 1684 1472 1283

Although business volume had contracted more than 20% KRONES total assets ICRONES hod net cash and cash

at 31 December 2009 were down just less than 2% from the 2008 reporting date
equivalents of 135.5m at the

reporting date far 2009
to 1790.5m At the end of 2009 KRONE5 had non-current assets totalling 542.5m

31 December 2008 5343m The carrying amount of property plant and equip

ment intangible assets and financial assets totalled 495.8m up 2.9% from the pre

vious year 482.om The carrying amount of property plant and equipment was

407.4m previous year 3867m Development costs that must be capitalised

account for the lions share of the intangible assets which amounted to 86.im on

the reporting date for 2009 previous year 79.8m

Current assets were down 3.3% at the end of 2009 to 124om Inventories de

creased by 46.7m to 52t9m Current trade receivables declined by 7o.8m to

458.3m The measures implemented in recent years to optimise working capital

management therefore continued to bear fruit The ratio of working capital to sales

improved from 27.6% to 22.5% Other assets which consist primarily of advance

payments made and tax receivables rose from 79.7m to 127.Om Although KRONES

spent 37.lm to buy its own shares and paid out dividends totalling 18 am the

company still had cash and cash equivalents totalling 135.5m at the end of the fiscal

year 31 December 2008 1084m

Reasons for the year-over-year decrease in equity in 2009 from 7gaom to 695.7m

include the negative consolidated earnings figure as well as the share buyback pro

gramme since the funds used to purchase the shares were deducted from equity

Our equity ratio was 38.9% at the reporting date 31 December 2008 43.3% Adjusted

for the effect of the share buyback the equity ratio was 40.1%

KRONES non-current liabilities decreased from 1441m to 125.Om The biggest

items within this figure are provisions for pensions 76.8m and other provisions

37.7m which were essentially recognised for long-term personnel obligations

The company had no non-current bank debt at 31 December 2009

Current liabilities increased from 891.om to 9698m in 2009 primarily due to

sharp increase in advance payments received from customers for large orders in

2009 KRONES had no current bank debt at the end of 2009

CONSOLIDATED MANAGEMENT EEPOIST KEONES IN FIGUEES
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Product fhng and decoraton

this is KRON1 con business arc and by lar its largest segment offering machines

and cornplet liocs fm filling pack Iging LihcIlinq and moving products

Segment revenues

In 2009 sales in machines end lines for produ filling and decoretione our core Solec rn outrace iigrrnt

scginent dcclined 23.7% to Li ir.8m previous year 9826rn Oem end for corn ord21

plete filling lines slumped es the intcrnational beveragc industry cut capital spend

ing in the wake of he global economic crisis Our plasfics division which produce

machines and lines for producing filling and packaging ut hottl contrihutcd the

largest hare of segrncnt sales this segment accounted for 81 Oo of consolidated

salts at KRON1 previc us year 83 3%

mcny Germany

163 4m 324 241 6rn

urope Europe

Cxdi many cxci Len is

4609xi402 6771Cm

OLhe egons Otternrgions

887 Cm 969/rn

Ca cc 2009 513 8cr in 2008 982 Sm

percenta5e changc on prcvious year

Segment earnings

eMachines and lint br product filling end decorationr saw earnings before taxes

srn drop from 154 in 2008 to 419 5m in 2009 aenerelly poor price quality

and the fact that our production capacities were riot fully utihsed during the report

ing eriod cut into segment earnings one time writedown sce page 43 also de

tiacted from earnings in our core scgrnent lice SOT margin thi ratio of earnings be

fore taxes to sales was 1.3o in 2009 prcvious year 7.8

loin Is ci is to tax rd tivc ile

8/
/8
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aver age tion/process te oky

Ihis segir ent includes brewhouse and filtration technology i.e brewing technology

as Well as pasteusisatiun teLhnology tquipineait sad foa treating sensitive lresrer

ages such as milk and for producing dairy thinks and fruit juices fall under the seg

ment eheverage production/process technologye KR0NFS internal logistics division

offers systems and services that enabti companies to make allot their material flows

more efficient

Segment revenues

Sales in the segment emachines and lines for beverage production/process tech Soles were down 114%/n the

rintogyc totalted 8274 110 10 2000 down Ii h% from the previous year 310 om process technology segment

After the year got off to weak start business in the segment improved increasingly

in the second half due in part to invoice timing In particular there was strong

demand for brewhouses and other process technology products from breweries in

Africa Ih segnients share of total sales grew from 13 0% last year 1014 7%

Germany Germany

26.2m 52 g% 5S3m

Jr

turope Eu ape

exd Germany cxci Germany

8569m 489% 1114m

Other
regions

Other reoons

191 Om 433 I/o 1433m

Saiei in 200% 8214 im Sales in 2008 lOOm

percent ige chinge on evmus year

Segment earnings

Earnings before taxes in the rimachines and lines for beverage production/

process technologye segment fell to i49m in 2009 from ifS in 2008 In order

to substantially improve our results in this segment which were impacted by an

unfavourable product mix in 2009 KRONFS intends to insource more portions of

the value chain The LB margin dropped from in 2008 to 4% in 2009

00
05

19

54

2001 zOOb 2007 2008 2009



low utput rane K0SME

Our subsidiary KOSMF offers product iange similar to that of our emachines

on liiiex foi pioduct filling cud decora ion scgnientci but for les deiiiandirig

applications KOSMI serves customers with smaller operations which perfcctly

complements KRONFS highend core husincss

Segment revenues

In our smallest sepmerit emachines an lines for the lower output range KOSMFe

sales wei down ii oo to 79 om previous year 88mn With that figure KOSMF

fared better than the market as whole KOSMF benefited from comparativcly strong

demand fur individual ma hines which was not hit as hard by the economic cricic

demand for complete lines KOSMF contributed 291 of consolidated sales previous

year

nut

Celmarly Cermany

17m 433/ ______
6/Urn

Luiopc Europe

cxct Geimany cxc c1errnany

4Iim 306% t6/9m

Othe
regic

cit Othei eoont

30 3m 16886 t17.9m

Salet ci 2009 79Cm Sales ci 7008 4888m

peicentage change on previous year

Segment earnings

KR0NI increased its shareholding in KOSME to soo% in early 2009 In the piocess KOSML erirnnys before toxcs

the company received new man 3gement and was restructured with the aim ol mak slipped to 64 Sm 102009

ing production more efficient In part hen ause these measures did not develop their

lull effects in 2009 the segment eainings before taxes were -48m previous

year O.im the resulting FBI margin is 6i% previous year 2o

40

20

02

OOS 2006 200/ 2008 2009
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Research and development RD 51

Focus on efficient whole-plant solutions

Many innovations unveiled at drinktec 2009

Because KRONES is technology-driven company research and development plays KRONES invests substantially in RD

key role We invest substantially in RD The innovative power and technological
in order to continually develop new

products and technologies

edge that this investment gives us helps to secure our company future Around 350

people are charged with strategic development tasks at KRONES In addition some

1350 employees help ensure that KRONES is able to provide its customers with prod

ucts and services that are continually improving

KRONES primary RD objectives are

To reduce the total cost of ownership Tco for our customers

To reduce the complexity of our machines and systems

To enable our customers to utilise their production capacities

even more efficiently

Customers are now concerned not only with the one-time cost of acquiring equip

ment but with the total cost of ownership Tco That is the ongoing costs associated

with operating line KRONES addresses these concerns by continually evolving our

product development and production processes The enviro programme launched in

2008 has made significant contribution toward lowering TCO We continued to pro

mote enviro in 2009 The programme also earned TOy SÜD certification in 2009

Products bearing the enviro seal consume less energy and materials e.g water and

gas than comparable machines Last year the Contiform stretch blow moulder the

Starmodul labeller with Contiroll labelling station the Volumetic VODM series of

fillers and the Robobox pack collating system earned the enviro seal

systematic approach to success

Innovative machines and lines alone are no longer enough to meet customers needs

The key to making beverage production more efficient is to integrate process engi

neering filling and packaging and materials flow technology into complete sys

tem That is why our RD work is focused on whole-plant integration To achieve this

task we need sophisticated information technology IT in addition to our powerful

machines and lines KRONES invests considerable time and money in IT develop

ment Our software is already capable of deriving entire processes from our custom

ers ERP systems And that enables us to make all processes extremely efficient from

raw materials receiving to beverage production to delivery of the finished product

CONSOLIDATED MANAGEMENT EEPORT RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT



nnovations in 2009

KRONES has applied for large number of patents over the past several years Due to

the long processing times at the patent offices this will not begin to he reflected in

the number of registered patents until 2010 In 2009 alone the company applied for

490 patents At the end of 2009 KRONES had more than 1600 registered patents and

utility models We unveiled numerous innovative machines and lines in the drink

tec year 2009

In process engineering KRONES put the new Hydrononiic water treatment system

on the market The heart of the water treatment plant is reverse osmosis system

that rids water of unwanted substances Hydronomics reverse osmosis system is

designed to use very little energy water and chemical cleaning agents As an added

benefit Hydroniomic can be linked to KeoNes line documentation system LOS This

system automatically alerts the operator in plenty of time when servicing is needed

for example when the diaphragm needs cleaning

KRONES new flash pasteuriser VarioFlash is specifically designed to meet the

needs of smaller and nlidsized breweries variety of methods are used to extend

the shelf life of beverages One is flash pasteurisation The temperature and duration

of the pasteurisation process are key to this process Varioflash is versatile and

protects the beverages flavour extremely well

KEONES unveiled the ErgoBloc bloc solution for the wet section of the line that

unites stretch blowmoulder labeler and filler This compact system produces

labels fills and caps PET containers One of ils core elements is completely new

type of drive and control technology which made this bloc configuration possible in

the first place Optimised material flows make the ErgoBloc more efficient than

conventional lines Additional benefits include new operating concept and space

savings The ErgoBloc is engineered to handle up to 45000 containers per hour

and can be used for still and carbonated beverages alike

Vanioline is newly developed extremely versatile packaging system that can

handle multiple levels of packaging It can be configured to combine primary and

secondary packaging runs For instance it can group loose containers such as glass

or PET bottles or cans into multipacks and then put them into plastic crates collaps

ible cartons or wraparound cartons Varioline is modular system It can handle

wide variety of packaging depending on the combination and number of modules

used In addition to being highly versatile Vanioline also features small footprint

that saves precious space in our customers plants

Hydronomicpr vid ff1 nt

Wa at tthehigh

ye/of quality

CRONES has synch ronised stretch

blow moulder labeller and filler in

the new ErgoBloc

CRONES Var/al/ne is compact

extremely versa tile packaging line
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Becausi of he growing irnpor tance customers place on total cost of ownership

KRONES AG business strategy makes rcs an integral part of our entire new macbin

cry busin us

KRONLS customers want to make optimal use of their lines capacities substantially

lower the production costs increase pioduct quality and ensure the highest stan

da of bygi po and satet

In order to meet our customers high expectations KRONLS has bundled all of its

maintenance and repair services modular serviccs spare parts and change parts

training and sofi ware into single division aIled ifecyc Ic Service cc the divi

sion employs more than i800 highly qualified people all working to ensure that

KRONFS customers receive conspneherisive range of topquality services no matt

when or here they need them Oui customers can put together their own custom

ised servi program to match their needs In add tion we offer our customers corn

plete service over the entire life of their machines and lines

he number ot custorneis ordering in house overhauls and replacement of entire

functional assemblies increased last year ndcr the in house option from ICS cus

tomnc rs sc nd complete assemblies to KRONI and we repair and maintenance them

iii oui facility speeds maintenance work and requires fewer service technicians

on site both of which mean lower costs tom the customer

RONL5 cs offers ornprchensve

rongc of produc and services



KINES LCS portfoUo

tcs Services

OnSite Traditional maintenance and repair at the customers plant

Productivity We use state-ofthe-art analysis methods to optimise lines

and make them more cost-effective

Support Rapid response in emergencies with 24/7 hothne and remote

maintenance

Training Customer-oriented training for line operating and maintenance

personnel

Design All-around service for designing new PET containers

LCS Parts Software

OriginaiSpares We deliver original KaoNns spare parts and spare parts

refurbished by KNONE5 quickly and reliably and in the highest quality

Retrofitting Fast efficient retrofitting of lines We boost machine productivity

by incorporating newly developed components or control programs

Consumables High-quality materials that ensure optimum machine

performance pius labelling adhesives from um KRONES

SoftTools Software that records and analyses variety of machine data to

ensure early detection of maintenance needs

iors is expanding its internationa service network

KRONES Service Centres which are positioned strategically around the world are

an important part of our ics business They serve as central support bases for our

more than 40 subsidiaries We have invested heavily in building and growing our

Service Centres in recent years to ensure that our customers have access to top-

quality service

The rcs portfolio is modular

concept Customers can pick and

choose individual elements to

create their own customised service

programme

trsoiis currently has seven Service

Centres around the world They

serve as central sup port hoses for

the companys Lfecycle Service

business
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KRONES not only expanded some of its existing Centres in 2009 We also opened

new Centre in Tver Russia for the Russia/us sales region Adding this to the Centres

in Neutraubling Germany Region Europe Franklin Wisconsin USA Region North

America Sªo Paulo Brazil Region South America Taicang China Region China

Johannesburg South Africa Region Africa and Bangkok Thailand Region Asia

Pacific KRONES now has seven Service Centres

KRONES Academy

The KRONES Academy is an integral part of Lifecycle Service It is there that we train More than 50 quo jfled troiners

both management and operating personnel of our customers on the operation of
teach our customers management

and operating personnel in KRONE5

KRONES machines and lines in practical training courses In this way we ensure that
Academy courses

operating personnel have sound mastery of our lines and can use them to achieve

the highest performance The Academy has more than 50 qualified trainers who of

fer instruction at our headquarters in Neutraubling Germany as well as at numer

ous international training centres around the globe In 2009 the Academy expanded

its portfolio to include training package entitled KRONES Automation Engineere

In this practical training course we teach participants how to solve problems more

quickly and minimise machine downtimes Last year 9388 people attended KRONES

Academy courses

KRONES academytraining course participants

8520 8740
9370

8000

4000

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

10307
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KRONE5 weathers the crisis without layoffs

The companys primary aim for 2009 was to maintain its core workforce and avoid

layoffs Thanks to variety of measures such as shorGtime working schemes in

which the government partly compensates employees for reduced working hours

partial retirement options and flexible working hours we achieved this important

goal Nevertheless the number of employees at KRONES declined in 2009 for the first

time in many years as we lost employees to attrition The new total for 2009 was

10238

At KRONES we continue to do everything within our means to hold on to our highly

qualified and dedicated employees Although this farsighted personnel policy is

cutting into earnings right now we know that we need motivated employees who

are not fearful of losing their iobs to produce and sell the quality of products and

services that KRONUS customers are used to

Empkryees by refine

All KRONES employees have the education and training they need to handle the

demanding tasks their work erltails Almost all of our people in Germany possess

recognised professional or vocational qualifications The proportion of university

graduates in our workforce is growing steadily and is now 16.4%

Emp%yeequatflcations iGy KRQNE3 workfarce is superbly

trained

154% Unbeer/ty degree 150%_Un/er/by deyee

2009 2008

Tota Germany Out/dc Germany

10333
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L_.

2006 2007 2008

073

222% Gommer/a

ape/a ists/techn /ans/

master craftsmen

61.4% GueSSed
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222/ comrnerca
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Human resources development and continuing education

The HR department works hard to provide employees with regular continuing edu- We believe it is important to offer

interdisciplinary development
cation and development opportunities Apart from qualification measures relating

opportunities

to specific fields we are also increasingly offering interdisciplinary and intercultural

training opportunities such as classes on presentation techniques and language

courses

The number of internal seminars increased considerably during the reporting

period Since the start of 2009 employees have been able to find out about all the

training and development courses offered by KRONES on the SAP training portal

Courses are held on more than ioo subjects in number of different technical areas

In 2009 some 6700 employees participated in internal 3458 and external 3241

training and development opportunities

Good training is worthwhile investment even in difficult times

Offering top-quality vocational and professional training is essential for maintain

ing qualified workforce KRONES currently offers vocational training options that

prepare young people outstandingly well for careers in 25 different fields Every year

we invest between 65000 and 70000 in each of our young trainees

Number of trainees starting at KRONES AG

Starting trainees Trainees total

527

497

451

381

jjj1Jj

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

flONES is demanding when it comes to selecting trainees Of the 1600 or so school

leavers who applied to train with us in 2009 we invited around 600 to field-specific

employment tests Half of those were then invited to an on-site interview an oppor

tunity to convince us of their abilities When the selection process was complete

136 young people began training with KRONES in the fall of 2009

KRONES was training 527 young people in Germany at the end of 2009 That puts

our training rate at very respectable s% Because of the difficult economic situa

tion KRONES issued 12-month employment contracts instead of permanent con

tracts to trainees who successfully completed their training in 2009 It was the first

time we had done that in many years

CONSOLIDATED MANAGEMENT eEPORT EMPLOYEES



KRONE5 collaborates with colleges and universities

It is important for companies to ensure access to the best and brightest employees

early on For years KRONE5 has been working closely with universities and organis

ing range of events at which budding engineers and scholars can learn about the

careers and opportunities available at the company

good example of this is our close long-standing collaboration with the University

of Applied Sciences in Regensburg and the University of Regensburg KRONES gives

the next generation of scientists insight into industrial practice through practical

semesters and thesis-writing opportunities In May 2009 for instance 20 students

from the University of Applied Sciences in Regensburg presented the results of their

research on the topic of optimisation in assembly and filling technologys The re

sults after six months of work were impressive They yielded considerable improve

ments to individual processes and productivity in practice

More information on the topic of employees is in our 2009 Sustainability Report

which can be found online at www.krones.com

CONSOLIDATED MANAGEMENT REPORT EMPLOYEES
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Doing business sustainably has always been an important part of KR0NES corporate

strategy For KRONES sustainability management means using resources efficiently

and prudently and ensuring that our actions are socially responsible Long-standing

mutually supportive relationships with our business partners are more important

to us than opportunities to maximise profit in the short term Economically difficult

times such as these accentuate the importance of maintaining good relationships

with customers suppliers employees and shareholders

In the KRONES Groups corporate guidelines the group and its employees have

defined common values and committed to act sustainably and responsibly At

flONES we dont merely put these shared values to paper Every one of our

employees lives by them

Corporate guidelines

We go about our business in sustainable socially responsible manner

We stand for excellent quality and technological leadership in our market

We owe our success to our workforce

We are committed to using resources economically while always providing

the highest quality

We safeguard the health and safety of our employees

Our production operations are eco-friendly

We do business for the long term and we do it transparently

At KRONES sustainability has always been considered an opportunity And we used The enviro sustainability pro-

many such opportunities in 2009 An important milestone was the certification of gramme and our sustainobility

report both received rOy silo

our enviro sustainability programme by Tuv SUD This independent certification

certification
in 2009

enables KRONES to award the enviro seal for efficient use of energy and media gas

water and environmental friendliness In addition KRONES enviro pass offers

customers high level of transparency so they can compare the consumption data

of different machines Customers from around the world showed great interest in

our enviro certified products at the 2009 drinktec

Last but not least our 2008 Sustainability Report was certified by TUV SÜD in 2009

This was the first time we had the report certified

Further interesting information on the topic of sustainability can be found in our

2009 Sustainability Report which has also been certified by TUV SÜD It is available

online at www.krones.com
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Risks identified on an ongoing basis

Efficient control and management tools

Risk management system is always evolving

KRONES is exposed to large number of risks that are inextricably linked with

doing business globally We continuously monitor all significant business processes

to identify risks early and to actively manage and limit them An internal control

system with which we record analyse and assess all relevant risks is an integral part

of KRONaS risk management system We monitor all material risks and any counter

measures already taken in detailed ongoing process that entails planning infor

mation and control We are continually expanding and improving our risk manage

ment system on the basis of practical experience The system consists of the follow

ing modules risk analysis risk monitoring and risk planning and control

Risk analysis

In order to identify risks early we continuously monitor all business activities

We conduct profitability analysis on all of our quotes before accepting any order

For orders that exceed specified volume we also conduct multi-dimensional risk

analysis Apart from profitability we also individually record and evaluate financing

risks technological risks and scheduling and other contractual risks before accept

ing an order Thus risk management at KRONES begins before risks arise

To manage risks that arise from changes in the market and competitive situation we

create detailed market and competition analyses for all segments and business areas

on regular basis In addition we conduct comprehensive risk inventory every

year for KRONES AG and all significant group companies This risk inventory leads to

corresponding measures and actions to reduce risk The basic principles and process

are documented in our risk policy The risk management system serves not only the

purpose mandated bylaw of detecting early those risks that could jeopardize the

companys survival but also covers all risks that can have significant negative im

pact on earnings

KRONES takes proactive approach

to managing risks We use an inter

nal system to continuously monitor

and control all
significant

business

processes
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Risk monitoring

We use variety of interlinked controlling processes to monitor risks within the

KRONES Group Regular comprehensive reports from the individual business units

keep the Executive Board and other decision-makers apprised of all possible risks

and deviations from company planning in timely manner For high-volume proj

ects potential risks are examined and evaluated in regular meetings Employees

who identify risks pass their information on promptly through the companys

internal reporting system

Risk planning and control

We use the following tools to plan our business activities and control risk within

our internal control system

Annual planning

Medium-term planning

Strategic planning

Rolling forecasts

Monthly and quarterly reports

Capital expenditure planning

Production planning

Capacity planning

Project controlling

Accounts receivable management

Exchange rate hedges

Insurance policies

Risk management organisation

At KRONE5 risk management is formally part of Controlling It is here that all rele

vant information comes together to be processed and converted into management

tool for the Executive Board In addition the various segments and business units

also have risk management officers who are responsible for risk management This

includes identifying and reporting risks as well as introducing and implementing

measures to actively control risks

Risk controlling

We continually assess discuss and document operational and financial risks The

effectiveness of countermeasures that have been implemented is also monitored in

controlling processes throughout the year Apart from new orders orders on hand

and sales we also look at all types of expenditures in cash flow and material compo

nents of our current assets and the statement of financial position We use the fig

ures to assess risks related to ongoing operations and options with respect to future

projects
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Key features of the internal control system and the risk management

system as relates to accounting and financial reporting

KRONES has an internal control and risk management system for accounting and

financial reporting processes to ensure that all business transactions are always cor

rectly recorded processed accounted for and recognised in the financial statements

KRONE5 internal control and risk management system comprises all principles

methods and measures to ensure that the companys accounting and financial

reporting are effective efficient and proper and in compliance with all relevant

regulations and standards

The key features of KRONES internal control and risk management system relating

to group accounting and financial reporting can be described as follows

The KRONES Group has clear management and corporate structure Key duties

that reach across various units are centrally managed

The duties of the units that are materially involved in accounting and financial

reporting processes are explicitly segregated and responsibilities are clearly

assigned

Regular reviews and audits are conducted within the various units primarily

by Controlling

Standard software is used for accounting and financial reporting as far as

possible

Special security precautions protect the software and IT systems used for

accounting and financial reporting against unauthorised access

Sufficient binding policies e.g for payments and travel expenses are in place

and updated on an ongoing basis

All of the departments involved in the accounting and financial reporting

process have suitably qualified staff

Regular spot checks are used to continuously verify the completeness and

accuracy of our accounting data The software used also performs programmed

plausibility checks

We use dual verification for all accounting-related processes
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Risk categories

Financial risks

Information relating to IFRS Financial Instruments Disclosures

Because of regional and customer-related diversification there is no material con

centration of risk relating to the following risk categories

Default risk

Default risk is the maximum risk potential arising from each individual

position among the financial instruments at the reporting date Any existing

hedges are not taken into account

1.1 Trade receivables

Credit risk is the threat of economic loss arising from customers failure to

fulfil its contractual payment obligations

KRONES bases its management of credit risks from trade receivables on internal

policies large portion of trade receivables is secured by various sometimes

country-specific hedges The hedges include for instance retention of title guar

antees and sureties and documentary credits In order to prevent credit risk

we also run external credit checks on customers In addition there are processes

in place for continually monitoring claims that may be at risk of default

The theoretical maximum credit risk from trade receivables corresponds to the

carrying amount

Of which Of which overdue bythe following number

not
of days at the reporting date

overdue

at the between

Carrying reporting upto 90 and 180 and more than

amount date 90 days 180 days 360gys3m0da60das

31 Dec 2009

Trade receivables 477085 320143 57690 22476 39102 37674

31 Dec 2008

Trade receivables 553769 383700 80525 21508 30j730S
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1.2 Derivative financial instruments

KRONES uses derivative financial instruments solely for risk management purposes

Not using derivative financial instruments would subject the company to greater

financial risks These instruments essentially cover the risks arising from changes in

exchange rates between the euro and the us dollar the New Zealand dollar and the

Chinese renminbi yuan The risk of default relating to derivative financial instru

ments is limited to the balance of the positive fair values in the event of contract

ing partys default More on this topic is in the notes to the consolidated financial

statements

1.3 Other financial assets

The maximum credit risk position arising from other financial assets corresponds

to the carrying amount of these instruments KRONE5 is not subject to any material

default risk arising from its other assets all of which are current assets The loan is

to corporation under public law and the risk of default is immaterial

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the threat of company being unable to sufficiently fulfil its

financial obligations

KRONES generates most of its cash and cash equivalents through operating activities

These funds primarily serve to finance working capital and capital expenditures

KRONES manages its liquidity by reserving sufficient cash and cash equivalents and

credit lines with banks in addition to the regular inflow of payments from operating

activities The companys liquidity management for operations consists of cash

management system which is based in part on rolling monthly liquidity planning

with planning horizon of one year This allows KRONES to be proactive about any

possible liquidity bottlenecks Apart from cash on hand KEONES cash and cash

equivalents consist primarily of demand deposits The following overview of matur

ities shows how the undiscounted cash flows relating to liabilities as of 31 December

2009 influence the companys liquidity situation
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ink Carrying
Cash flow Cash flow Cash flow

amount for2OlO for2Oll for20l5od

at 31 DeC 2014 laterj

2009 Interest Repayment Interest Repayment Intere5t Repayment

Derivative financial

instruments 1102 1102

Liabilities to banks

Liabilities from leases 4687 583 710 1011 3977

Discounted trade bills 8779 5888 2891
_______

Otherfinancial liabilities 9410 8829 116 581

______________________
23978 592 16529 1127 7449

ink Carrying

--

Cash flow Cash flow Cash flow

amount for 2009 for 2010 for 2014 or

at 31 Dec 2013 later

2008 Interest Repayment Interest Repayment
Interest Repayment

Derivative financial

instruments 2929 2929
_______

Libilitiestobanks 731 24 83 66 361 15 287

Liabilities from leases 6254 622 844 1600 5410

Discounted trade bills 44194 37111 7083

Otherfinancial liabilities 7700 14 7144 111 556

________________
61808 660 48111 1777 13410 15 287

Market risks

Market risk is the risk of fluctuation in the fair value or future cash flows of

financial instrument due to changes in market prices

3.1 Interest rate change risks

KRONES is not exposed to any material risks arising from possible fluctuations

in market interest rates

3.2 Currency risks

Because exports to countries outside the European monetary union make up

significant portion of total sales we are exposed to currency
risks We use

currency hedging tools to counter these risks as far as possible We are also in

creasingly making purchasing and sales transactions in euros or the relevant

functional currency
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Material items denominated in foreign currencies in accordance with IFRS classes

in Currency Currency

USD CHF

Cash and cash equivalents
____________

880

Trade receivables 3737

Other financial receivables

Derivatives at positive market values

Loans
______

Total assets
______

4617

Liabilities
__________

Trade payables ______________
423 1167

Dueto banks
_______

From leases

Derivatives at negative market values

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
_______

Total liabilities 423 1167

Balance of assets and liabilities
_______

4194 1170
Items hedged through derivatives

___________
3013

________
Net exposure at 31 Dec 2009

_______________ ______
1181 1170

10% change in the closing rate at the reporting date would have total effect on

income of 107k in the case of USD und io6k in the case of CHF

3.3 Share price risks

KRONFS is not exposed to any material risks arising from possible fluctuations in

share prices

3.4 Commodity price risks

KRONES is exposed to market price risk relating to its procurement of parts and

raw materials for operations The company mitigates these possible risks through

targeted procurement management and long-term supply contracts to reduce

material commodity price risks

Legal risks

Legal risks exist as part of doing business KRONES currently does not anticipate

any claims
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Operational risks and opportunities

Price risks

KRONES operates in highly competitive market in which some orders are gener

ated by way of prices that do not cover costs Fixed-price contracts with customers

also entail price risks as we must bear any additional costs that arise KRONES has

introduced three-dimensional order analysis process to minimise this risk Any

inquiry or order that reaches or exceeds predefined size is assessed on the basis

of financial technical/technological and regional risks

Procurement risks

KRONES uses targeted material and supplier risk management to counter procure

ment risks With respect to suppliers we face risks relating to products deadlines

and quality specially designed process for supplier selection monitoring and

management helps minimise these risks

Cost risks

In order to continually improve our earnings situation we must optimise our

cost structures for the long term Our primary focus is on making our traditional

fixed costs as variable as possible by way of intelligent working time and value

chain models in order to cope with sharp upward and downward changes in the

markets

Personnel risks

ICRONES depends on highly qualified employees We ensure early access to

qualified employees through ongoing cooperation with colleges and universities

We regularly employ doctoral candidates and interns We also use professional

personnel consultants to help us locate employees

The company agreement that entered into force on January 2005 has enabled us

to counter personnel cost pressures as our employees have agreed to work longer

more flexible hours in exchange for our promise to secure employment and the

future of our German sites until the year 2012

Summary

Viewed from todays perspective KRONES is not exposed to any risks that threaten

the companys continued existence We are adapting to the changed risk situation by

having introduced comprehensive measures for preventing reducing and hedging

risks

We expect our markets to deliver growth opportunities again in the long term Our

products and services for the sfood and drinks sector put us very close to consumers

and enable us to benefit indirectly from global population growth and rising pros

perity worldwide
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We have after-sales service tech

nicians based in al/major regions

of the world KRONES is always

available nearby and guarantees

fast efficient
service regardless of

where or when it/s needed That is

added value that our customers

appreciate
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Events after the reporting date

No events of significance to KRONES have taken place since the close of fiscal 2009

Business development in the first two months of 2010 has confirmed the statements

made in our Outlooks

Outlook

The global economy is recovering

The German machinery sector is slowly climbing out of the trough

KRONES expects to be profitable in 2010

Recession is considered to be over

Most economists expect the global economy to recover from last years deep reces

sion in 2010 Billions in economic stimulus packages in the big industrialised and

emerging economies helped bolster the recovery Expansionary monetary policy of

the worlds most important central banks also had positive impact on economic

activity The International Monetary Fund IMF expects the global economy to grow

by 3.9% in 2010 However this depends on government stimulus money not being

cut off prematurely According to the JMF that is because the recovery is not yet self-

sustaining

Economic experts at the IMF are placing great hope in the emerging and developing The global economy is expected to

economies of Asia in 2010 For instance Chinas economy is forecast to grow by 10% recover in 2010 Experts are predict-

this year and Indias by almost 8% After collapsing in 2009 the Japanese economy is
ing strong growth in Asias emerg

ing and developing economies

expected to grow by 1.7% in 2010

Even the worlds biggest economy the USA is once again gaining momentumIMF

forecasts for gross domestic product GDP in the us predict 2.7% growth although

high level of unemployment and weak real estate market continue to plague the

US economy Experts are predicting just 1.0% growth for the euro area

German economy will grow faster than euro area

As major exporter Germany will likely benefit from the increase in global trade

in 2010 The domestic economy will also get boost from the German governments

economic stimulus programme which gives particular support to industries like

construction At the start of the year the IMP upped its 2010 growth forecast for

German GDP to 1.5%
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The worst is over for the German machinery sector

The German Engineering Federation VDMA believes the crisis in the industry is The German machinery sectors

not yet over but that the sharp downturn has ended The decline in new orders has recovery will likely be slow

recently become less steep Now the industry hopes demand will begin to pick up

That is because while companies were still able to draw on existing order backlogs

to keep capacities utilised in 2009 these cushions are now gone The VDMA expects

output to stagnate in 2010

Cautious optimism for 2010

After going through the deepest recession since World War II the global economy ICRONE5 intends to be back

began to show the first signs of recovery at the end of 2009 However threats to
in the black in 2010

sustained recovery remain and the possible scenarios for the global economic trend

vary widely While many experts are predicting real GDP growth of over 5% in the

Asia-Pacific region growth forecasts for the rest of the world particularly Europe

cis and North America are far more subdued Thus no truly reliable trends or

forecasts have emerged that show clear direction

The web of global risk factors is complex

Global economic growth

Monetary policy inflation risks and exchange rate policy

Financial markets and financial market regulations

New protectionism

Raw materials procurement markets energy the environment

Labour markets

The future development of the global economy is still fraught with considerable

uncertainty

KRONES long-term outlook for growth is still good because the megatrends will be

nefit our industry The worlds population is still growing Wealth and consumption

are increasing in many countries Food and drink are basic human needs Our port

folio of products and services addresses these needs and our customers increasing

ly complex operations in saturated markets completely We expect comparatively

stable development of our customers markets the most important of which is the

beverage market in the future Our business model and clear strategy have proved

their worth We have learned from the crisis We will continue to tap considerable

potential with our sConversions programme which entails changing our thinking

as well as our organisation and are currently adapting KRONES to cope in more vola

tile markets

Given the developments of recent months KRONES is cautiously optimistic about

the year 2010 We expect to see trend reversal in the first half of 2010 and therefore

expect sales to grow to 15% and consolidated earnings to be positive again in the

double-digit millions in 2010 Assuming that conditions remain as they are we ex

pect the earnings trend to remain positive in 2011
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Dsdosures required under 315

of the German Commercia Code UiGa

Pursuant to of the articles of association KRONES AGS share capital amounts

to 40000000.00 and is divided into 31593072 ordinary bearer shares

Under 20 of the articles of association each share entitles its holder to one vote

in the annual shareholders meeting Unless mandatory provisions of the law stipu

late otherwise resolutions of the annual shareholders meeting are made with

simple majority of the votes cast or in cases in which the law prescribes majority

of shares in addition to majority of votes with simple majority of the share

capital represented in the vote

Pursuant to i8 of the articles of association only those shareholders who register

with the company in writing in German or English and provide proof of their share-

holding prior to the annual shareholders meeting are entitled to participate and

vote in the annual shareholders meeting special written document confirming

the shareholding issued in German or English by the institution with which the in

vestment account is held constitutes sufficient proof This document must refer to

the Start of the twenty-first day prior to the annual shareholders meeting

Under i8 of the articles of association votes may be cast by proxy Proxy voting

is permissible only if proof of authorisation is submitted in writing in electronic

form pursuant to 126 of the German Civil Code BGB or in the form of printed

fax In the annual shareholders meeting the chairman of the meeting can set

appropriate time limits for shareholders questions and comments i9 of the

articles of association

The Executive Board of the company is not aware of any other restrictions relating

to voting rights or the transfer of shares

The company is aware of the following direct and indirect shareholdings in the

companys capital that exceed io% of the voting rights

Name Direct share of

voting rights in

Beteiligungsgesellschaft Kronseder mbH 1500

Volker Kronseder 1116

Harald Kronseder 1044

As at 23 March 2010
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Changes to the shareholdings listed above that are not required to be reported to

the company may have occurred since the date given above March 2010 Because

the companys shares are bearer shares the company is generally only aware of

changes in shareholdings if these changes are subject to reporting requirements

The appointment and dismissal of Executive Board members is governed by 84

and of the German Stock Corporation Act AktG Pursuant to of the articles

of association the Executive Board consists of at least two members Pursuant to

of the articles of association determination of the number of Executive Board

members the appointment of regular and deputy members of the Executive Board

the execution of their employment contracts and revocation of appointments are

the responsibility of the Supervisory Board

Amendments to the articles of association are subject to the provisions of 179

et seq of the German Stock Corporation Act Such amendments are to be resolved

by the annual shareholders meeting 119 No.5 and 179 of the German Stock

Corporation Act The Supervisory Board is authorised to make amendments that

affect only the wording of the articles of association 13 of the articles of associa

tion

Pursuant to of the articles of association the Executive Board may with

the approval of the Supervisory Board increase the share capital by total of up

to iom authorised capital through the issuance once or repeatedly of ordinary

bearer shares against cash contributions up to and including 31 May 2012

Shareholders must be granted subscription rights to these shares The Executive

Board may exclude the subscription rights of shareholders for any fractional

amounts that may arise

The annual shareholders meeting on 17 June 2009 passed resolution authorising

the company to buy treasury shares totalling up to io% of the current share capital

in compliance with statutory regulations and the provisions of the resolution by the

annual shareholders meeting up to and including i6 December 2010

The annual shareholders meeting on 17 June 2009 passed resolution authorising

the Executive Board to cancel treasury shares of KRONE5 AG acquired on the basis of

the above authorisation without the cancellation or its execution requiring further

resolution by the annual shareholders meeting

KRONES AG has not made any material agreements containing special provisions

relating to change or acquisition of control following takeover offer

The company has not made any agreements with members of the Executive Board

or company employees relating to compensation in the event of takeover offet
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Compensation report

Compensation of the Supervisory Board and the Executive Board

The compensation report summarises the principles used to determine the com

pensation of the Executive Board of KRONES AG and explains the amount and the

structure of Executive Board remuneration

The principles and the amount of Supervisory Board compensation are also set

out in the report The compensation report is an integral part of the consolidated

management report for fiscal 2009 and can be found in the corporate governance

report on page 87
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Responsibility statement

Statement required by 37y No.1 of the German Securities Trading Act

WpHG in conjunction with 297 Sentence and 315 Sentence of

the German Commercial Code HGB

To the best of our knowledge and in accordance with the applicable reporting

principles the consolidated financial statements give true and fair view of the

assets liabilities financial position and profit or loss of the group and the consoli

dated management report includes fair review of the development and perfor

mance of the business and the position of the group together with description

of the principal opportunities and risks associated with the expected development

of the group

Neutraubling 29 March 2010

KRONES AG

The Executive Board

Volker Kronseder Hans-Jurgen Thaus Rainuif Diepold

Chairman Deputy Chairman

Werner Frischholz Christoph Kienk

RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT





Long-standing trusting relation

ships with our customers mean

lot to KRONES Our sales staff are

not just salespeople looking to turn

quick deal They are consultants

striving
to meet our customers

specific
needs
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Corporate governance

Statement on corporate governance

The statement on corporate governance is also available online at www.krones.com

KRONES recognises its responsibilities

For KRONES the German Corporate Governance Code is an integral part of gover

nance The Code presents essential statutory regulations for the management and

supervision governance of German listed companies and contains internationally

and nationally recognised standards for good and responsible corporate governance

The management of KRONES takes the principles and rules of corporate governance

into account in all business activities which are aimed at systematically increasing

the companys value for the long term

Declaration of compliance pursuant to 161

of the German Stock Corporation Act

sThe Executive Board and the Supervisory Board of KRONES AG declare that the rec

ommendations of the Government Commission German Corporate Governance

Code established by the German federal government regarding the management

and supervision of German listed companies as amended on 18 June 2009 have been

and are being complied with in accordance with the German Corporate Governance

Code which is published on the website of KRONES AG with the following exceptions

deductible has until now not been included in D0 policy for the Executive

Board and Supervisory Board and none is planned for the Supervisory Board

item 3.8 of the Code

DO policy has been taken outfor the Executive Board Of KRONES AG Until now

no deductible has been included because the Executive Board always acts respon

sibly and dutifully regardless of the existence of deductible For 2010 onward

the company has adjusted the DO policy for the Executive Board to conform to

the statutory requirements under 932 of the German Stock Corporation Act

The company also has D0 policy for the members of the Supervisory Board

No specfic deductible has been setfor this policy because the Supervisory Board

always performs its duties properly regardless of the existence of deductible

Separate disclosure about the basic features of the remuneration system and

changes to the system has until now been made only in the Annual Report In the

future such disclosure will also be made at the annual shareholders meeting

item 4.2.3 of the Code

The shareholders of KRONES AG can find all relevant information in the Annual

Report Beginning in 2010 we will also report on this topic at the annual share

holders meeting

In keeping with the resolution of the annual shareholders meeting total com

pensation of each member of the Executive Board subdivided according to fixed

performance-related and long-term incentive components is not listed individu

ally by each members name item 4.2.4 of the Code

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AT KRONES
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KRONES discloses the structure of Executive Board compensation Details relating to

fixed and variable performance-related components of compensation are essential

for assessing the appropriateness of the compensation structure and whether it

results in an incentive effect for the Executive Board

We believe that disclosing each individuals remuneration would conflict with

personal privacy rights Thus as resolved by the annual shareholders meeting on

21 June 2006 detailed disclosure of each individual Executive Board members

compensation will not be made before the end of the day 20 June 2011 as provided

for under 286 of the German Commercial Code

There is currently no nominating committee at KRONES AG item 5.3.3 of the Code

Committees are primarily usefulfor larger bodies they make that bodys work

more efficient There are six shareholder representatives on the Supervisory Board

of KRONES AG who suggest nominees Therefore we do not feel it is necessary to

create separate nominating committee

The compensation of members of the Supervisory Board is currently not itemised

Other compensation for services provided individually in particular advisory or

agency services is not currently reported item 5.4.6 of the Code

The total of compensation paid out to members of the Supervisory Board is given

in the compensation report broken down into its fixed and variable portions We

do not believe an individual listing of compensation would provide any additional

information of relevance for the capital markets The same applies to services pro

vided by individual members of the Supervisory Board

The shareholdings of members of the Executive Board and the Supervisory Board

of KRONES AG are not disclosed in the corporate governance report item 6.6 of

the Code

In order to safeguard the protection-worthy interests and privacy of the board

members we have opted not to make this disclosure in the corporate governance

report However we do disclose the shareholdings of the Kronsederfamilies which

hold seats on both the Executive Board and the Supervisory Board in the annual

report for KRONES AG

We are not yet in compliance with the deadline for publication of the consoli

dated financial statements of KRONES AG within 90 days of the close of the fiscal

year item 7.1.2 of the Code

The annualfinancial statements of KRONES AG are published within the statutory

time period Importantfigures for the pastfiscal year that are relevant to the capi

tal markets are published within the 90-day limit

Signed by the Executive Board and the Supervisory Board

Neutraubling Germany 30 March 2010
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Information on corporate governance practices

Corporate governance at KRONES is based on fairness and transparency This prin

ciple applies both to the cooperation between the Executive Board and the Super

visory Board and to the way we deal with our employees customers suppliers and

the general public

We review all strategic decisions for their long-term probability of success Our aim

is to optimise profits and cash flow in sustainable mannet

To secure the companys long-term survival we review all of our activities with re

spect to sustainability factoring in not only our social and economic responsibilities

but also the ecological conditions and consequences involved in the manufacture

and use of our products Our production operations are eco-friendly and we not only

comply with statutory regulations but make
every

effort to remain as far below the

prescribed limits as possible

Our governance principles ensure that the welfare of the very people who contribute

to our success is never subordinated to economic interests In order to prevent acci

dents at the workplace and work-related illness we create safe environment that is

conducive to the good health of our employees All of our workfiows are designed

with the safety and health of our employees in mind and we ensure that the work

place is ergonomic and free of hazards

When choosing our suppliers we look at their performance with respect to sustain

able socially responsible management KRONE5 has developed suppliers code for

this purpose The code covers safety health the environment quality human rights

employee standards and corruption prevention
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Duties and activities of the Executive Board and the Supervisory Board

The Executive Board of KRONES AG consists of five members each of whom is res

ponsible for specific areas of the company see pages 10 and 128 In addition each of

the group companies is the responsibility of two members of the Executive Board

The Executive Board manages the company and its affairs The members of the Exec

utive Board meet daily At these meetings the Executive Board discusses current

and strategic topics and makes decisions For strategically important decisions the

Executive Board involves the Supervisory Board in the decision-making process

in timely mannet

The Supervisory Board oversees the Executive Board In accordance with the

articles of association the Supervisory Board has twelve members The Executive

Board and the Supervisory Board communicate on regular basis The Executive

Board informs the Supervisory Board in timely manner about business develop

ment the companys financial situation risk management company planning and

strategy In addition to regular oral reports the members of the Supervisory Board

receive written reports on the companys earnings and financial position from the

Executive Board each month ICRONES Supervisory Board can establish committees

besides the Chairmans Committee but has not done so as yet

The Chairman of the Supervisory Board coordinates the work of the Supervisory

Board see page 128 for listing of the members The Chairman or Deputy Chairman

presides over the Supervisory Boards meetings The Supervisory Board makes deci

sions either in its meetings or in exceptional cases in procedure in which the rele

vant documents are circulated to each member Members of the Executive Board

participate in meetings of the Supervisory Board at the invitation of the Chairman

or Deputy Chairman of the Supervisory Board The Executive Board members give

oral or written reports on the agenda items and respond to questions from the

Supervisory Board

Each year the Chairman of the Supervisory Board describes the Boards activities

in his report to shareholders in the annual report and at the annual shareholders

meeting

Composition duties and activities of the Chairmans Committee

The Chairmans Committee consists of the Chairman of the Supervisory Board Ernst

Baumann and Deputy Chairman Werner Schrodl as well as the following members

of the Supervisory Board Norman Kronseder Graf Phillip von und zu Lerchenfeld

Josef Weitzer and Johann Robold

The Chairmans Committee oversees the accounting and financial reporting process

and prepares corresponding proposals for resolutions for the Supervisory Board In

addition the Chairmans Committee analyses the controlling and risk management

system The Chairmans Committee prepares the Supervisory Boards review of the

annual financial statements the management report and the auditors report for

the separate and consolidated financial statements and makes recommendations

CORPORATE OOVERNANCR CORPORATE OOVRRNANCE AT KRONES



84 Corporate guidelines

In the KRONES Groups corporate guidelines the group and its employees have

defined common guidelines and committed to act sustainably and responsibly

from RD to after-sales service At KRONES we dont merely put these shared

values to paper Every one of our employees lives by them

Corporate guidelines

We go about our business in sustainable socially responsible manner

To secure the companys long-term survival we review all of our activities with re- The corporate guidelines we live by

spect to sustainability factoring in not only our social and economic responsibilities
reflect our companys character

but also the ecological conditions and consequences involved in the manufacture

and use of our products

We stand for excellent quality and technological leadership in our market

Our technology leadership which is based on our intensive research and develop

ment work is the reason why many customers choose us and the reason why so

many have maintained long-standing relationship with KRONE5 KRONES global

market leadership is based on leading-edge technology and the consistently high

quality of our machines lines and services

We owe our success to our workforce

Highly qualified people form the backbone of KRONES success As an employer we

have very special responsibility for our more than 10000 employees worldwide

We foster not only their technical and professional development but also their per

sonal development We are fully aware that our employees are the key to the com

panys future

We are committed to using resources economically while always providing

the highest quality

Conserving resources doesnt mean compromising on quality Leaner production

processes technological innovations and highly motivated superbly trained

employees enable KRONES to produce top quality goods with high value added

We safeguard the health and safety of our employees

Our corporate culture ensures that the welfare of the very people who contribute

to our success is never subordinated to economic interests In order to prevent acci

dents at the workplace and work-related illness we create safe environment that is

conducive to the good health of our employees All of our workfiows are designed

with the safety and health of our employees in mind and we ensure that the work

place is ergonomic and free of hazards

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AT KRONES



Our production operations are ecmfriendly

As far as is economically reasonable we use all of the options available to make

our production operations environmentally compatible We not only comply with

statutory regulations we also make
every effort to remain as far below the pre

scrihed limits as possible

We do business for the long term and we do it transparently

All strategic decisions within the KRONES Group are reviewed for their longAerm

probability of success Our aim is to optimise profits and cash flow in sustainable

manner It is our intention to he reliable partner for all of our stakeholders and

this includes policy of maintaining open communications

Suppbers code

When choosing our business associates we look at their performance with respect

to sustainable socially responsible management KRONES has developed suppliers

code for this purpose which is available online at www.krones.com The code now

forms an integral part of KRONES general terms and conditions of doing business

and all of our suppliers have signed it That means soo% of our purchasing volume

comes from vendors who have agreed to comply with the code

The code covers safety health the environment quality human rights employee

standards and corruption prevention In order to ensure compliance our quality as

surance team performs audits on site at the suppliers facilities and then prescribes

improvements where necessary

POF version of our corporate

guidelines is available online at

www.krones.com

In addition KRONES seeks to use vendors that are independently certified



Comphance

RON iso purposetully evolved into flohal company over the past several de

usde he woild in which we operate its economy and its gil and soc ial systems

avr grown mcci inely coinpie and heroine globally inter neshed in recent years

At the same tim the nave become Ic md le Li ansparent this lack of Iranspar

in can erve as bri ding ground tom negat we developments sue as corruption

tmieh oeci rs worldwide

to rupt ion benefits only stiw individuals but its consequences
br everyone

else

very grave Corruption deepens pove ty among entire populations states and

regions also sims the economy Instead of lice and tair competition corruption

results irs elandestir eom etition driven by bribery destroying
the markets role

ie ml itor KRONrS stegorically rejects such developments

hat is why we at KRO es arc suppol ting all ebforts to maint on high ethical start

dards business dealings and do not tolerate corrupt hehavioui within oui eom

my or among oui business associates md we hold oui suppliers accountable by

cay ot Os simpgli rs sde

CRONES hos dcvetopedo supptm rs

rode that commits suppliers
to act

iustainably Th suppliers code is

available online for download at

www ies reFit
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Compensation report

Executive Board compensation

The structure of the compensation system for the Executive Board was discussed

in detail and determined by the Supervisory Board on the basis of the recommenda

tions contained in the German Corporate Governance Code

These recommendations for members of the executive boards of listed stock corpo

rations contain the following compensation elements

Fixed elements

Variable elements that are payable annually and based on business performance

Variable elements that serve as long-term incentives containing risk factors

The criteria for determining the appropriateness of the compensation include but

are not limited to the tasks of the respective member of the Executive Board his

responsibilities his personal performance and experience and the economic situa

tion performance and outlook of the enterprise taking into account its peer com

panies

For fiscal 2009 the direct fixed remuneration of the five active members of

the Executive Board was 2.45ok previous year 2250k This fixed amount is

the base pay stipulated in the members contracts and is paid out in equal

monthly amounts as salary This remuneration is generally reviewed as part of

the negotiations relating to the extension of the members contracts In addition

the members of the Executive Board received fringe benefits in the form of

non-cash benefits company car amounting to 89k previous year 87k

The variable compensation is based on the achievement of company performance

targets The reference figures are consolidated net income the primary point of

reference and consolidated sales The gradation of the targets is determined by

the Supervisory Board each year The variable compensation contains risk ele

ments and is thus not guaranteed compensation Due to the loss posted for 2009

the members of the Executive Board received no variable compensation for the

year previous year 1837k

In keeping with the recommendations of the Corporate Governance Code the

Supervisory Board adopted long-term performance incentive plan containing

risk elements at its meeting on 17 March 2005 Under this provision each mem
ber of the Executive Board receives performance incentive that is paid out after

no less than ten years of service as member of the Executive Board of KRONES

AG Board members serving for less than ten years are not entitled to the perfor

mance incentive

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMPENEATION REPORT



The performance incentive is calculated from the relevant Board members fixed

annual remuneration at the time of appointment to the Executive Board and the

development of the enterprise value from the time of entry onto the Board to the

time at which payment of the incentive comes due

EBIT EBITDA and consolidated sales are used as the basis for calculating enter

prise value If the current enterprise value is less than it was at the time the mem
ber joined the Executive Board the respective member is not entitled to the per

formance incentive

Provisions of 1489k previous year 179ok were recognised for the perfor

mance incentive

At KRONES AG there are and have been no stock-option plans or comparable secu

rities-oriented long-term incentive components of remuneration for Executive

Board members

Pension provisions of 9188k previous year 7668k were recognised for active

members of the Executive Board

Disclosure of the total compensation made to each board member by name as

recommended under item 4.2.4 of the German Corporate Governance Code and

under 285 No Sentences 59 and 314 No 6a Sentences 59 of the Ger

man Commercial Code HGB is not being implemented It is the belief of KRONE5

AG that such disclosure would conflict with personal privacy rights

Thus as resolved by the annual shareholders meeting on 21 June 2006 detailed

disclosure of each individual board members compensation will not be made be

fore the end of the day 20 June 2011 as provided for under 286 of the German

Commercial Code

On the other hand details relating to the structure of the compensation are

essential for assessing the appropriateness of the compensation structure and

whether it results in an incentive effect for the Executive Board

For former members of the Executive Board and their surviving dependents

payments amounting to 688k previous year 671k were made and pension

provisions of 848k previous year 664k were recognised

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMPENSATION REPORT
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Supervisory Board compensation

Compensation of the members of the Supervisory Board is governed by the articles

of association and resolved by the annual shareholders meeting For fiscal 2009 the

articles of association as amended by the annual shareholders meeting on 17 June

2009 apply

The Supervisory Boards compensation consists of two components an annual fixed

remuneration of 10000 and variable compensation The Chairman of the Super

visory Board receives twice the amount of the fixed remuneration and the Deputy

Chairman of the Supervisory Board receives one and one half times the fixed remu

neration amount The variable compensation is based on consolidated net income

per share Each member of the Supervisory Board receives 2000 for each 030 by

which total consolidated net income per share exceeds i.oo

For fiscal 2009 net income per share is negative at 1.13 On this basis no member

of the Supervisory Board received variable compensation

Members of the Supervisory Board who belong to special committees within the

Supervisory Board receive additional compensation of 10000 annually as well as

fiat-rate reimbursement for expenses

The total remuneration paid to members of the Supervisory Board amounted to

175k previous year 343k including variable portions totalling ok previous year

i68k

Moreover the members of the Supervisory Board receive fiat 600 fee per meeting

as reimbursement for their expenses unless they submit proof of having incurred

higher expenses

Members of the Supervisory Board who belonged to the board for only portion of

the fiscal year receive pro-rated compensation

The company has no stock option plans or similarsecurities-oriented incentive sys

tems Thus there are also no stock-option plans or similar long-term incentive com

ponents of remuneration for members of the Supervisory Board

CORPORATE OOVRRNANCE COMPENSATION RRPORT



We do moreTransparency



For us transparency is not an

obligation It is afundamental part

of doing business KRONES is aware

of its
responsibility toward its em

ployees its customers its suppliers

its shareholders and society We

maintain an active dialogue with

all of our stakeholders and pursue

policy of open communications

both internal and external
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aratc nw ie stati nent ar

aterrlrtofcoriMchcn ye lC

Sepaiate iniome statement

Sales revenue

Reduction previous year increase in inventoi es off nisl ed goods and work in progr 742

Othei own work capitalised

Other perating income 678

Goods ane services purchased

Expenses for materials and supplies and for goods purchased

expenses or servicc irchased 718 99

Personnel expenses

Wages and salaries

Soc security contributions and xpenses for pension ans and for benefit

Depreciation and amoitisation of intangihlc assets ii property 4ant and equipment 95

Othe operating expenses

EBIT

loves ment income

lnconie from other securities and loans classified as oircurrcnt financia assets

Othei ir terest and similar income 6800

Writmdowns on non current financial assets 18

Interest and similar expenses

Earnoigs before taxes

income tax 1b

Consolidated net income loss

Profit loss share of non controlling inte rests 169

Profit loss share of CRONES Group shareholder

Earn ngs per share diluted/basic ri

Statemc ofcompreherisive income in
00

Consolidated net income loss 448

Exchange differences on transl ltio

Available foi sale financial inst ur lents

Derivative financial mnstrurlents 76

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income

whi attributable to non controlling interests Ib

fwhi attrhutable to CRONEs Group share holder



Statement of fi ancia position

ntargble assets

Property plant and cquprnent

Non current ltnanaal assets

Property plant and equipment intangthle assets and non current finan al assets

Duferrcd tax assets

adc rccvbles

Current tax reccvah cc

Other as ets

Non current assets

recxvables

Cur rent sx recervahlc

Ott assets

Cash md cash equivalents

Current assets

Total



ci ysic ff4 009

5k

bsue capital
40000 400

Capital esrve 64

Retaredearniigs 477

tIthe rose

Group uiappropriatc profi 04 80 824

Grouf equity of the parent company 7888
Non cor trol

ing
interests 141

Equity 78 88

Provisions or pensions

Defer of tax liabilities 278 147

Othei provisions 3/ 4070

abilities to its

Trade payeblec

Othcr fin nci ii liabil ties 708

Othcr lahilites e4 if

Non current liabilities 144 147

Other provisions

Provisions for taxes

Gahilities to ink

Advai ces rc ceved if 685

Trade payahlc 1004n8

Othcr financial liab lities 17 10

Ot iso liabilitie and accruals 2i0
Current liabilities 90

Total 182 09



Statement of cash flows

Earnings be ore taxes

Depreciatio and amortisation reversals

Decrease evious year increase in provisions and accruals

Deferred tax item changes recognised in profit or loss

nterest expenses and interest incomc

Procecds ar losses from the disposal of non current cssets

Other non cash expenses and income

Decrease in trsdc ieceivables and other assets not attributable to investing ci financing cctivities

Derrease previous year increase in inventorie

Increase in rade payables and othcr liabilities not tLributable to investing or financing activities

Cash generated from operating activities

Interest pa

Income tax paid and iefunds received

Cash flow from operating activities

ash payments to acquire intangible assets 28345

Proceeds from the disposal of intangible assets 293

Cash payments to acquire propeity plant and equipment 59902

Proceeds om the disposal of property plant and cquipment L881

Cash payments to acquire non -current financial asset -224

Proceeds om the disposal of non current financial asmt 210

ash payments to acquire shares affiliated companies 7205

Interest reee ved 5126

Dividends received 969

Cash flow from investing activities

Cash payments to company owners

Cash payments to acquire treasury hares

Cash paynents to service debt

Cash payr -ients to pay lease liabilitic

Cash flow from financing activities

Nct change in cash and cash equivalents

Changes in c-ash and cash equivalents arising from cxrhangc rates

Changes cash and cash equivalents arising
from the consolidated group

Cash and cash equivalents at the
begirini ig

of the perod

2009

-39248

72764

7000

14406

2968

1/4

181

61519

49713

/8742

188957

3695

15156

169706

18103

3/058

731

2142

-58032

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 135519



Statement of changes in iity

Notcs

At lianuary 2008

Dividend payme nt 10 per hare

Consolidated nct incorl 2008

Allocation to retaine earnings

Currency differences

Hedge sccoi nt
ig

At 31 Dember 2008

Dividend payment HOper share

Consolidated nct income 2009

urchase oltre asury shares

Allocation to retained earnings

Changes the consolidated group

Curiency differences

Hedge accounting

At 31 0eember 2009

cv
ompn

yl

try pun cpu cuty

pIt ru tO dO en rv upna

nquIy çr

76

0692 10

64 6/A

80

16

10/ 10

28

417

17/6

233 104680

114



98 Notes to the consoUdated financia statements of KRONES AG

Segment reporting

Sales revenues

Germany

Rest of Europe

Other areas

Machines and lines

for product filling and

decoration

2009 2008

_________
1982583

__________
241567

__________
771295

969721

Machines and lines

for beverage production

process technology

2009 2008

________
310057

________
55300

________
111478

143279

Machines and lines

for the low output range

KosME

2009 2008

1511800

163377

460902

887521

274126

26209

56940

190977

78995

1692

47083

30220

88767

3027

67865

17875

Segment EBIT 10453 154474 14933 1659 4219 1497

Depreciation amortisation and write-downs 55557 46933 1945 1216 2074 2812

Interest income 155 77

Interest expense 779 1442

EDT 19476 154275 14933 1659 4839 136

Other material non-cash income and expenses 37 3446 984 536 160 108

Assets 1529784 1568180 194808 188497 69507 70752

Germany 1261223 1292266 194808 188497

RestofEurope 71120 82060 69507 70752

Other areas 197441 193854

Liabilities 958065 895634 93757 91535 55330 58285

Capital expenditures for intangible assets and property

plant and equipment 80 743 102 383 787 7880 1716 609

Germany 69318 95495 5787 7880

Restof Europe 575 926 1716 1609

Other areas 10850 5962

Return on sales EBT to sales 1.3% 7.8% 5.4% 0.5% 6.1% 0.2%

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF KRONES AG SEGMENT REPORTING
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Total for the segments Consolidation Other KR0NES Group

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

_______________________
1864921 2381407

_______________________
191278 299894

564925 950638

_______________________
1108718 1130875

_______________________
29605 157630

_______________________________ _______________________
59576 51006

_______________________________ _______________________
6645 3586 6800 3663

_______________________________ _______________________
3453 5367 4232 6809

_____________________________ ______________________
39248 156070

787 3018

1794098 1827429 32591 43007 28991 40671 1790498 1825093

1456031 1480763 26129 30664 28991 40671 1458893 1490770

140626 152812 5484 11852 135142 140960

197441 193854 978 491 196463 193363

1107152 1045454 32591 43007 20281 32659 1094842 1035107

______________________________ ______________________
88246 111872

_______________________________ _______________________
75105 103375

_________________________________ _________________________
2291 2535

_______________________________ _______________________
10850 5962

2.1% 6.6%

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF KRONES AG SEGMENT REPORTING



100 General disclosures

ss Legal basis

The consolidated financial statements of KRONES AG ISKRONES Groupu for the period ended

31 December 2009 have been prepared in accordance with the International Financial Report

ing Standards IFRss of the International Accounting Standards Board IAsn London applica

ble on the reporting date including the interpretations issued by the International Financial

Reporting Interpretation Committee IFRIc as adopted by the European Union No early ap

plication was made of IFRS5 that had not yet entered into force or their interpretations list

of these standards and interpretations and of standards being applied for the first time is on

page 126

Non-controlling interests in group equity are presented on the statement of financial position

as special item within equity Profit or loss shares attributable to non-controlling interests are

recognised on the separate income statement and the statement of comprehensive income as

part of consolidated net income The shares of consolidated net income attributed to the own

ers of the parent company and to non-controlling interests are presented separately

Non-controlling interests have been added to the statement of changes in equity

The following explanatory notes comprise disclosures and remarks that under IFRS5 must be

included as notes to the consolidated financial statements in addition to the statement of finan

cial position the separate income statement and statement of comprehensive income the

statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows

The Anature of expense method has been used for the separate income statement The groups

reporting currency is the euro

Consolidated group

Besides KRONES AG the consolidated financial statements for the period ended 31 December

2009 include all material domestic and foreign subsidiaries in which KRONES AG holds more

than o% of the voting rights

SMEFIN 5.R.L Roverbella Italy was acquired in fiscal 2009 and acquisition accounting was

done to include it in the consolidated group The first-time consolidation of the new shares was

effected at the time of acquisition

KRONES AG holds direct ioo% stake in this company With the acquisition of SMEFIN S.R.L

Roverbella Italy KRONES AG now holds an indirect and direct ioo% stake in KOSME S.R.L Rover

bella Italy

complete presentation of investment holdings will be published in the electronic Federal

Gazette elektronischer Bundesanzeiger

Consolidation principles

The separate financial statements of the companies included in the consolidated financial state

ments are prepared in accordance with uniform accounting policies and were all prepared as of

the reporting date of the consolidated financial statements

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIOATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF KRONES GEOUF GENEEAL DISCLOSURES
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Capital consolidation is performed in accordance with IERS sBusiness combinationsi

under which all business combinations must be accounted for using the spurchase methods of

accounting whereby the acquired assets and liabilities are to be recognised at fair value

Goodwill that arose before January 2004 is still recognised in reserves

Shares in the equity of subsidiaries that are not held by the parent company are reported as

snon-controlling interestss

Inter-company receivables liabilities provisions revenues and expenses between consolidated

companies are eliminated in the consolidation accounting

This also applies for inter-company profits from deliveries effected or services rendered be

tween group companies provided the amounts from these transactions are still held by the

group at the reporting date

Currency translation

The functional currency for KRONES AG is the euro

The financial statements of the consolidated companies that are denominated in foreign

currency are translated on the basis of the functional currency concept under lAS 21 using

modified closing rate method Because the subsidiaries primarily operate independently in the

economic environment of their respective countries the functional currency is always the rele

vant local
currency

for each subsidiary In the consolidated financial statements assets and lia

bilities are therefore translated at the closing rate as on the reporting date while income and

expenses from the financial statements of subsidiaries are translated at average annual rates

Any exchange differences resulting from translation using these different rates in the state

ment of financial position and the separate income statement and statement of comprehensive

income are recognised directly in equity Exchange differences resulting from the translation

of equity using historical exchange rates are also recognised directly in equity

In the separate financial statements of KRONES AG and its subsidiaries receivables and liabili

ties in foreign currencies are translated using the exchange rate at the time of the transaction

and exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss at the closing rate Non-monetary

items in foreign currencies are stated at historical cost

Exchange rate differences compared with the previous year arising from capital consolidation

are recognised directly in equity in other retained earnings

I.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF KEONES OEOUP GENEEAL DISCLOSUEES



102

The exchange rates of those currencies that have material impact on the groups financial

statements have moved against the euro as follows

Closing rate Average rate

31Dec2009 31Dec2008 2009 2008

USD 1.441 1.398 1.395 1.471

GaP 0.890 0.959 0.892 0.796

1.484 1.488 1.510 1.587

DKK 7.442 7.452 7.447 7.456

CAD 1.510 1.717 1.587 1.559

133.060 126.400 130.404 152.450

2.510 3.257 2.785 2.674

9.536 9.540 10.224

19.259 18.820 16.291

10.692 11.360 7.832

13.170 11.711 12.059

108.660 111.376 104.518

189650 210.631 176.705

Accounting policies

The separate financial statements of KRONES AG and its domestic and foreign subsidiaries have

been prepared using uniform accounting policies in accordance with lAS 27

Some discretion has been used in preparing the consolidated financial statements particularly

in terms of measurement of non-current assets inventories receivables pension provisions

and provisions because their preparation requires some critical estimates and forecasts

Intangible assets

Acquired and internally generated intangible assets excluding goodwill are recognised

pursuant to lAS 38 if it is sufficiently probable that the use of the asset will result in future

economic benefit and the cost of the asset can be reliably determined They are stated at cost

and amortised systematically on straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives The

amortisation of intangible assets is carried out over useful life of between three and five years

and is recognised under sDepreciation and amortisation of intangible assets and property

plant and equipmente

Research and development expenditure

Development expenditure of the KRONES Group is capitalised at cost to the extent that costs

can be allocated clearly and the technical feasibility and future economic benefit as result

of their use are probable According to lAS 38 research expenditure cannot be recognised as

an intangible asset and is therefore recognised as an expense directly in profit or loss

us Dollar

British pound

Swiss franc

Danish krone

Canadian dollar

Japanese yen jpv

Brazilian real BRL

Chinese renminbi yuan CNV 9.830

Mexican peso MXN 18.826

Ukrainian hryvnia UAH 11.591

South African rand ZAR 10.675

Kenyan shilling KES 109.285

Nigerian naira NGN 215.260

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF KRONES GROUP GENERAL DISCLOSURES
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Goodwill

There is no goodwill in these consolidated accounts

Property plant and equipment

Property plant and equipment are accounted for at cost less scheduled depreciation on

straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives The cost of internally generated plant and

equipment comprises all costs that are directly attributable to the production process and an

appropriate portion of overheads Borrowing costs are not recognised as cost

revaluation of property plant and equipment pursuant to lAS i6 was not carried out

Scheduled depreciation is based on the following useful lives which are applied uniformly

throughout the group

Useful life In years

Buildings 1450

Technical equipment and machines 518

Furniture and fixtures and office equipment 315

In figuring the useful lives the different components of an asset with significantly different

costs were taken into account

Government grants are only recognised if there is reasonable assurance that the conditions

attaching to them will be complied with and the grants will be received

Government grants related to assets are deducted from the cost of the asset and recognised in

profit and loss in the subsequent periods in the proportions in which depreciation expense on

those assets is recognised

Leases

Leases in which the ICRONES Group as the lessee bears substantially all the risks and rewards

incidental to ownership of the leased asset are treated as finance leases pursuant to lAS 17 upon

inception of the lease The leased asset is recognised as non-current asset at fair value or if

lower at the present value of the minimum lease payments The leased asset is depreciated sys

tematically using the straight-line method over the shorter of the elease terme and its euseful

lifee Payment obligations for future lease instalments are recognised under eother liabilitiese

In the case of operating leases the leased assets are treated as assets belonging to the lessor

since the lessor bears the risks and rewards

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANcIAL STATEMENTS OF KEONES GEOLIP GENEEAL DIScLOSuEES
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Financial instruments

Financial instruments under lAS 39 used by KRONES consist of the following

Non-current financial assets

Financial instruments held for trading derivative financial instruments

Available-for-sale financial instruments

Financial receivables and liabilities

For the measurement categories the carrying amounts correspond to the fair values

The non-current financial assets are not traded on the market and are therefore recognised

at amortised cost

The fair values and carrying amounts are based on customary market rates and observable

ongoing market transactions Level under IFRS 7.27A

Transactions against cash settlement are accounted for using the settlement date Derivative

financial instruments are accounted for using the trade date

Net gains and losses include impairments and measurement changes for derivative financial

instruments and are explained in the notes to the relevant measurement categories

Pursuant to lAS 39 the classes under IFRS also include cash proceeds and liabilities from

finance leases in addition to the categories listed above

Disclosures about risk reporting as specified under IERS are included in the risk report within

the consolidated management report

Non-current financial assets

Non-current financial assets other than securities are recognised at cost less impairment losses

Non-current securities are classified as available for salesI and recognised at fair value directly

in equity No assets are classified as Dheld to maturity

Moreover the fair value options provided for under lAS 39 is not applied to any items on the

consolidated statement of financial position for the KRONES Group

Derivative financial instruments

The derivative financial instruments used within the KRONES Group are used to hedge against

currency risks from operating activities

The primarycategory of currency risk at KRONES is transaction risk arising from exchange rates

and cash flows in foreign currencies The currency materially affected by this is the us dollat

Within the hedging strategy ioo% of items denominated in foreign currencies are generally

hedged The primary hedging instruments used for this are forward exchange contracts and

occasionally swaps including currency swaps
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The strategy objective is to minimise currency risk by using hedging instruments that are

viewed as highly effective thus hedging the exchange rate and achieving planning security

The derivative financial instruments are measured at fair value at the reporting date The fair

values are determined using Level inputs under IFRS 7.27A Gains and losses from the mea

surement are recognised as profit or loss on the separate income statement and the statement

of comprehensive income unless the conditions for hedge accounting are met

The derivative financial instruments for which hedge accounting is applied comprise forward

currency contracts and
currency swaps whose changes in fair value are recognised as fair

value hedges in profit or loss or scash flow hedges as part of equity In the case of cash flow

hedges to mitigate currency risks from existing underlying transactions changes in fair value

are initially recognised directly in equity and subsequently reclassified to profit and loss when

the hedged item affects profit or loss These derivative financial instruments are measured on

the basis of the relevant commercial banks forward rates

They are derecognised only when substantially all risks and rewards of ownership are trans

ferred

Receivables and other assets

Receivables and other assets with the exception of derivative financial instruments are assets

that are not held for trading They are recognised at amortised cost Receivables with maturities

of over one year that bear no or lower-than-market interest are discounted Impairments are

recognised to take account for all identifiable risks The indicators used for this are the ageing

of the receivables and the customers business situation

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value Cost includes those costs

that are directly related to the units of production and an appropriate portion of fixed and

variable production overheads The portion of overheads is determined on the basis of normal

capacity of the production facilities Selling costs and general administrative costs are not in

cluded in the costs of inventories For inventory risks arising from increased storage periods or

reduced usability write-downs are made on the inventories

For the sake of convenience in measuring materials and supplies the FiFo and weighted average

cost formulas are applied
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Construction contracts for specific customers

Construction contracts for specific customers that are in progress are recognised by reference

to the stage of completion pursuant to lAS 11 percentage of completion method Under this

method contract revenue is recognised in accordance with the percentage of physical comple

tion of the lines and machines at the reporting date The percentage of completion corresponds

to the ratio of contract costs incurred up to the reporting date to the total costs calculated for

the contract The construction contracts are recognised under trade receivables

Deferred tax items

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised using the balance sheet-oriented liability

methodu which involves recognising deferred tax items for all temporary differences between

the tax base of an asset or liability and its carrying amount in the statement of financial posi

tion under IFRS and for consolidation procedures recognised in profit or loss

The deferred tax items are computed on the basis of the national income tax rates that apply in

the individual countries at the time of realisation Changes in the tax rates are taken into ac

count if there is sufficient certainty that they will occur Where permissible under law deferred

tax assets and liabilities have been offset

Provisions for pensions

Provisions for pensions are calculated using the sprojected unit credit methods pursuant

to lAS 19 Under this method known vested benefits at the reporting date as well as expected

future increases in pensions and salaries are taken into account with due consideration to

relevant factors that will affect the benefit amount which are estimated on prudent basis

The provision is calculated on the basis of actuarial valuations that take into account biometric

factors

Actuarial gains and losses are only recognised as income or expenses
if the net cumulative

unrecognised actuarial gains and losses at the end of the previous reporting period exceeded

the greater of

io% of the present value of the defined benefit obligation at that date before deducting

plan assets and

10% of the fair value of any plan assets at that date

Other provisions

Other provisions are recognised when the group has an obligation to third party as result

of past event an outflow is probable and reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation

can be made Measurement of these provisions is computed at fully attributable costs or on the

basis of the most probable expenditures needed to settle the obligation

Provisions with residual term of more than one year are recognised at the present value of the

probable expenditures needed to settle the obligation at the reporting date
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Financial liabilities

For initial recognition in accordance with lAS 39 financial liabilities are measured at the cost

that is equal to the fair value of the consideration given Transaction costs are included in this

initial measurement of financial liabilities After initial recognition all financial liabilities are

measured at amortised cost

Sales revenues

With the exception of those contracts that are measured according to lAS 11 sales revenues

are recognised in accordance with the criteria laid out under lAS i8 when the significant risks

and rewards of ownership are transferred when price is agreed or can be determined and

economic benefit from the sale of goods is sufficiently probable

Sales revenues are reported less reductions

Segment reporting

KRONES reports on three operating segments which are the strategic business units They are

organised by product divisions and services and managed separately due to the different tech

nologies they covet The Executive Board as the chief operating decision maker manages the

company as whole on the basis of monthly reports from the segments

Segment comprises machines and lines for product filling and decoration

Segment comprises machines and lines for beverage production and
process technology

Segment comprises machines and lines for the low output range

The accounting policies used are the same as those described under HGeneral disclosures

above

Segment performance is measured on the basis of internal reports made to the Executive Board

in particular segment revenues and segment ani

Intrasegment transfers are conducted under the same conditions as transfers among third

parties Intersegment revenues are negligible
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108 Notes to the statement of financial position

Intangible assets

The carrying amount of the intangible assets has changed as follows

in Industrial property

rights and similar Capitalised

rights and assets development

as well as licenses expenditure Total

iJanuary 2008

Cost 69446 83772 153218

Accumulated amortisation 56653 38121 94774

Net carrying amount 12793 45651 58444

Changes in 2008

Cost

Additions 7028 30770 37798

Disposals 184 184

Currency differences 103 103

Amortisation

Additions 5598 10812 16410

Disposals 176 176

Currency differences 94 94

Net carrying amount at 31 December 2008 14206 65609 79815

lianuary 2009

Cost 76187 114542 190729

Accumulated amortisation 61981 48933 110914

Net carrying amount 14206 65609 79815

Changes in 2009

Cost

Additions 4911 23434 28345

Disposals 344 763 1107

Currency differences 166 166

Amortisation

Additions 5889 15880 21769

Disposals 331 482 813

Currency differences 145 145

Net carrying amount at 31 December 2009 13236 72882 86118

31 December 2009

Cost 80920 137213 218133

Accumulated amortisation 67684 64331 132015

Net carrying amount 13236 72882 86118
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The addition under industrial property rights and licenses primarily relates to computer soft

ware licenses

The capitalised development expenditure relates to new machinery projects of JCRONES AG and

the KOSME Group The development expenditure capitalised in 2009 amounts to 23434k pre

vious year 30770k Including capitalised development expenditure total of 97467k was

spent on research and development in 2009 previous year 116381k In the reporting period

an impairment of 6o2ok was recognised on the intangible assets previous year 88k and

relates to the segment machines and lines for product filling and decoratione

Property plant and equipment

For property plant and equipment impairment losses totalling nk were recognised and

there were no reversals under depreciation pursuant to lAS 36 in 2009 previous year 207k

in impairment losses recognised The impairment losses relate to the segment emachines and

lines for product filling and decoratione

In 2009 the carrying amounts for property plant and equipment included grants of 361k

previous year 411k Of the grants 5ok previous year sok were recognised in profit and

loss by way of reduced depreciation charge in 2009

For the property plant and equipment reported there were no restrictions on title or right of

disposal

Property plant and equipment includes leased assets amounting to 19195k previous year

15 735k which are to be attributed as the economic property of the relevant group company

due to the provisions of the underlying lease finance lease

The carrying amounts of the capitalised leased assets are as follows

ink 3lDec200S 310ec2003

Land land
rights

and buildings including buildings on third-party land 17942 14255

Technical equipment and machinery 616 948

Other equipment furniture and fixtures and office equipment 637 532

Total 19195 15735

There were no additions under IFRS or IRIS during the reporting period
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Property plant and equipment have changed as follows

Other

equipment

Technical furniture and

equipment fixtures and

Land and and office Construction

buildings machinery equipment in progress Total

194274 160035 1575 688853

135133 115424 339685

59141 44611 1575 349168

155 155

23343 16967 73919

7261 14817

140 4525

732 47

81 81

16087 34596

6817 13383

10

524 345

51439 14008 386739

211697 175680 14008 748063

138358 124241 361324

73339 51439 14008 386739

25690 14876 17068 2268 59902

1394 2795 3997 19 8205

12301 468 24 12793

213 291 490 20

15973 37807

3485 6498

309

52337 3458 407416

3458 799740

392324

3458 407416

in

lJanuary 2008

Cost 332969

Accumulated depreciation 89128

Net carrying amount 243841

Changes in 2008

Cost

Consolidated additions

Additions 12441 21168

Dispo5als 1285 6262

Transfers 2552 1833

Currency differences 684

Depreciation

Consolidated additions

Additions 9665 8844

Disposals 351 6215

Transfers 10

Currency differences 273 596

Net carrying amount at 31 Dec 2008 247953 73339

lianuary 2009

Cost 346678

Accumulated depreciation 98725

Net carrying amount 247953

Changes in 2009

Cost

Additions

Disposals

Transfers

Currency differences

Depreciation

Additions 10312 11522

Disposals 900 2113

Currency differences 178 330

Net carrying amount at 31 Dec 2009 275103 76518

31 December 2009

Cost 383062 223955 189265

Accumulated depreciation 107959 147437 136928

Net carrying amount 275103 76518 52337
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Non-current financial assets

The non-current financial assets consist primarily of lendings

Inventories

The inventories of the KRONES Group are composed as follows

ink 31Dec2009

Materials and supplies 130095 158706

Work in progress 176603 157864

Finished goods 145813 178685

Goods purchased for sale 61855 64217

Other inventories 7583 9162

Total 521949 568634

Inventories are recognised at the lower of cost and fair value less selling expenses Construction

contracts in progress at the reporting date do not have gross amounts due to customers liabil

ity or gross amounts due from customers asset since recognition is done using the percentage

of completion method

Write-downs of 415o5k on inventories were recognised as expense in 2009 previous year

18537k and are based substantially on customary net realisable values and obsolescence

allowances The amount of reversals of write-downs recognised in profit and loss due to im

proved market conditions was insignificant The carrying amount of the inventories recognised

at fair value less selling expenses totalled 85.461k in 2009 previous year 17290k

Receivables and other assets

ink 31DeC2009

Trade receivables 477084 553769

of which amounts are due in 12 months or later 18827 24754

Other assets 131910 85799

of which amounts are due in 12 months or later 4955 6079

For receivables from customers the amounts recognised correspond to the fair values
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The allowance account developed as follows

AtlJanuary2009 265751

Change in the consolidated group and effects of currency translation 642

Additions 8457

Reversals 10785

At 31 December 2009 24889

The other assets include primarily advances paid 25711k previous year 28363k current

tax assets 23846k previous year 27575k prepaid expenses 3868k previous year 7219k

and creditors with debit balances 2o55k previous year 3332k

The derivative financial instruments measured at fair value which were entered into for future

payment receipts and meet the conditions for hedge accounting or which were entered into as

freestanding hedge transactions amounted to 444k in 2009 previous year 1683k

Cash and cash equivalents

Apart from cash on hand amounting to 162k previous year 8ik the cash and cash equiva

lents of 135519k previous year 1o8376k consist primarily of demand deposits Changes in

cash and cash equivalents under 1A5 sStatement of cash fiows are presented in the statement

of cash flows on page g6

Income tax

Current tax receivables and liabilities consist exclusively of income tax pursuant to lAS 12

The income tax breaks down as follows

ink 310ec2009 3tOecZOO8

Deferred tax expense/income 14406 2790

Current tax 9639 46737

Total 4767 49527

The deferred tax items are computed on the basis of the national income tax rates that apply

or are expected due to the current legal situation in the individual countries at the time of real

isation In Germany corporate income tax rate of 15.0% plus solidarity surcharge of

and local business tax rate Gewerbesteuerhebesatz for KRONES AG that averages 328% apply

Thus the total income tax rate for the companies in Germany is 27.3% Abroad the tax rates

are in the 25% to 42% range The 27.3% rate was used to calculate deferred taxes
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The deferred tax assets and liabilities at 31 December 2009 break down by items on the state

ment of financial position as follows

Deferred tax assets Deferred tax liabilities

310ec2009 310ec2008 31Dec2009 310ec2008

788 19853 18389

130 15150 14333

466 25 13

1398 26 4961

762 2910 3448

12565 1316 543

1080

6936

3415 583 668

9152 1212 600

2347 238 177

735 291 590

1908 1472

39774 43512 45194

30440 41330 30440

9334 2182 14754

The deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised directly in equity amounted to 1003k at

the reporting date previous year 541k and resulted from hedging activities The deferred

tax items recognised on loss carryforwards relate to KRONES AG KRONES USA KOSME Italy and

KOSME Austria According to our earnings planning positive tax results can be expected in

the future Deferred tax items were not recognised on loss carryforwards of 7368k

The tax income of 4767k reported in 2009 is 5948k lower than the expected tax expense

that would theoretically result from application of the domestic tax rate of 27.3% at the group

level The difference can be attributed to the following

113

ink 3lDeclOO9 31Dec2008

Tax rate for the parent company KRONES AG 27.30% 27.30%

Expected theoretical tax expense 10715 42607

Adjustments due to different tax rates 1160 473

Reductions in tax due to tax-free earnings 162 2252

Tax loss carryforwards 19 38

Increases in tax expense due to non-deductible expenses 8529 7015

Tax income /tax expense for previous years 4360 2532

Other 762 886

Income tax 4767 49527

The difference between reductions in taxes and increases in taxes for 2009 yields net increase

in taxes This is primarily attributable to non-deductible operating expenses

ink

Intangible assets 204

Property plant and equipment 129

Non-current financial assets

Other non-current assets 2252

Inventories 1386

Other current assets 6715

Tax loss carryforwards 7857

Provisions non-current 5379

Other non-current liabilities 3350

Provisions current 25537

Other current liabilities 336

Cash flow hedging 190

Consolidation

Subtotal 53335

Offsetting 41330

Total 12005
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Equity

KRONES AGS issued capital amounted to 40000000.00 at 31 December 2009 unchanged

on the previous year It is divided into 31593072 ordinary bearer shares with par value of 1.27

per share

The company is authorised pursuant to 71 No of the German Stock Corporation Act AktG

to buy treasury shares totalling up to 10% of the current share capital in compliance with the

provisions of the law and of the resolution

The authorisation can be exercised by the company by its consolidated companies or by third

party acting on its or their behalf either in whole or in part once or multiple times in pursuit

of one or multiple purposes

The authorisation becomes effective upon resolution by the shareholders meeting and applies

until the end of the day i6 December 2010 The authorisation to purchase treasury shares as

resolved by the shareholders meeting on i8 June 2008 ends when this new authorisation takes

effect

The amount of treasury shares purchased under this authorisation together with other trea

sury shares that the company has already acquired or still holds or shares that the company is

deemed to hold pursuant to 71 et seq of the German Stock Corporation Act shall at no time

exceed io% of the companys share capital The authorisation shall not be used for the purpose

of trading in the companys shares

The acquisition may be carried out at the discretion of the Executive Board through stock

exchange through public tender offer or through public call for tenders If the shares are

purchased directly through stock exchange the consideration paid per share excluding inci

dental costs shall not exceed by more than 10% and not fall short of by more than io% the

opening price in the XETRA trading system or any comparable successor system on the Frank

furt Stock Exchange on the trading day If the shares are purchased through public tender of

fer or public call for tenders the tender price per share or the high and low ends of the price

range per share excluding incidental costs shall not exceed by more than 20% and not fall

short of by more than 20% the opening price in the XETRA trading system or any comparable

successor system on the Frankfurt Stock Exchange on the third trading day prior to the public

announcement of the tender offer or call for tenders the srelevant price If significant devia

tions in the relevant price occur after the publication of an announcement of public tender

offer or public call for tenders the offer or invitation to tender can be adjusted In such case

the basis of any adjustment will be the corresponding price on the last trading day prior to

the public announcement of any adjustment The tender offer or call for tenders can stipulate

additional conditions If the tender offer is oversubscribed or in the case of call for tenders

if there are several tenders of equal value and the total amount exceeds the total amount ac

cepted acceptance must be granted on pro-rated basis Provision may be made for preferen

tial acceptance of small lots of up to 100 tendered shares per shareholder
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LiS

The Executive Board is authorised to use shares of the company that are purchased under this

authorisation for any lawful purpose including any of the following

The shares can be sold in return for contributions in kind particularly as part of business

combinations or the acquisition of companies parts of companies or interests in companies

The shares can be sold by means other than stock exchange if they are sold at price not

substantially below the stock exchange price of the companys shares at the time of the sale

The shares can be cancelled without the cancellation or its execution requiring further

resolution by the annual shareholders meeting

These authorisations relating to the use of treasury shares can be exercised once or multiple

times individually or jointly in whole or in part

The shareholders subscription rights on these treasury shares is excluded insofar as these

shares are sold in return for contributions in kind or sold by means other than the stock

exchange in accordance with the above authorisation

The authorisations relating to the use of treasury shares and to the subscription rights of

shareholders apply to treasury shares already purchased by the company under authorisations

resolved by previous annual shareholders meetings

The changes in equity that are not recognised in profit or loss excluding dividends totalled

2515k in 2009 previous year 2412k and consist of changes in currency differences and

hedge accounting The sum of changes in equity that are not recognised in profit or loss and

those that are recognised in profit or loss was 31966k previous year 104131k

Disclosures about capital management

strong equity position is an important prerequisite for ensuring KRONE5 long-term survival

To achieve this KRONE5 regularly monitors and manages its capital on the basis of the equity

ratio return on capital employed RacE and return on equity RoE

Capital reserves

The capital reserves total 66645k previous year 1o37o3k The reduction results from the

purchase of treasury shares in the amount of 37o58k The capital reserves do not include any

additional capital contributions under 272 No of the German Commercial Code HGB

10 Retained earnings

The legal reserve remains unchanged from the previous year at ik

The other retained earnings include the recognition of negative goodwill from capital consoli

dation for subsidiaries consolidated before January 2004 and adjustments made directly in

equity at January 2004 as part of the first-time application of IFRS5
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Apart from the currency translations of financial statements of foreign subsidiaries that are

recognised directly in equity currency differences recognised under retained earnings also in

clude exchange differences resulting from the translation of equity using historical exchange

rates

11 Other reserves

The other reserves include the effects from the recognition in equity of financial instruments

measured after taxes

Changes in the reserve for cash flow hedges presented under other reserves and the reserve for

the fair value of securities were as follows

in

At lianuary 2008

Measurement change recognised in equity

Tax on items taken directly to or transferred from equity

Currency difference

At 31 December 2008

Measurement change recognised in equity

Tax on items taken
directly

to or transferred from equity

Currency difference

At 31 December 2009

Reserve Reserve Total

for forthe fair

cash flow value of

hedges securities

697 693

1218 15 1203

432 427

74 74

1557 14 1543

2578 2571

806 804

224 233

12 Non-controIlng interests

The item on the consolidated statement of financial position for non-controlling interests

contains third-party shares in the earnings of MAINTEC GmbH Collenberg/Main

detailed overview of the composition of and changes to the individual equity components for

the KRONES Group in 2009 and the previous year is presented in the statement of changes in

equity on page 97
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13 Provisions for pensions

The provisions for pensions have been recognised for obligations relating to vested benefits

and current benefit payments to eligible active and former employees of the companies of the

KRONES Group and their surviving dependents Various forms of provisioning for retirement

exist depending on the legal economic and tax circumstances of the relevant country and are

generally based on the employees remuneration and years of service

Company pension plans are generally either defined contribution plans or defined benefit plans

In defined contribution plans the company does not assume any obligations beyond establish

ing contribution payments to special purpose funds Contributions are recognised as personnel

expense in the year in which they are paid

In defined benefit plans the company undertakes an obligation to render the benefits promised

to active and former employees whereby distinction is made between systems that are

financed by provisions and those financed through pension funds The amount of the pension

obligations sdefined benefit obligations has been computed in accordance with actuarial

methods Apart from the assumptions regarding life expectancy the following factors were

also taken into account in the actuarial calculation

n/ Germany Otliertountrles

2009 2008 2009 2008

Discount rate 5.00 5.85 8.00 8.00

Projected
increases in wages and salaries 0.00 0.00 3.50 5.90

Projected increases in state pensions 2.00 2.50 0.00 0.00

The projected increases in wages and salaries comprises expected future pay increases which

are estimated each year on the basis of inflation and employees years of service with the com

pany Since the pension commitments at our companies in Germany are independent of future

pay increases the projected increase in wages and salaries was not taken into account for deter

mining the corresponding pension provisions

Increases or decreases in either the net present value of obligations under defined benefit

plans or the fair value of the fund assets can result in actuarial gains or losses due to such fac

tors as changes in the parameters changes in estimates relating to the risks associated with the

pension commitments and differences between the actual and expected return on plan assets

The net value of the pension provisions breaks down as follows
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nk 310ec2009

Present value of benefit commitments financed by provisions 79093 66459

Present value of benefit commitments financed through pension funds 32750 32477

Present value of benefit commitments gross 111843 98936

Fair value of plan assets 19170 18007

Present value of benefit commitments net 92673 80929

Actuarial gains losses not recognised in the statement of financial position 15922 6445

Past service cost 15

Carrying amount at 31 December 76751 74469

The pension provisions which amounted to 76184k at the reporting date previous year

73999k are primarily attributable to KRONES AG

The composition of costs arising from pension obligations which amounted to 7515k previ

ous year 7lllk the reconciliation of the present value of defined benefit obligations which

amounted to 111843k previous year 98936k and the plan assets of 19l7ok previous year

18007k breaks down as follows

ink 310ec2009

Current service cost 2569 2662

Interest expense 5647 5203

Expected return on plan assets 728 758

Recognised past service cost 27

Costs arising from pension obligations 7515 7111

ink 3lDec200S

Present value of benefit commitments at January 98936 96477

Current service cost 2569 2662

Interest expense 5647 5203

Actuarial losses /gains not recognised in the statement of financial position 8290 905

Benefits paid 3587 6152

Recognised past service cost 27

Currency differences 39 163

Present value of benefit commitments at 31 December 111843 98936

Costs arising from pension commitments are recognised under personnel expenses

The actual return on plan assets was 4.41% The plan assets consist of securities No payments

are expected to be made into the plan in 2010 The expected return is estimated on the basis

of the fund administrators future interest rate developments In 2009 total of 39497k

previous year 37961k was spent on the employer contribution to defined contribution plans

contributions to pensions insurance
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Reconciliation of the assets ink 31Dec2009 310ec2008

Plan assets at start of year 18007 18918

Expected return 728 758

Employer contributions 3883 3946

Benefits paid 2219 2228

Net unrecognised gains on assets 1207 3497

Currency differences 22 110

Plan assets at end of year 19170 18007

ink 31Dec2009 3lDec200e1 310ec2007 310ec2006 310ec2005

Present value of benefit commitments 111843 98936 96477 113246 111109

Fair value of plan assets 19170 18007 18918 19137 19810

Deficit of plan assets 13580 14470 12509 7464 7893

14 Provisions for taxes and other provisions

Of the other provisions amounting to 221253k previous year 1618o9k 18386ok previous

year 121356k are due within one year These other provisions apply to the following items

in Jan 2009 Use Reversal Addition Currency 31 Dec 2009 Due within

differences lyear

Tax liabilities 17424 11178 3459 5577 10 8374 8099

Personnel obligations 39913 4196 419 1115 16 36429 117

Administrative expenses 137 137 136 135 135

Other remaining provisions 121759 36601 7429 104854 2106 184689 183608

Total 179233 52112 11307 111682 2131 229627 191959

The provisions for personnel obligations are primarily for non-current obligations relating to

early retirement 29962k previous year 33823k The other remaining provisions primarily

consist of warranties and anticipated losses Estimates are based on customary empirical values

The non-current provisions have been discounted using rates between 4.0% and 5.0%
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15 Liabilities

in Residual Residual Residual Total

termofupto term of term of over at

1.2 months ito 5years 5years 31 Dec 2009

Liabilities to banks

Advances received 434245 434245

Trade payables 162259 162259

Other financial liabilities 5889 2891 8780

Other liabilities 175495 5503 180998

Total 777898 8394 786282

in Residual Residual Residual Total

termofupto term of term of over at

12 months to
years years 31 Dec 2008

Liabilities to banks 83 361 287 731

Advances received 288686 288686

Trade payables 160458 55 160513

Other financial liabilities 37110 7083 44193

Other liabilities 266093 6435 272528

Total 752430 13934 287 766651

The other financial liabilities are obligations on bills Under lAS 39 these represent possible

liabilities from bills sold and are recognised as trade receivables amounting to 6213k previ

ous year 42225k

The other liabilities consist of deferred income 7566k previous year 2627k and other

remaining liabilities 173432k previous year 2699olk

The other remaining liabilities break down as follows

in Residual Residual Residual Total

termofupto term of term of over at

i2months lto5years Syears 31Dec2009

Tax liabilities 9949 301 10250

Social security liabilities 4089 4089

Payroll liabilities 10216 10216

Debtors with credit balances 8479 8479

Finance leases 783 3955 4738

Accruals 125564 125564

Other 8849 1247 10096

Total 167929 5503 173432

Accruals which amounted to 125564k previous year 202755k have greater certainty with

respect to their amount and timing than provisions have The primary items they include are

outstanding supplier invoices obligations relating to flexible working hours and accrued

vacation

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF KRONES GROUP NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION



ink Residual Residual Residual Total

termofupto term of term of over at

12 months ito
years years 31 Dec 2008

Tax liabilities 25727 217 25944

Social security liabilities 4908 4908

Payroll liabilities 10494 10494

Debtors with credit balances 6717 6717

Finance leases 864 5422 6286

Accruals 202755 202755

Other 12001 796 12797

Total 263466 6435 269901

121

The liabilities from finance leases are recognised under other liabilities without consideration

of future interest expense The residual terms of the individual leases are between and years

Some of the leases contain options for extension or purchase

The present values of minimum lease payments for finance leases recognised under the other

remaining liabilities are as follows broken down by residual term

Present value of future minimum lease payments

1467

7010

8477

603

1588

2191

Upto lyear 783 864

ito 5years 3955 5422

Over 5years

4738 6286

16 Contingent liabilities

No provisions have been recognised for the contingent liabilities because the risk of their use

is deemed to be low

They consist of guarantee and warranty
risks amounting to 182k previous year 949k and

are guarantees on advances and residual purchase price guarantees

in

Future minimum lease payments

Up to year 1292

310cc 2009 Dec 2008

to years 4989

Over years

6281

Interest portion of future minimum lease payments

Uptolyear 509

to years 1034

Over5years

1543

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF KRONES GROUP NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
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17 Other financial liabilities

The other financial liabilities consist primarily of operating leases and long-term rental

agreements for land and buildings vehicles computers and telecommunication equipment

nk 310ec2009 3lDec200R

Future minimum lease payments

Uptolyear 12608 14490

to years 11548 13778

24156 28268

Future maintenance

Up to year 7820 7073

to years 9713 4804

Over5years

17533 11878

Other

Uptolyear 75 180

to years 201 293

Over5years 33 38

309 511

Payments amounting to 15212k previous year 15522k were made under these rental and

lease agreements in 2009

In the case of operating leases the leased assets are treated as assets belonging to the lessor

since the lessor bears the risks and rewards

18 Derivative financial instruments

The derivative financial instruments of the KRONES Group with fair value of 658k previous

year 1246k of which 658k are short-term previous year 1246k substantially cover the

currency risks relating to the us dollar the New Zealand dollar the Chinese renminbi yuan

and the euro The fair value includes the difference between the forward rate received from the

relevant commercial bank and the rate at the reporting date as well as appropriate premiums or

discounts for the expected price development through maturity These financial instruments

are accounted for using the settlement date

The derivative financial instruments are essentially composed of forward exchange contracts at

secured volume of 72.9m previous year 84.lm of which 72.6m are short-term previous

year 84.lm This volume includes nominal volume of 36.5m previous year 41.9m for

short-term cash flow hedges that is measured at fair value of 36.8m previous year 4o.2m
The risk of default relating to derivative financial instruments is limited to the balance of the

positive fair values in the event of contracting partys default The cash flow hedges presented

are effective

The net gain from these financial instruments was 27ok in 2009

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF KRONES GROUP NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
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19 Sales revenues

The sales revenues of the ICRONES Group which amount to 1864921k previous year

2381407k consist of deliveries and services billed to customers less reductions In the seg

ment reporting sales revenues are presented in detail divided by business area and geographic

market In fiscal 2009 revenues of 942976k resulted from construction contracts Costs of

233060k were incurred for contracts in progress Advances received amounted to 1225o9k

20 Other own work capitalised

Other own work capitalised includes capitalised development expenditure and capitalised cost

of self-constructed property plant and equipment

With respect to the development expenditure capitalised in accordance with lAS 38 please refer

to the notes on intangible assets

21 Other operating income

Apart from the income from the reversal of provisions 113o7k previous year 14433k and

the reversal of impairments 7841k previous year 5615k which are not related to the period

the other operating income which amounts to 1o3289k previous year 69o73k consists

substantially of currency translation gains of 30150k previous year @9003k This is com

pared with the recognition of impairment losses of 7o54k previous year 8633k and currency

translation losses of 33525k previous year 31892k under other operating expenses

22 Goods and services purchased

The expenditure for goods and services purchased comprises expenses for materials and sup

plies and for goods purchased amounting to 824321k previous year 1007287k and expenses

for services purchased amounting to @71868k previous year 248look

23 Personnel expenses

Within the KRONES Group 10001 people previous year 9834 including trainees 527 were

employed on average for the year The workforce of the KRONES Group is composed as follows

on average for the year

Salaried employees

31 Dec 2003 3eflpOs

Wage-earning employees

5762 5622

Total

4239 4212

10001 9834

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF KEONES CROUP NOTES TO THE INCOME STATEMENT
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24 Other operating expenses

Apart from the 684k in losses from disposals of non-current assets previous year 122k

which are not related to the period other operating expenses include additions to impairments

on receivables 7054 previous year 8633k other taxes 22o4k previous year 2577k

freight costs 54592k previous year 68783k and rent and cleaning costs 2o988k previ

ous year 22092k

25 Financial income expense

The financial income expense of9643k previous year 156ok breaks down as follows

ink 31Dec2009

Income from other securities and loans classified as non-current financial assets 22

Other interest and similar income 6800 3663

Interest and similar expenses 4232 6809

Interest income expense 2568 3124

Write-downs on non-current financial assets 13188

Investment income 969 1564

Financial income expense 9643 1560

The write-downs on non-current financial assets result from impairments on long-term finan

cial assets

26 Income taxes

Income tax amounted to 4767k in 2009 previous year 49527k More information is

presented under Note elncome taxe pages 112114

27 Earnings per share

Under lAS 33 Earnings per sharee basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing consoli

dated net income less profit or loss shares of non-controlling interests by the weighted aver

age number of ordinary shares in circulation as follows

nk 31Dec2009 2008

Consolidated net income less profit or loss shares of non-controlling interests in 34650 106992

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in circulation 30678043 31593072

Earnings per share in 1.13 3.39

As in the previous year diluted earnings per share are equal to undiluted earnings per share

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF KRONES GROUP NOTES TO THE INCOME STATEMENT
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Groupauditfees

Expenses of 38ok previous year 380k were incurred in fiscal 2009 for the KRONES Group

audit and the audit of the parent company In addition expenses for tax consultancy services

totalling 158k were incurred previous year io6k The expense for the audit of the subsidiaries

was 56k previous year 58k and for other services 57k previous year 55k

Events after the reporting date

No events of material importance occurred after the reporting date

Related party disclosures

Within the meaning of lAS 24 Related party disclosures the members of the Supervisory Board

and of the Executive Board of KRONES AG and the companies of the KRONES Group including

unconsolidated subsidiaries are deemed related parties Purchases and sales between the related

companies are transacted at prices customary on the market at arms length Sales to related

companies amounted to 37533k in 2009 previous year 43061 Trade and other payment

transactions resulted in liabilities of 14071k previous year assets of 3726k

Compensation of the Executive Board and the Supervisory Board

The compensation report summarises the principles used to determine the compensation of the

Executive Board of KRONES AG and explains the amount and the structure of such income The

principles and the amount of Supervisory Board compensation are also set out in the report The

compensation report is part of the corporate governance report and is on pages 87 to 89 of the

2009 Annual Report

ii Other

Since 2008 KRONES AG and other parties are defendants in various proceedings arising from

the bankruptcy of former customet KRONES AG believes that it is too early to give conclusive

assessment but considers the charges to be unfounded

Corporate governance

Shareholders can view the declaration of the Executive Board and the Supervisory Board pursu

ant to i6i of the German Stock Corporation Act concerning the Corporate Governance

Code as amended on i8 June 2009 at KRONE5 AGs website The exceptions are also listed there

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF KEONES GROUP OTHER DISCLOSURES
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Standards and interpretations not applied early

The IASB has issued the following standards interpretations and amendments to existing stan

dards the application of which is not yet mandatory and which KRONES AG did not apply early

IFR5 sBusiness combinationsa

lAS 27 Consolidated and separate financial statementss

lAs 39 Financial instruments recognition and measurement

eligible hedged items

lAS 39 Financial instruments recognition and measurement

reclassification of financial assets effective date and transition

These new standards and interpretations are not expected to result in material changes for the

consolidated financial statements of KRONES AG in the period in which they are first applied

The following standards and interpretations the application of which is not yet mandatory

do not apply to the consolidated financial statements of KRONES AG

lAS 32 sFinancial instruments presentation classification of rights issuess

IFRIC 12 aService concession arrangements

IFRIC 15 Agreements for the construction of real estate

IFRIC i6 Hedges of net investment in foreign operationEs

IFRIC i8 Transfers of assets from customersEs

Changes due to new standard or new interpretation

lAS Presentation of financial statements

lAS 23 EsBorrowing costs

Amendment of IFRS First-time adoption of international financial reporting standardso

and lAS 27 Consolidated and separate financial statements

under IFRS5H

Amendment of IFRS Share-based payment vesting conditions and cancellations

Amendment of lAS 32 Financial instruments presentation and lAS aPresentation of

financial statements revised

IFRIC 13 aCustomer loyalty programmes

IFRIC 14 IAS 19The limit on defined benefit asset minimum funding

requirements and their interaction

IFRIC 17 Distributions of non-cash assets to ownerss

These changes are not applicable to KRONES or resulted in no substantial effects in the report

ing period

Amendment of IFRS Financial instruments presentationo

IFRS Operating segments

Application of IFRS and IFRS resulted in additional disclosures in the notes to the consoli

dated financial statements and in the segment reporting

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF KRONES OROUP STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
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Name and location of the company Share in capital

held by KRONES AG

in

neusped Neutraublinger Speditions-GmbH Neutraubling Germany 10000

KIC KR0NES Internationale Cooperations-Gesellschaft mbH Neutraubling Germany 100.00

ecomac Gebrauchtmaschinen GmbH Neutraubling Germany 100.00

MAINTEC Service GmbH Collenberg/Main Germany 51.00

S.A KEONES nv Louvain-la-Neuve Belgium 100.00

KRONES NordicApS Holte Denmark 100.00

KRONES S.A.R.L Lyon France 100.00

KRONES uK ltd Bolton UK 100.00

KOSME UK ltd Burton on Trent Staffordshire UK 100.00

KRONES S.R.L Garda vR Italy
100.00

KOSME S.R.L Roverbella Italy 100.00

SMEFIN S.R.L Roverbella Italy 100.00

KRONE5 Nederland b.v Bodegraven Netherlands 100.00

KOSME Gesellschaft mbh Sollenau Austria 100.00

KRONES SpOlka z.o.o Warsaw Poland 100.00

KRONE5 Portugal Equipamentos lndustriais Lda Barcarena Portugal 100.00

KRONES 0.0.0 Moscow Russian Federation 100.00

KRONES Romania Prod SR.. Bucharest Romania 100.00

KRONES AG Buttwil Switzerland 100.00

KRONE5 Iberica S.A Barcelona Spain 100.00

KRONES s..a Prague Czech Republic 100.00

KRONES Ukraine LLC Kiev Ukraine 100.00

MAINTEC Service eood Sofia Bulgaria 51.00

MAINTEC Service Ges.m.b.H Dorf an der Pram Austria 51.00

KRONEs Surlatina S.A Buenos Aires Argentina 100.00

KRONES do Brazil Itda Sªo Paulo Brazil 100.00

KRONES S.A Sao Paulo Brazil 100.00

KRONES Machinery Taicang Co Ltd Taicang China 100.00

KRONES Trading Taicang Co Ltd Taicang China 100.00

KRONES Asia Ltd Hong Kong China 100.00

KRONES India Pvt Ltd Bangalore India 100.00

KRONES Japan Co Ltd Tokyo Japan 100.00

KRONES Machinery Co Ltd Brampton Ontario Canada 100.00

KR0FEs LCS Center East Africa Limited Nairobi Kenya 100.00

KRONES Andina Ltda Bogota Colombia 100.00

KRONES Korea Ltd Seoul Korea 100.00

KRONE5 Mex DE Mexico City Mexico 100.00

KRONES LCS Center West Africa Limited Lagos Nigeria 100.00

KRONES Southern Africa Prop Ltd Johannesburg South Africa 100.00

KRONES Thailand Co Ltd Bangkok Thailand 100.00

KRONES Inc Franklin Wisconsin USA 100.00

Maquinarias KRONE5 de Venezuela Caracas Venezuela 100.00

Beverage Consulting and Engineering Co Ltd Bangkok Thailand 49.00

Direct and indirect 5harehOldiflgs
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128 Members of the Supervisory Board and the Executive Board

Following fulfilment of the requirements for application of the German Codetermination Act

gesetzj of 1976 in 1987 the Supervisory Board was extended from six to twelve members Pursuant to 81
of the articles of association six members are elected by the shareholders in accordance with the German Stock

Corporation Act 961 and 101 Six members are elected by the employees pursuant to and

Sentence No.1 of the Codetermination Act

Supervisory Board Executive Board

Ernst Baumann Prof Dr Ing Erich Kohnhäuser Volker Kronseder

Chairman MAX AICHER STAHL AG Chairman

Group Communication

Dr Lorenz Raith Norman Kronseder Personnel Management

Chairman KRON5EDER FAMILY OFFIcE and Social Affairs

until 17 June 2009 BAVERIScHE FuTTER5AATBAu KRONE5 INC USA

LEISTRITZ AG GMBH

MOLL AG Hans-JiJrgen Thaus

PR0FTEcHHIK AG Philipp
Graf Deputy Chairman

HEITEC AG von und zu Lerchenfeld Finance Controlling

Member of the Bavarian Landtag Information Management

Werner Schrodl Dipl.-lng agr auditor and tax and Process Management

Chairman of the Central Works consultant KURTZ GMBH

Council since 17 June 2009 KR0NES INC 5A

Deputy Chairman MAScHINENFABRIK REINHAuSEN

Dr Alexander Nerz GM8H

Herbert Gerstner Attorney

Member of the Works Council Rainuif Diepold

until 17 June 2009 Johann Robold Marketing and Sales

Member of the Works Council

Dr Klaus Heimann since 17 June 2009 Werner Frischholz

Director of the Youth Materials Management

Training and Qualification Anton Schindlbeck and Production

Policy Division of 10 METALL Head of sales for LCS

MAN AG Christoph Kienk

Jiirgen Scholz Research and Development

Dr Jochen Klein authorised representative Engineering and Product Divisions

Chairman of the advisory council and treasurer of the IG METALL WINKLER DONNEBIER AG

of DOHLER HOLDING GMBH administrative office in Regensburg

OOHLER GROUP INFINEON TECHNOLOGIES AG

HOVER GROUP

Josef Weitzer

Chairman of the Works Council

Member of the Board of Directors

of Sparkasse Regensburg

Other Supervisory Board seats held pursuant to 125 Sentence of the German Stock Corporation Act

Elected by the employees

In addition each of the Group companies is the responsibility of two members of the Executive Board

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF KEONES GROUP MEMBERS OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD ANO THE EXECUTIVE BOARD



Proposal for the use of the net accumulated loss of KRONES AG 129

KRONES AG had net accumulated loss of 80718196.93 at 31 December 2009

We propose to the annual shareholders meeting on 16 June 2010 that this amount be carried forward

Further we propose to the annual shareholders meeting that no dividend be paid for scal 2009

Neutraubling 30 March 2010

KRONES AG

The Executive Board

jj
Volker Kronseder Hans-Jürgen Thaus Rainulf Diepold

Chairman Deputy Chairman

Werner Frischholz Christoph Klenk

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF KRONES GROUP PROPOSAL FOR THE USE OF THE NET AccuMuLATED LOSS OF KRONES AG



130 Auditcrs report

We have audited the consolidated financial statements prepared by KRONE5

Aktiengesellschaft Neutraubling comprising the separate income statement the

statement of comprehensive income the statement of financial position the state

ment of cash flows the statement of changes in equity and the notes to the consoli

dated financial statements together with the group management report for the

financial year from January 2009 to 31 December 2009 The preparation of the

consolidated financial statements and the group management report in accordance

with IFass as adopted by the su and the additional requirements of German com

mercial law pursuant to 315 Abs HGB are the responsibility of the

parent companys management Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the

consolidated financial statements and on the group management report based on

our audit

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance

with 317 HGB and German generally accepted standards for the audit of financial

statements promulgated by the Institut der WirtschaftsprUfer of Public

Auditors in Germany mw Those standards require that we plan and perform the

audit such that misstatements materially affecting the presentation of the net as

sets financial position and results of operations in the consolidated financial state

ments in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework and in the

group management report are detected with reasonable assurance Knowledge of

the business activities and the economic and legal environment of the Group and

expectations as to possible misstatements are taken into account in the determina

tion of audit procedures The effectiveness of the accounting-related internal control

system and the evidence supporting the disclosures in the consolidated financial

statements and the group management report are examined primarily on the basis

of samples within the framework of the audit The audit includes assessing the an

nual financial statements of those entities included in consolidation the determina

tion of entities to be included in consolidation the accounting and consolidation

principles used and significant estimates made by management as well as evaluat

ing the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements and the group

management report We believe that our audit provides reasonable basis for our

opinion

Our audit has not led to any reservations

AUDITORS REPORT
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In our opinion based on the findings of our audit the consolidated financial state

ments comply with IFRS5 as adopted by the EU and the additional requirements of

German commercial law pursuant to 315a Abs HOB and give true and fair view

of the net assets financial position and results of operations of the Group in accor

dance with these requirements The group management report is consistent with

the consolidated financial statements and as whole provides suitable view of the

Groups position and suitably presents the opportunities and risks of future develop

ment

Regensburg 30 March 2010

KPMG Bayerische Treuhandgesellschaft

Aktiengesellschaft WirtschaftsprUfungsgesellschaft Steuerberatungsgesellschaft

Rupprecht Medick

Wirtschaftsprufer Wirtschaftsprüfer

German Public Auditor German Public Auditor

AUDITORS REPORT
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Gossary

Affiliated companies See subsidiaries

Cash flow Financial flow variable indicating the cash surplus net income plus depreciation

Corporate governance Responsible corporate management and supervision that is oriented toward long-term value creation

DAX Deutscher Aktienindex DAx Index containing the 30 biggest German companies based on market

capitalisation and trading volume

Deferred tax items Temporary differences between the taxes calculated on the results reported on tax statements and

those calculated on the results recognised in the financial statements under FRss The purpose is to

show the tax expense in relation to the result under IFRss

EBITDA Earnings before interest taxes depreciation and amortisation

EBIT Earnings before interest and taxes

EBT Earnings before taxes

Equity Funds made available to the company by the owners by way of contribution and/or investment

plus retained earnings or losses

Free float Portion of the total number of shares outstanding that is available to the public for trading

IFRSS International Financial Reporting Standards Accounting standards issued by the International

Accounting Standards Board lAse that are harmonised and applied internationally

Market capitalisation The value ofa company based on the market price
of issued and outstanding ordinary shares

Calculated by multiplying the share price by the number of shares

MoAx Index that contains the SO biggest German and non-German companies based on market

capitalisation and trading volume in the traditional sectors after those included in the on

Net cash and equivalents Cash and highly liquid securities under current assets less liabilities to banks

Non-current assets Assets which are intended to permanently serve the business operations

Price/earnings PE ratio The PE ratio is an important ratio for evaluating shares It is calculated by dividing the share

price by earnings per share The lower the PE ratio the better the value

Return on equity Ratio of net income to equity

Return on equity before taxes Ratio of earnings before taxes to average equity

RocE Ratio of EBIT to average capital employed total assets less interest-free liabilities and other provisions

Rol Return on investment Ratio of earnings before taxes to total capital

Ros Return on sales Ratio of earnings before taxes to sales

Statement of cash flows Statement of inflows and outflows of cash that shows the sources and uses offunds within the

financial year

Subsidiaries All companies that are controlled directly or indirectly by parent company due to majority interest

and/or common management

Total debt Combined term for the provisions liabilities and deferred income stated on the liabilities side of the

balance sheet

Working capital Working capital
is calculated as current assets less cash and cash equivalents and less trade payables

Working capital expresses the portion of assets that are working for the company i.e generating sales

revenues

XETRA trading system Electronic stock market trading system

GLOssARY
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27Apr11 2010 Annual report for 2009

Interim report for the period ended 31 March
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At glance new orders orders on hand capital expenditure earnings per share

New orders

Orders on hand

Capital expenditure

Earnings per share

Product divisions and

segments

KRONE5 Group new orders in KRONE5 Group orders on hand in
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Germany
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in the Investor Relations section at krones.com
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Ql 2010 2009 hangeKey guràs ata glance

Sales

New orders cumulative including Lifecycle Service

Orders on hand at 31 March including IJfecycl Service

Capital expenditure for PPE and intangible assets rn

Employees at 31 March

Worldwide

ermany

Earntngs per share
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550.4
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Dear shareholders and friends of KRONE5

Germany will soon experience shortage of workers That is the conclusion of

study undertaken by the management consulting firm McKinsey According to the

study companies will begin to have difficulty filling vacancies with qualified per

sonnel beginning in 2015 By 2020 the shortage could amount to some two million

workers For this reason McKinsey recommends that companies maintain their core

workforces despite the difficult economic times This recommendation confirms

that ICRONES strategy is the right one While many companies slashed jobs last year

in order to cut costs in the short term we held on to our core workforce in keeping

with our corporate strategy of doing business sustainably

Already in the first quarter of 2010 this decision is paying off as demand for our

products and services and therefore utilisation of our production capacities has

picked up considerably New orders were up 32.8% compared with year ago to

550.4m and sales rose io.6% to 533.5m After having posted loss in
every quarter

of 2009 KRONE5 generated earnings before taxes of 13.2m in the period from

January to March 2010

The speed and extent to which the economic situation continues to change is truly

remarkable Less than year ago economists feared that the global economy was

sliding into deep long depression Happily that worry is now thing of the past

The rapid ups and downs that were previously known only to the stock markets

appear to be having more and more of an impact on the real economy KRONES is

adapting to this new situation and working through the Conversion programme

to ensure that we can react to changes from outside with even greater agility and

flexibility

%A
Volker Kronseder Hans-Jurgen Thaus

Chairman of the Executive Board Deputy Chairman of the Executive Board



Economic environment

Global economy is back on course for growth

Most economists expect the global economy to recover from last years deep

recession in 2010 Billions in economic stimulus packages in many industrialised

and emerging economies together with expansionary monetary policy of the

worlds most important central banks have had positive impact on economic

activity The International Monetary Fund IMF expects the global economy to

grow by 3.9% this year

Experts are predicting the strongest growth to be in Asias emerging and developing

countries The IMF growth forecast for Chinas economy is io% For India the growth

forecast is almost 8% Even the worlds biggest economy is once again gaining mo
mentum The IMP estimates that the USAs gross domestic product GDP will grow

2.7% this year Experts are predicting just i.o% growth for the euro area

The ifo business climate index one of the most important leading indicators for the

Gerrpan economy improved further in March bolstering hopes that Germany is on

the road to significant economic recovery After relatively weak first quarter the

domestic economy will likely pick up increasing momentum over the course of the

year The IMF forecasts i.% GDP growth for Germany in 2010

The German machinery sector is slowly climbing out of the trough

The German Engineering Federation VDMA believes the crisis in the industry is

not yet over but that the sharp downturn has ended Customers propensity to place

orders has improved recently though it is starting out from very low level In Feb

ruary 2010 new orders in the industry were 26% higher than year earlier Business

in Germany improved i6%while demand from abroad increased 32% less volatile

three-month comparison of the period from December 2009 to February 2010 re

veals io% year-over-year increase in new orders The VDMA expects total output

among German machinery and industrial equipment manufacturers to stagnate

this year In 2009 output slumped by around 25%

New orders in Germanys machinery sector

Germahy

world

1999 2000 2001 2002 2003

Price-adjusted index 2005 basis iee

The global economy escaped

the recession faster than expected

New orders in the German

machinery sector in February were

up canaiderably year-aver-year

2004 2005 2006

Source VEMA 31 March 2010

MANAGEMENT eePORT EcONOMIc ENVIEONMENT



Sales

Sales up 10.6%
year-over-year

The global financial and economic crisis had prompted KRONES customers to cut

back sharply on capital spending particularly in the first half of 2009 Since the

drinktec in September 2009 the worlds biggest trade fair for the beverage and pack

aging industry the entire industry has recovered from its shock-induced paralysis

The general economic situation has also improved in recent months And this has

had positive impact on business activity at KRONES

In the first quarter of 2010 the companys sales were 533.5m up 10.6% from the

year-earlier period KRONES plastics technology division accounted for lions share

of those sales This business unit supplies machines and lines for producing and

filling bottles made of PET polyethylene terephthalate Sales in KRONES services

division increased even more sharply than new machinery sales

KRONES Group sales in January31 March

595.2

53 3.5

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

Sales by region

Sales in Germany were down 38.3% in the first quarter of 2010 compared to the year- KRONES ratio of exports to total

earlier period from 88.4m to 54.6m However it should be noted that invoice tim-
sales was nearly 90% in the

first

quarter of 2010

ing had resulted in an exceptionally sharp increase in sales in Germany for the first

three months of 2009

Sales in Europe excluding Germany were down 0.7% from January to March 2010 to

152.8m previous year 153.9m That means business in Europe which had been hit

especially hard by the weak Eastern European market has stabilised at low level

KRONES continued to gain ground in the rest of the world Sales in the first quarter

of 2010 were up 35.9% compared to the year-earlier period from 240.Om to

326.lm In the first quarter of 2010 61.1% of KRONES total sales were generated out

side Europe previous year 49.8% Sales growth was especially strong in China and

the rest of Asia

MANAGEMENT REPORT KRONES IN FIGURES



New orders and orders on hand

New orders picking up considerably

Already last year new orders had risen from quarter to quarter This trend picked up New orders at KRONES were

momentum in the first three months of 2010 From January to March the company
almost one-third higher in the

first quarter 012010 compared
received orders totalling 550.4m Compared with the first quarter of 2009 that is

to the year-earlier period

an increase of 32.8%

While demand for complete bottling lines had slumped during fiscal 2009 new

orders for complete lines increased in the first three months of 2010 We were not

yet able to land greenfield project in which KRONES is the general contractor re

sponsible for constructing and equipping new beverage plant from the ground up

in the first quarter Nevertheless we view as positive signal the fact that interest

in such complex high-margin projects has been increasing over the past several

months

In regional terms new orders from Asia China Africa and the Middle East were

especially good in the first three months of fiscal 2010 While our customers in Cen

tral and Western Europe are slowly beginning to spend more on capital investments

demand from the USA and Eastern Europe remained weak during the reporting

period

Orders on hand at the end of March total more than 900m

The orders backlog of 905.3m at the end of March 2010 reflects the fact that busi

ness has picked up for KRONES in recent months It is more than 135m larger than it

was year ago which increases the companys planning security for the months

ahead

KRONES Group new orders in KRONES Group orders on hand in

January 31 March at 31 March

903.0 905.3

727.5

ii
607.3

557.1

488.5

II iI
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
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Earnings

KRONES posts profit for the first quarter

After having posted loss for all four quarters in the crisis year 2009 KRONES was

back in the black in the first three months of 2010 From January to March KRONES

generated earnings before taxes EBT of 13.2m In the year-earlier period EBT was

4.OmThe improved economic situation and the resulting increase in capacity util

isation and better fixed charge coverage were key factors enabling this turnaround

Although the beverage and packaging industry has recovered somewhat from its

deep slump the market as whole is still far from its pre-crisis level As result

price quality on our orders was still unsatisfactory during the reporting period The

EBT margin the ratio of earnings before taxes to sales was 2.5% in the first quarter

Earnings before taxes EBT in Consolidated net income in

January 31 March January 31 March

45.6

36.1

30.5 30.7

22.9

19.1

13.2

___u_
4.0 si

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

Net income for the period from January to March 2010 was up 14.2m from the

year-earlier period to 9.lm Earnings per
share amounted to 0.30 previous year

0.17

Earnings per share in January 31 March

0.98

0.72

0.60

0.17

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

KRONES was back in the black

in the first quarter after having

posted losses last year

MANAGEMENT REPORT KRONES IN FIGURES



KRONES Group earnings structure in

2010 2009 Change

Jan31 MarJan31 Mar

Sales revenue 533.5 482.3 10.6%

Changes in inventories offinished goods

and work in progress 23.7 26.5

Total operating revenue 557.2 455.8 22.2%

Goods and services purchased 296.0 234.2 26.4%

Personnel expenses 175.9 160.0 9.9%

Other operating income expenses

and own work capitalised 58.3 53.4 9.2%

EBITOA 27.0 8.2

Depreciation amortisation and write-downs of

intangible assets property plant and equipment

and non-current financial assets 14.3

EBIT 12.7 5.9

Financial income expense 0.5 1.9

Earnings before taxes EBT 13.2 4.0

Income tax 4.1 1.1

consolidated net income 9.1 5.1

Since business had picked up and the companys cost-saving efforts were taking

effect KRONES was profitable again in the first three months of 2010 Total operating

revenue for the first quarter of 2010 was up 22.2% compared to the year-earlier

period to 557.2m Total operating revenue increased far more sharply during the

reporting period than sales 10.6% because inventories of finished goods and work

in progress increased 23.7m That figure had decreased by 26.5m in the period

from January to March 2009

The fact that
expenses for goods and services purchased increased 26.4% from

234.2m to 296.Om and therefore more than proportionately to total operating

revenue is due in large part to the fact that KRONES once again hired large number

of temporary workers to handle increased demand in the first quarter The ratio of

expenses for goods and services purchased to total operating revenue was 53.1% in

the first quarter previous year 51.4% Personnel expenses grew less than propor

tionately to total operating revenue At 175.9m the figure was down 9.9% from the

year-earlier figure of i6o.om In the first quarter of this year KRONES did not use

any short-time working schemes The ratio of personnel expenses to total operating

revenue declined from 35.1% year earlier to 31.6%

When the first signs of an impending global recession were emerging at the end

of 2008 KRONES launched the nConversione programme Reducing other operating

expenses was one of the measures taken under this programme These cuts con

tinued to bear fruit in the first quarter of 2010 The net of other operating income

and expenses and own work capitalised in relation to total operating revenue

decreased from 11.7% in the year-earlier period to io.% in the first quarter of 2010

Our Conversion programme

continued to beorfruit in the first

quarter

14.1 1.4%
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Cash flow

KRONES Group cash flow in

2010 2009

Jan31 Mar Jan31 Mar

EBT 13.2 4.0

Ca5h flow from operating activities 22.8 54.7

Cash flow from investing activities 11.2 24.8

Free cash flow 34.0 79.5

Cashflowfrornfinancingactivities 0.4 20.0

Net change in cash and cash equivalents

Change in cash and cash equivalents arising

0.3 0.4from exchange rates

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period

cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period

Change

in

17.2

31.9

13.6

45.5

20.4

25.134.4 59.5

0.1

27.1

52.3

KRONES cash flow from operating activities improved in the period from January to

March 2010 to 22.8m from 54.7m in the year-earlier period The primary reason

why cash flow from operating activities was negative is that invoice timing resulted

in an increase in trade receivables in the first quarter of this year Lower tax prepay

ments helped to offset that effect

KRONES invested 12.3m in intangible assets and in property plant and equipment

PPE during the reporting period which was 9.7m less than the previous year

large portion of this spending went toward new production machinery In the first

quarter of 2009 the company was still investing in the expansion of the new tech

nology centre in Neutraubling which was completed last year

Free cash flow that is cash flow from operating activities less capital expenditure

improved by 45.5m from 79.5m the previous year to 34.Om in the first quarter

of 2010 We expect KRONES to generate positive free Cash flow for the year 2010 as

whole

While the company had taken out short-term loan of 4o.6m in the first quarter of

2009 KRONES did not need to borrow during the reporting period because sufficient

funds were available Accounting for changes arising from exchange rates KRONES

had cash and cash equivalents totalling ioo.8m at 31 March 2010 previous year

48.5m

KRONES Group cash flow from operating activities in January31 March

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

135.5 108.4

100.8 48.5

KRONES cash flow improved

on the previous year
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Assets and capital structure

KRONES Group assets and capital structure in

At 1831.2m KRONES total assets at the end of March 2010 were up 2.3% from the

reporting date for 2009 This change also reflects the increase in business volume

In the first quarter of 2010 flONE5 had non-current assets totalling 544.4m

31 December 2009 542.5m At 496.lm the total of property plant and equip

ment intangible assets and non-current financial assets was virtually unchanged

from the reporting date for 2009 495.8m By far the largest portion of this figure

was property plant and equipment with carrying value of 403.5m at 31 March

2010 The companys intangible assets which amounted to 91.lm at the end of

March 31 December 2009 86.im are primarily development costs that must

be capitalised

KRONES had current assets totalling 1286.Sm at the end of the first quarter of 2010

The fact that this figure is 3.0% higher than at the reporting date for 2009 is due

primarily to an increase in current trade receivables as result of invoice timing

At 522.Om trade receivables at 31 March 2010 were 63.7m higher than at the end of

2009 By contrast inventories were up only slightly to 53o.7m 31 December 2009

521.9m All told the ratio of working capital to sales improved on the previous year

from 31.1% to 26.0%

Capital expenditure for PPE and intangible assets in JanLiary 31 March

17.2
17.6

15.7

12.3

III
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

KRONE5 has solid balance sheet

structure The equity ratio at the

end of March 2010 was 38.9% well

above the industry average

31 Dec 2008 31 Dec 2007

534 475Non-current assets

of which property plant and equipment

intangible assets and non-current

financial assets

Current assets

of which cash and equivalents

Equity

Total debt

Non-current liabilities

Current liabilities

Total assets

31 Mar2010

544

496

1287

101

712

1119

123

996

1831

31 Dec 2009

542

496

1248

136

696

1094

125

969

1790

482

1291

108

790

1035

144

891

1825

422

1209

54

708

976

155

821

1684
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The other assets which consist primarily of advances paid and tax receivables

amounted to 128.6m At the end of March 2010 KRONE5 had cash and cash equiva

lents of ioo.8m 31 December 2009 135.5m

Due primarily to the positive first-quarter earnings the companys equity was up

from 695.7m at the reporting date for 2009 to 711.7m The equity ratio was 38.9%

at the end of March 31 December 2009 38.9% Even after the difficult year 2009

flONES still has comfortable equity ratio that is well above the industry average

nONES non-current liabilities primarily provisions for pensions and other provi

sions totalled 123.5m at the end of the quarter The company had no non-current

bank debt at 31 March 2010

At 99 6.om current liabilities were up slightly from the end of 2009 969.8m
The increase is due primarily to higher advances received from customers and other

liabilities and accruals KRONES had no current bank debt at the end of March 2010

Thus KRONES had net cash and cash equivalents of ioo.8m at 31 March

KR0NES Group cash and cash equivalents at 31 March in

100.8

483

42.7

33.5Ii
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

KRONES employed 10192 people at the end of March

Despite the sharp slump in business last year KRONES maintained its core workforce

for strategic reasons At 31 March 2010 KRONES employed 10192 people just 8i fewer

than at the end of the first quarter of 2009 KRONES employed 8073 people in Ger

many previous year 8206 and 2119 outside Germany previous year 2067 At 31

March 2010 KRONES was training 447 young people

MANAGEMENT REPORT KRONE5 IN FIGURES
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Report from the segments

Sales by segment Jan31 Mar 2010 Sales by segment Jan31 Mar 2009

Machines and lines Machines and lines

for product filling and for product filling and

decoration decoration

$74% 466.6m 393% 430.8m

Machines and lines for

beverage production
beverage production

processtechnology
processtechnology

9.2W 48.9m
7.2% 34.8m

Machines and lines for Machines and lines for

the low output range the low output range

K05ME K05ME
34% 18.Om 35% 16.7m

Share of consolidated sales of533.5m Share of consolidated sales of482.3m

Segment revenues

In the first quarter of 2010 sales in our core segment machines and lines for prod- So/es in oil three segments

uct filling and decoratione improved 8.3% on the year-earlier period to 466.6m were up on year-earlier levels

previous year 43o.8m Thus the segment has recovered from the 2009 sales

slump 23.7% The largest share of segment sales came from our plastics division

which produces machines and lines for producing filling and packaging PET bottles

Our core segment contributed 87.4% to total sales for the quarter previous year

89.3%

eMachines and lines for beverage production/process technology increased sales

40.5% in the period from January to March 2010 compared with the year-earlier

period from 34.8m to 48.9m It should be noted here that the first quarter of 2009

had been very weak due to invoice timing Breweries in Africa in particular were

buying KRONES brewhouses and other process technology products in the first quar

ter of 2010 The segments share of total sales rose from 7.2% last year to 9.2%

In our smallest segment machines and lines for the lower output range KosiviE

sales were up 7.8% to 18.om previous year 16.7m KOSME is growing with
range

of new products several of which were unveiled in the first quarter The fact that

KOSME customers can use KRONES entire Lifecycle Service network is an additional

selling point for the segments products KOSME accounted for 3.4% of consolidated

sales in the first quarter of 2010 previous year 3.5%

MANAGEMENT REPORT REPORT FROM THE 5EGMENTS
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Segment earnings

After having posted negative earnings before taxes COT ofo.9m in the first

three months of 2009 our core segment smachines and lines for product filling

and decorationn generated strong positive earnings in the first quarter of 2010 with

EBT of 13.5m Due in part to unsatisfactory price quality in the first quarter the

COT margin of 2.9% the ratio of EBT to sales was still far from its pre-crisis level

Earnings before taxes in the machines and lines for beverage production/process

technology segment improved from 2.7m in the first quarter of 2009 to 1.3m

for the first three months of this
year

The larger share of KRONES own products

within the segments total sales had positive impact on earnings The EBT margin

rose from 7.8% in the year-earlier period to 2.6%

The cost of restructuring activities cut into earnings in the omachines and lines for

the low output range K0sMEe segment KRONES had increased its shareholding in

KOSME to 100% in early 2009 The companys aim is now to streamline processes

and further improve the range of products offered Earnings before taxes remained

negative in the first quarter at i.6m previous year o.4m The tight financing

situation for smaller customers will continue to weigh on earnings in this segment

Product filling and decor tion 20

EBT inm 78

EST inm

EBT margin in

Beverage production/process technology

09

Our core segment improved

earnings considerably in the

reporting period
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hanIl Mar

BT inm 1.3

Ear in 1.3

EBT margin in 2.6 78

KOSME

ESIT inm

EBT inm

EST margin in

2009

1j0T.31 Mar

-0.1

04
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The KRONES share

Share indices up in the first quarter

After posting sharp gains in 2009 the worlds stock markets started 2010 weaker The

fact that many countries are burdened with heavy debt following the global recession

weighed heavily on share prices as did fears of another economic slump By early

February Germanys lead share index the DAX was down nearly 10% from where it

had closed the year 2009 to 5400 The EURO STOXX 50 the Dow Jones and the Nikkei

index all underwent similarcorrections during this period

After this investors plucked up renewed courage and share prices recovered sharply

Good economic data supported the new uptrend Low interest rates meant that inves

tors did not have recourse to attractive alternatives to stocks By 31 March 2010 the

DAX had not only recouped its losses but gained around 3.3% from the start of the
year

reaching 6io points Several successful initial public offerings Ipos in March are

another indication of the positive mood on Germanys stock markets at the end of

the quarter

With gain of 8.% the MDAX improved even more than the DAX The mid-cap index

benefitted from the fact that it contains many cyclical stocks The brighter economic

outlook had investors especially keen on these stocks

KRONES share price dimbs 7.3%

KROIRES share price gain was on par

with the rwoax for the first quarter

Like the market as whole the KRONES share was weaker from start of the year to the

end of January Then as it became apparent that the machinery sector likely had the

worst behind it the share price improved considerably Positive analyst commentaries

on KRONES share also helped fuel the uptrend The share reached its high for the first

quarter of 2010 39.60 on 12 March Our share had closed 2009 at 35.50 In mid

March the company released its preliminary figures for 2009 and an outlook for the

current year These met the expectations of analysts At the end of March our share

was up 7.3% compared with the start of the year to 38.09

KRONES share
price performance lan 31 March 2010

KRONES share MOAX indexed

MANAGEMENT REPORT SHE KRONES SHARE



Risk report
15

Risk management system is always evolving

KRONES is exposed to variety of risks that are inextricably linked with doing busi

ness globally We continuously monitor all significant business processes to identify

risks early and to actively manage and limit them An internal monitoring and con

trol system with which we record analyse and assess all relevant risks is an integral

part of the risk management system at KRONES Our risk management system con

sists of the following modules risk analysis risk monitoring and risk planning and

management

Risk analysis

In order to identify risks early we continuously monitor all business activities We

conduct profitability analysis on all of our quotes before accepting any order For

orders that exceed specified volume we also conduct multi-dimensional risk

analysis Apart from profitability we also individually record and evaluate financing

risks technological risks and scheduling and other contractual risks

Risk monitoring

We use variety of interlinked controlling processes to monitor risks within the

KRONE5 Group Regular comprehensive reports from the individual business units

keep the Executive Board and other decision-makers apprised of all possible risks

and deviations from company planning in timely manner

Risk planning and control

We use the following tools to plan our business activities and control risk within our

risk monitoring and control system annual planning medium-term planning stra

tegic planning rolling forecasts monthly and quarterly reports capital expenditure

planning production planning capacity planning project controlling accounts

receivable management exchange rate hedges and insurance policies

Threats

Viewed from todays perspective KRONES is not exposed to any risks that threaten

the companys continued existence detailed discussion of the risks faced by the

company and description of our risk management can be found in the Manage

ment Report beginning on 62 of our 2009 Annual Report There have been no

material changes with respect to the companys key risks for the first quarter of

2010 since the statements made in the annual report

MANAGEMENT REPORT RISK REPORT



16 Outlook

Cautious optimism for 2010

After the most severe recession since the World War ii the global economy is on the

road to recovery However threats to sustained recovery remain and the possible

scenarios for the global economic trend vary widely While many experts are pre

dicting real GDP growth of over s% in the Asia-Pacific region growth forecasts for

the rest of the world particularly Europe as and North America are far more

subdued Thus no truly reliable trends or forecasts have emerged that show clear

direction The web of global risk factors is complex

Global economic growth

Monetary policy inflation risks and exchange rate policy

Financial markets and financial market regulations

New protectionism

Raw materials procurement markets energy the environment

Labour markets

The future development of the global economy is still fraught with considerable

uncertainty

KRONES long-term outlook for growth is still good because the megatrends will

benefit our industry The worlds population is still growing Wealth and consump

tion are increasing in many countries Food and drink are basic human needs In

addition our customers have to offer an ever-increasing variety of products in order

to survive in their markets some of which are already saturated KRONE5 benefits

from this situation because our complete portfolio has suitable solution for every

customer

Our business model and clear strategy have proved their worth

We have learned from the crisis We will continue to tap considerable potential with

our Conversion programme which entails changing our thinking as well as our

organisation to adapt KRONES to cope
in more volatile markets

Given the positive developments in the first quarter of 2010 KRONES is cautiously

optimistic about the year as whole We expect to achieve sales growth between 5%

and 15% and consolidated net income in the double-digit millions Assuming that

conditions remain as they are we expect the earnings trend to remain positive in

2011

MANAGEMENT REPORT OUTLOOK
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18 Statement of financial position for the KRONES Group

Assets 31 Mar 2010

____________________________________________
91.1 86.1

_________________________________________
403.5 407.4

____________________________________________
1.5 2.3

496.1 495.8

_____________________
13.7 12.0

_____________________
17.7 18.8

_____________________ 10.8 10.9

6.1 50

544.4 542.5

521.9

____________________________________________________________
522.0 458.3

________________________________________________________________
4.7 5.3

____________________________________________________________
128.6 127.0

100.8 135.5

1248.0

1831.2 1790.5

Intangible assets

Property plant and equipment

Non-current financial assets

Property plant and equipment intangible assets

and non-current financial assets

31 Mar 2009

Deferred tax assets

Trade receivables

Current tax receivables

Other assets

Non-current assets

Inventories 530.7

Trade receivables

Current tax receivables

Other assets

Total

Cash and cash equivalents

Current assets 1286.8

KRONES GROUP INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION



Equity and liabilities 31 Mar2010 31 Mar 2009

Equity 711.7 695.7

Provisions for pensions 78.0 76.8

Deferred tax liabilities 1.6 2.2

Other provisions 37.7 37.7

Liabilities to banks 0.0 0.0

Other financial liabilities 1.6 2.9

Other liabilities 4.6 5.4

Non-current liabilities 123.5 125.0

Other provisions 176.6 183.8

Provisionsfortaxes 14.4 8.1

Liabilities to banks 0.0 0.0

Advances received 459.2 434.2

Trade payables 135.2 162.3

Other financial liabilities 8.8 5.9

Other liabilities and accruals 201.8 175.5

Current liabilities 996.0 969.8

Total 1831.2 1790.5

KRONES GROUP INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
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20
Separate income statement for the KRONES Group

Sales revenue

changes in inventories offinished goods and work in progress

Total operating revenue

Goods and services purchased

Personnel expenses

Other operating income expenses and own work capitalised

Depreciation amortisation and write-downs of intangible assets

roertv olant and eouioment and non-current financial assets

Financial income_expense

Earnings before taxes EBT

Income tax

Consolidated net income

Profit loss share of non-controlling interests

Profit loss share of KRONES Group shareholders

Earnings per share diluted/basic in

2G10 2009 change

lJan3lMar Jan31 Mar

inm

533.5 482.3 10.6

23.7 265

557.2 455.8 22.2

296.0 234.2 264

175.9 160.0 9.9

583 53.4 9.2

EBIT

14.3 14.1 1.4

12.7 5.9
____________

0.5
_________

1.9
_____________

13.2
_______

4.0
____________

4.1 _________Li _____________

9.1 5.1
____________

0.0 00

91 51

0.30 0.17

KRONES GROUP INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS SEPARATE INCOME STATEMENT



Statement of cash flows for the KRONES Group
21

2010 2009

lJan3lMar lJan3lMar

Earnings before taxes 13.2 4.0

Depreciation and amortisation reversals 14.3 14.1

Increase previous year decrease in provisions 22.7 3.4

Deferred tax item changes recognised in
profit or loss 1.1 1.4

Interest expenses and interest income 0.5 1.3

Proceeds and losses from the disposal of non-current assets 0.1 0.0

Other non-cash expenses and income 2.2 0.2

Increase previous year decrease in inventories trade receivables and other assets

not attributable to investing or financing activities 79.0 76.4

Increase previous year decrease in trade payables and other liabilities not attributable

to investing or financing activities 8.7 114.2

Cash generated from operating activities 19.6 33.6

Interest paid 0.6 0.4

Income tax paid and refunds received 2.6 20.7

Cash flow from operating activities 22.8 54.7

Cash payments to acquire intangible assets 7.7 10.4

Cash payments to acquire property plant and equipment 4.6 11.6

Proceeds from the disposal of property plant and equipment 0.1 0.0

Purchase of shares in affiliated companies 0.0 3.1

Interest received 1.0 0.3

Cash flow from investing activities 11.2 24.8

Purchase of treasury shares 0.0 20.2

Proceeds from new borrowing 0.0 40.6

Cash payments to pay lease liabilities 0.4 0.4

Cash flow from financing activities 0.4 20.0

Net change in cash and cash equivalents 34.4 59.5

Changes in cash and cash equivalents arising from exchange rates 0.3 0.4

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 135.5 108.4

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 100.8 48.5

KRONES GROUP INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS



22 Statement of changes in equity for the KRONES Group

Issued Capital Retained Currency Other Group Equity Equity

capital reserves earnings
differences reserves unappropri

inequity ated pro1t

net accum

ulated loss

Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm

40.0 103.7 476.7 8.9 1.5 175.8 788.8 1.2 790.0

5.1 5.1 0.0 5.1

20.2 20.2 20.2

0.4 0.4 0.4

2.6 2.6 1.2 3.8

0.4 0.4 0.4

83.5 474.1 9.3 1.1 170.7 760.1 0.0 760.1

18.1 18.1 18.1

29.6 29.6 0.2 29.4

16.9 16.9 16.9

18.5 18.5 0.0 0.0

4.0 4.0 0.6 3.4

4.5 0.2 4.7 4.7

1.3 1.3 1.3

40.0 66.6 488.6 4.8 0.2 104.7 694.9 0.8 695.7

9.1 9.1 0.0 9.1

7.9 7.9 7.9

1.0 1.0 1.0

40.0 66.6 488.6 3.1 1.2 113.8 710.9 0.8 711.7

Non- GroupParent company
controlling equity

interests

At 31 December 2008

Consolidated net income Q1 2009

Treasury shares

Currency differences

Changes in the consolidated group

Hedge accounting

At 31 March 2009 40.0

Dividend payment 0.60 per share

Consolidated net income months 2009

Purchase of treasury shares

Allocation to retained earnings

Changes in the consolidated group

Currency differences

Hedge accounting

At 31 December 2009

Consolidated net income Qi 2010

Currency differences

Hedge accounting

At 31 March 2010

KRONES GROUP INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY



Statement of comprehensive income 23

2010 2009

lJan31 Mar lJan31 Mar

Consolidated net income loss 9.1 5.1

Exchange differences on translation 7.9 0.4

Available-for-sale financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments 1.0 0.4

Other comprehensive income 6.9 0.8

Total comprehensive income 16.0 5.9

of which attributable to non-controlling interests 0.0 0.0

of which attributable to KRONES Group shareholders 16.0 5.9

Segment reporting

Machines and lines Machines and lines Machines and fines KRONE5 Group

for product filling for beverage production for the low output range

and decoration process technology K0sME

2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009

Jan31 Mar Jan31 Mar Jan31 Mar Jan31 Mar Jan31 Mar Jan31 Mar Jan31 Mar Jan31 Mar

inm inm inm inm inm iflm inm inm

Safes revenues 466.6 430.8 48.9 34.8 18.0 16.7 533.5 482.3

EBIT 14.0 2.8 1.3 3.0 2.6 0.1 12.7 5.9

EBI 13.5 0.9 1.3 2.7 1.6 0.4 13.2 4.0

EBT margin 2.9% 0.2% 2.6% 7.8% 8.9% 2.4% 2.5% 0.8%

Employees at 31 March 8904 9023 621 583 516 518 10041 10124

Consolidated group

KRONES GRouP INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME SEGMENT REPORTING



24 Notes to the consolidated financial statements of the KRONE5 Group

General disclosures

Legal basis

The consolidated financial statements of KRONES AG SKRONES GroupI for the period ended

31 March 2010 have been prepared in accordance with the International Financial Reporting

Standards IFass of the International Accounting Standards Board IAsn London applica

ble on the reporting date including the interpretations issued by the International Finan

cial Reporting Interpretation Committee IFRIc as adopted by the European Union No early

application was made of IFRSs that had not yet entered into force or their interpretations

Non-controlling interests in group equity are presented on the statement of financial

position as special item within equity Profit or loss shares attributable to non-controlling

interests are recognised on the separate income statement and the statement of compre

hensive income as part of consolidated net income The shares of consolidated net income

attributed to the owners of the parent company and to non-controlling interests are pre

sented separately

Non-controlling interests have been added to the statement of changes in equity

The following explanatory notes comprise disclosures and remarks that under IFRS5 must

be included as notes to the consolidated financial statements in addition to the statement of

financial position the separate income statement and statement of comprehensive income

the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows

The onature of expense method has been used for the separate income statement The

groups reporting currency
is the euro

consolidated group

Besides KRONE5 AG the consolidated financial statements for the period ended 31 March

2010 include all material domestic and foreign subsidiaries in which KRONES AG holds more

than 50% of the voting rights

KRONE5 0.0.0 Moscow Russian Federation and KRONES Thailand Co Ltd Bangkok

Thailand were added to the consolidated group in fiscal 2010 KRONE5 AG holds direct

ioo% stake in these companies

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE KRONES GROUP GENERAL DISCLOSURES
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Consolidation principles

The separate financial statements of the companies included in the consolidated financial

statements are prepared in accordance with uniform accounting policies and were all pre

pared as of the reporting date of the consolidated financial statements

Capital consolidation is performed in accordance with IFRS Business combinations

under which all business combinations must be accounted for using the purchase methods

of accounting whereby the acquired assets and liabilities are to be recognised at fair value

Goodwill that arose before January 2004 is still recognised in reserves

Shares in the equity of subsidiaries that are not held by the parent company are reported as

snon-controlling interestss

Inter-company receivables liabilities provisions revenues and expenses between consoli

dated companies are eliminated in the consolidation accounting

This also applies for inter-company profits from deliveries effected or services rendered

between group companies provided the amounts from these transactions are still held by

the group at the reporting date

Currency translation

The functional currency for KRONES AG is the euro

The financial statements of the consolidated companies that are denominated in foreign

currency are translated on the basis of the functional currency concept under lAS 21 using

modified closing rate method Because the subsidiaries primarily operate independently in

the economic environment of their respective countries the functional currency is always

the relevant local currency for each subsidiary In the consolidated financial statements

assets and liabilities are therefore translated at the closing rate as on the reporting date

while income and expenses from the financial statements of subsidiaries are translated

at average annual rates

Any exchange differences resulting from translation using these different rates in the state

ment of financial position and the separate income statement and statement of comprehen

sive income are recognised directly in equity Exchange differences resulting from the

translation of equity using historical exchange rates are also recognised directly in equity

In the separate financial statements of KRONES AG and its subsidiaries receivables and

liabilities in foreign currencies are translated using the exchange rate at the time of the

transaction and exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss at the closing rate

Non-monetary items in foreign currencies are stated at historical cost

Exchange rate differences compared with the previous year arising from capital consolida

tion are recognised directly in equity in other retained earnings
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The exchange rates of those currencies that have material impact on the groups financial

statements have moved against the euro as follows

us dollar

British pound

Swiss franc

Danish krone

Canadian dollar

Japanese yen

Brazilian real

Chinese renminbi yuan

Mexican peso

Ukrainian hryvnia

South African rand

Kenyan shilling

Nigerian naira

Thai baht

Russian ruble

crosing rate Aveage rate

31 Mar 2010 31 Dec 2009 2010 2009

1.441 1.386 1.308

0.890 0.888 0.910

1.484 1.464 1.498

7.442 7.443 7.452

1.510 1.443 1.625

jpy 125.850 133.060 125.740 122.265

BRI 2.411 2.510 2.506 3.043

CNY 9.198 9.830 9.472 8.955

MXN 16.650 18.826 17.739 18.796

UAH 10.676 11.591 11.237 10.750

ZAR 9.884 10.675 10.440 13.010

KES 104.158 109.285 110.085 107.719

NON 202.250 215.260 211.039 194.667

THB 43.597 47.969 45.906 46.570

RUB 39.701 43.647 41.450 44.482

Accounting policies

The separate financial statements of KRONES AG and its domestic and foreign subsidiaries have

been prepared using uniform accounting policies in accordance with lAS 27

Some discretion has been used in preparing the consolidated financial statements particularly

in terms of measurement of non-current assets inventories receivables pension provisions

and provisions because their preparation requires some critical estimates and forecasts

Intangible assets

Acquired and internally generated intangible assets excluding goodwill are recognised

pursuant to lAS 38 if it is sufficiently probable that the use of the asset will result in future

economic benefit and the cost of the asset can be reliably determined They are stated at cost

and amortised systematically on straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives The

amortisation of intangible assets is carried out over useful life of between three and five years

and is recognised under sDepreciation and amortisation of intangible assets and property

plant and equipmente

USD 1.347

GBP 0.890

CHF 1.428

DKK 7.445

CAD 1.368
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Research and development expenditure

Development expenditure of the flONES Group is capitalised at cost to the extent that costs

can be allocated clearly and the technical feasibility and future economic benefit as result

of their use are probable According to lAS 38 research expenditure cannot be recognised as

an intangible asset and is therefore recognised as an expense directly in profit or loss

Goodwill

There is no goodwill in these consolidated accounts

Property plant and equipment

Property plant and equipment are accounted for at cost less scheduled depreciation on

straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives The cost of internally generated plant and

equipment comprises all costs that are directly attributable to the production process and an

appropriate portion of overheads Borrowing costs are not recognised as cost

revaluation of property plant and equipment pursuant to lAS i6 was not carried out

Scheduled depreciation is based on the following useful lives which are applied uniformly

throughout the group

In years

Buildings
1450

Technical equipment and machinery 518

Furniture and fixtures and office equipment 315

In figuring the useful lives the different components of an asset with significantly different

costs were taken into account

Government grants are only recognised if there is reasonable assurance that the conditions

attaching to them will be complied with and the grants will be received

Government grants related to assets are deducted from the cost of the asset and recognised

in profit and loss in the subsequent periods in the proportions in which depreciation expense

on those assets is recognised

Leases

Leases in which the KEONES Group as the lessee bears substantially all the risks and rewards

incidental to ownership of the leased asset are treated as finance leases pursuant to lAS 17 upon

inception of the lease The leased asset is recognised as non-current asset at fair value or if

lower at the present value of the minimum lease payments The leased asset is depreciated sys

tematically using the straight-line method over the shorter of the elease terme and its euseful

lifee Payment obligations for future lease instalments are recognised under eother liabilities

In the case of operating leases the leased assets are treated as assets belonging to the lessor

since the lessor bears the risks and rewards
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Financial instruments

Financial instruments under lAS 39 used by KRONES consist of the following

Non-current financial assets

Financial instruments held for trading derivative financial instruments

Available-for-sale financial instruments

Financial receivables and liabilities

For the measurement categories the carrying amounts correspond to the fair values

The non-current financial assets are not traded on the market and are therefore recognised

at amortised cost

The fair values and carrying amounts are based on customary market rates and observable

ongoing market transactions Level under IFRS 7.27A

Transactions against cash settlement are accounted for using the settlement date Derivative

financial instruments are accounted for using the trade date

Net gains and losses include impairments and measurement changes for derivative financial

instruments and are explained in the notes to the relevant measurement categories

Pursuant to lAS 39 the classes under IFRS also include cash proceeds and liabilities from

finance leases in addition to the categories listed above

Disclosures about risk reporting as specified under IFRS are included in the risk report within

the consolidated management report

Non-current financial assets

Non-current financial assets other than securities are recognised at cost less impairment losses

Non-current securities are classified as Havailable for sales and recognised at fair value directly

in equity No assets are classified as held to maturitys

Moreover the stair value options provided for under lAS 39 is not applied to any items on the

consolidated statement of financial position for the KRONES Group

Derivative financial instruments

The derivative financial instruments used within the KRONES Group are used to hedge against

currency
risks from operating activities

The primarycategory of currency risk at KRONES is transaction risk arising from exchange rates

and cash flows in foreign currencies The currency materially affected by this is the us dollar
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Within the hedging strategy ioo% of items denominated in foreign currencies are generally

hedged The primaryhedging instruments used for this are forward exchange contracts and

occasionally swaps including currency swaps

The strategy objective is to minimise currency risk by using hedging instruments that are

viewed as highly effective thus hedging the exchange rate and achieving planning security

The derivative financial instruments are measured at fair value at the reporting date The fair

values are determined using Level inputs under IFRS 7.27A

Gains and losses from the measurement are recognised as profit or loss on the separate

income statement and the statement of comprehensive income unless the conditions for hedge

accounting are met

The derivative financial instruments for which hedge accounting is applied comprise forward

currency contracts and currency swaps
whose changes in fair value are recognised as fair

value hedge in profit or loss or cash flow hedges as part of equity In the case of cash flow

hedges to mitigate currency risks from existing underlying transactions changes in fair value

are initially recognised directly in equity and subsequently reclassified to profit and loss when

the hedged item affects profit or loss These derivative financial instruments are measured on

the basis of the relevant commercial banks forward rates

They are derecognised only when substantially all risks and rewards of ownership are

transferred

Receivables and other assets

Receivables and other assets with the exception of derivative financial instruments are assets

that are not held for trading They are recognised at amortised cost Receivables with maturities

of over one year that bear no or lower-than-market interest are discounted Impairments are

recognised to take account for all identifiable risks The indicators used for this are the ageing

of the receivables and the customers business situation

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value Cost includes those costs

that are directly related to the units of production and an appropriate portion of fixed and

variable production overheads The portion of overheads is determined on the basis of normal

capacity of the production facilities Selling costs and general administrative costs are not in

cluded in the costs of inventories For inventory risks arising from increased storage periods

or reduced usability write-downs are made on the inventories

For the sake of convenience in measuring materials and supplies the FiFo and weighted average

cost formulas are applied
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Construction contracts for specific customers

Construction contracts for specific customers that are in progress are recognised by reference

to the stage of completion pursuant to lAS 11 percentage of completion method Under this

method contract revenue is recognised in accordance with the percentage of physical comple

tion of the lines and machines at the reporting date The percentage of completion corresponds

to the ratio of contract costs incurred up to the reporting date to the total costs calculated for

the contract The construction contracts are recognised under trade receivables

Deferred tax items

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised using the sbalance sheet-oriented liability

methodç which involves recognising deferred tax items for all temporary differences between

the tax base of an asset or liability and its carrying amount in the statement of financial posi

tion under IFRS5 and for consolidation procedures recognised in profit or loss

The deferred tax items are computed on the basis of the national income tax rates that apply

in the individual countries at the time of realisation Changes in the tax rates are taken into

account if there is sufficient certainty that they will occur Where permissible under law

deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset

Provisions for pensions

Provisions for pensions are calculated using the sprojected unit credit methods pursuant

to lAS 19 Under this method known vested benefits at the reporting date as well as expected

future increases in pensions and salaries are taken into account with due consideration to

relevant factors that will affect the benefit amount which are estimated on prudent basis

The provision is calculated on the basis of actuarial valuations that take into account biometric

factors

Actuarial gains and losses are only recognised as income or expenses if the net cumulative

unrecognised actuarial gains and losses at the end of the previous reporting period exceeded

the greater of

io% of the present value of the defined benefit obligation at that date

before deducting plan assets and

10 of the fair value of any plan assets at that date

Other provisions

Other provisions are recognised when the group has an obligation to third party as result

of past event an outflow is probable and reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation

can be made Measurement of these provisions is computed at fully attributable costs or on the

basis of the most probable expenditures needed to settle the obligation
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Provisions with residual term of more than one year are recognised at the present value of

the probable expenditures needed to settle the obligation at the reporting date

Financial liabilities

For initial recognition in accordance with lAS 39 financial liabilities are measured at the cost

that is equal to the fair value of the consideration given Transaction costs are included in this

initial measurement of financial liabilities After initial recognition all financial liabilities are

measured at amortised cost

Sales revenue

With the exception of those contracts that are measured according to lAS 11 sales revenues

are recognised in accordance with the criteria laid out under lAS 18 when the significant risks

and rewards of ownership are transferred when price is agreed or can be determined and

economic benefit from the sale of goods is sufficiently probable

Sales revenues are reported less reductions

Segment reporting

flONES reports on three operating segments which are the strategic business units They

are organised by product divisions and services and managed separately due to the different

technologies they cover The Executive Board as the chief operating decision maker manages

the company as whole on the basis of monthly reports from the segments

Segment comprises machines and lines for product filling and decoration Segment

comprises machines and lines for beverage production and process technology Segment

comprises machines and lines for the low output range

The accounting policies used are the same as those described under DGeneral disclosuress

above

Segment performance is measured on the basis of internal reports made to the Executive Board

in particular segment revenues and segment EBIT

Intrasegment transfers are conducted under the same conditions as transfers among third

parties Intersegment revenues are negligible

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE KEONES GEOUF GENERAL DISCLOSURES



32
Shareholdings

Name and location of the company Share in capital

held by KRONES AG

in

neusped Neutraublinger Speditions-GmbH Neutraubling Germany 100.00

Kic KRONES lnternationale Cooperations-Gesellschaft mbH Neutraubling Germany 100.00

ecomac Gebrauchtmaschinen GmbH Neutraubling Germany 100.00

MAINTEC Service GmbH Collenberg/Main Germany 51.00

S.A KRONES Nv Louvain-la-Neuve Belgium 100.00

KRONES NordicApS Holte Denmark 100.00

KRONES S.A.R.L Lyon France 100.00

KRONES UK LTD Bolton UK 100.00

KOSME UK LTD Burton on Trent Staffordshire UK 100.00

KRONES 5.R.L Garda vR Italy 100.00

KOSME S.R.L Roverbella Italy 100.00

SMEFIN 5.R.L Roverbella Italy
100.00

CRONES Nederland By Bodegraven Netherlands 100.00

KOSME Gesellschaft mbh Sollenau Austria 100.00

KRONES Spólka z.o.o Warsaw Poland 100.00

KRONES Portugal Equipamentos lndustriais Lda Barcarena Portugal 100.00

KRONES 0.0.0 Moscow Russian Federation 100.00

KRONES Romania Prod 5.R.L Bucharest Romania 100.00

KRONES AG Buttwil Switzerland 100.00

KRONES Iberica S.A Barcelona Spain 100.00

KRONE5 5.R.O Prague Czech Republic 100.00

KRONES Ukraine LLC Kiev Ukraine 100.00

MAINTEC Service eood Sofia Bulgaria 51.00

MAINTEC Service Ges.m.b.H Dorf an der Pram Austria 51.00

KRONES Surlatina 5.A Buenos Aires Argentina 100.00

KRONES do Brazil ltda Sªo Paulo Brazil 100.00

KRONES S.A Sªo Paulo Brazil 100.00

KRONES Machinery Taicang Co Ltd Taicang China 100.00

KRONE5 Trading Taicang Co Ltd Taicang China 100.00

KRONE5A5iaLtd.HongKongChina 100.00

CRONES India Pvt Ltd Bangalore India 100.00

KR0NES Japan Co Ltd Tokyo Japan 100.00

KRONES Machinery Co Ltd Brampton Ontario Canada 100.00

KRONES ics Center East Africa Limited Nairobi Kenya 100.00

KRONES Andina Ltda Bogota Colombia 100.00

KRONE5 Korea Ltd Seoul Korea 100.00

KRONES Mex S.A DE c.v Mexico City Mexico 100.00

CRONES ics Center West Africa Limited Lagos Nigeria 100.00

KRONES Southern Africa Prop Ltd Johannesburg South Africa 100.00

KRONES Thailand Co Ltd Bangkok Thailand 100.00

KRONES Inc Franklin Wisconsin USA 100.00

Maquinarias KRONES de Venezuela S.A Caracas Venezuela 100.00

Beverage Consulting and Engineering Co Ltd Bangkok Thailand 49.00
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Members of the Supervisory Board and the Executive Board

Following fulfilment of the requirements for application of the German Codetermination Act Mitbestimmungs

gesetz of 1976 in 1987 the Supervisory Board was extended from six to twelve members Pursuant to

of the articles of association six members are elected by the shareholders in accordance with the German Stock

Corporation Act 961 and 101 Six members are elected by the employees pursuant to and 71

Sentence No.1 of the Codetermination Act

Supervisory Board Executive Board

Ernst Baumann Norman Kronseder Volker Kronseder

Chairman KRONSEDER FAMILY OFFICE Chairman

BAYERISCHE FUTTERSAATBAU Group Communication

Werner Schrödl GMBH Personnel Management

Chairman of the Central Works and Social Affairs

Council Philipp
Graf KRONES INC USA

Deputy Chairman von und zu Lerchenfeld

Member of the Bavarian Landtag Hans-Jurgen Thaus

Dr Klaus Heimann Dipl.-lng agr auditor and tax Deputy Chairman

Director of the Youth consultant Finance Controlling

Training and Qualification Information Management

Policy
Division of IG METALL Dr Alexander Nerz and Process Management

MAN AG Attorney KuRTZ GMBH

KR0NE5INc.usA

Dr Jochen Klein Johann Robold MASCHINENFABRIK REINHAUSEN

Chairman of the advisory council Member of the Works Council GMBH

of DbHLER HOLDING GMBH

DÔHLER GROUP Anton Schindlbeck Rainulf Diepold

ROVER GROUP Head of sales for LCS Marketing and Sales

Prof Dr Ing Erich Kohnhuser Jurgen Scholz Werner Frischholz

MAX AICHER STAHL AG 1st authorised representative Materials Management

and treasurer of the IG METALL and Production

administrative office in Regensburg

INFINEON TECHNOLOGIES AG Christoph Klenk

Research and Development

Josef Weitzer Engineering and Product Divisions

Chairman of the Works Council WINKLER DÜNNEBIER AG

Member of the Board of Directors

of Sparkasse Regensburg

Other Supervisory Board seats held pursuant to 125 Sentence of the German Stock Corporation Act

Elected bythe employees

In addition each of the Group companies is the responsibility of two members of the Executive Board
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Glossary

Affiliated companies See subsidiaries

Cash flow Financial flow variable indicating the cash surplus net income plus depreciation

DAX Deutscher Aktienindex DAx Index containing the 30 biggest German companies based on market

capitalisation and trading volume

Deferred tax items Temporary differences between the taxes calculated on the results reported on tax statements and

those calculated on the results recognised in the financial statements under IFRSS The purpose is to

show the tax expense in relation to the result under IFRss

EBITDA Earnings before interest taxes depreciation and amortisation

EBIT Earnings before interest and taxes

EBT Earnings before taxes

EBT margin Ratio of earnings before taxes to sales Return on sales

Equity Funds made available to the company by the owners by way of contribution and/or investment

plus retained earnings or losses

Free float Portion of the total number of shares outstanding that is available to the public for trading

FRSs International Financial Reporting Standards Accounting standards issued by the International

Accounting Standards Board lAse that are harmonised and applied internationally

Market capitalisation The value of company based on the market price of issued and outstanding ordinary shares

Calculated by multiplying the share
price by the number of shares

MDAx Index that contains the 50 biggest German and non-German companies based on market

capitalisation and trading volume in the traditional sectors after those included in the DAx

Net cash and equivalents Cash and highly liquid securities under current assets less liabilities to banks

Non-current assets Assets which are intended to permanently serve the business operations

RaCE Ratio of EBIT to average capital employed total assets less interest-free liabilities and other provisions

Rol Return on investment Ratio of earnings before taxes to total capital

Statement of cash flows Statement of inflows and outflows of cash that shows the sources and uses of funds within the

financial year

Subsidiaries All companies that are controlled directly or indirectly by parent company due to majority interest

and/or common management

Total debt Combined term for the provisions liabilities and deferred income stated on the liabilities side of the

balance sheet

Working capital Working capital is calculated as current assets less cash and cash equivalents and less trade payables

Working capital expresses the portion of assets that are working for the company i.e generating sales

revenues

GLOSSARY
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